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2023 10

41,331 100.22

8 0.02

7 0.02

2 0.00

1 0.00

18 0.04

41,349 100.26

109 0.26
41,240

6,085 100.00
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2023 10
2,087 5.05
1,382 3.34
1,080 2.61
904 2.19
885 2.14
722 1.75
705 1.711
629 1.52
559 1.35
530 1.28
489 1.18
486 1.18
478 1.16
476 1.15
460 1.11
409 0.99
294 0.71
294 0.71
269 0.65
269 0.65
211 0.51
200 0.48
198 0.48
186 0.45
183 0.44
165 0.40
129 0.31
117 0.28
104 0.25
65 0.16
54 0.13
15,019 36.34
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2,249 5.44
1,181 2.86
1,069 2.59
1,038 2.51
917 2.22
908 2.20
853 2.06
750 1.81
720 1.74
718 1.74
677 1.64
666 1.61
580 1.40
570 1.38
543 1.31
503 1.22
484 1.17
466 1.13
466 1.13
432 1.05
407 0.98
395 0.96
376 0.91
363 0.88
345 0.83
342 0.83
325 0.79
304 0.74
295 0.71
273 0.66
271 0.66
226 0.55
217 0.53
201 0.49
193 0.47
192 0.46
190 0.46
180 0.44
169 0.41
161 0.39
160 0.39
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155 0.38

155 0.38

151 0.37

138 0.33

137 0.33

123 0.30

122 0.30

119 0.29

107 0.26

99 0.24

93 0.23

47 0.11

30 0.07

22,851 55.29

685 1.66

453 1.10

312 0.75

56 0.14

32 0.08

26 0.06

17 0.04

6 0.01

5 0.01

1,592 3.85

182 0.44

295 0.71

2,006 4.85

2,159 5.22

44,104 106.71

2,773 6.71
41,331

( 6.008 ) 100.00
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30
2023 10
)
2,656,225 14.69 39,008,408| 15.56 41,330,860 100.22
M
2023 10
(¢ ) ( )

4.830 | 2023/11/01 6,547 6,547 6,547 0.02

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. 4.830 | 2023/11/01 5,127 5,127 5,127 0.01
Citibank N.A. 4.830 | 2023/11/01 2,816 2,816 2,816 0.01
DBS Bank Ltd. 4.830 | 2023/11/01 2,408 2,408 2,408 0.01
Bank of Nova Scotia 4.830 | 2023/11/01 668 668 668 0.00
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2023 10
)
gz::jn'ca“ Republic International 5.950 | 2027/01/25 800,000 772,608 | 1.87
South Africa Government
R 10.500 2026/12/21 13,900,000 764,072 1.85
International Bond
U.S. Treasury Notes 3.125 2029/08/31 700,000 636,781 1.54
Fannie Mae, TBA 5.500 2053/12/01 600,000 569,016 1.38
Israel Government International
5.000 2026/10/30 500,000 527,910 1.28
Bond
Fannie Mae 5.211 2023/11/01 500,000 500,000 1.21
Fannie Mae, TBA 5.000 2053/12/01 500,000 460,820 1.11
U.S. Treasury Bonds 3.250 2042/05/15 600,000 457,102 1.11
Fannie Mae, TBA 4.500 2053/12/01 500,000 446,711 1.08
10 U.S. Treasury Bonds 2.000 2041/11/15 700,000 433,645 1.05
11 Fannie Mae, TBA 4.000 2053/12/01 500,000 432,266 1.05
Development Bank of Southern
12 _ 8.600 2024/10/21 7,500,000 396,127 0.96
Africa Ltd.
Turkey Government International
13 Bond 5.750 2047/05/11 600,000 393,202 0.95
Ecuador G t Int ti 1
14 BS:: or bovernment Internatfona 6.000 | 2030/07/31 757,300 386,602 | 0.94
15 er:znd Governnent International 4.875 | 2033/10/04 400,000 371,652 | 0.9
Philippines Government
16 R 9.500 2030/02/02 300,000 355,835 0.86
International Bond
Ni i | i 1
17 B(')gzr'a Government. Internationa 8.375 | 2029/03/24 400,000 351,780 | 0.5
Colombia Government
18 R 5.625 2044/02/26 500,000 351,605 0.85
International Bond
19 Israel Government Bond 1.500 2023/11/30 1,300,000 325,019 0.79
Mexi | i 1
20 Bzz;w Government. [nternationa 3.000 | 2026/12/03 | 6,322,840 317,249 | 0.7
21 |Petroleos Mexicanos 6.950 2060/01/28 542,000 307,337 0.74
Uruguay Government International
22 Bond 5.100 2050/06/18 350,000 304,106 0.74
23 Gaci First Investment Co. 5.000 2027/10/13 300,000 291,524 0.71
1 ional
2 2222 Government. [nternationa 5.625 | 2028/01/17 300,000 200,831 | 0.70
25 UBS Group AG 2.593 2025/09/11 300,000 289,369 0.70
Egypt Government International
26 Bond 6.375 2031/04/11 500,000 286,745 0.69
Hungary Government International
27 Bond 5.250 2029/06/16 300,000 283,376 0.69
1 ional
28 ;z;ga" Government. [nternationa 7.500 | 2029/01/13 300,000 280,046 | 0.68
29 |Greensaif Pipelines Bidco Sarl 6.129 2038/02/23 300,000 278,801 0.67
Turkey Government International
30 Bond 4.875 2043/04/16 450,000 275,317 0.67

87/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 10

2023 10

88/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
10
185,324,715.18 27,344,662 10.42 1,537
2014 10
11
123,239,694.32 18,184,017 9.01 1,329
2015 10
12
96,713,902.14 14,270,136 9.28 1,369
2016 10
13
91,001,776.00 13,427,312 9.30 1,372
2017 10
14
80,191,316.35 11,832,229 8.27 1,220
2018 10
15
82,959,195.11 12,240,629 8.75 1,291
2019 10
16
77,835,585.30 11,484,641 8.15 1,203
2020 10
17
76,225,848.74 11,247,124 7.92 1,169
2021 10
18
45,146,892.14 6,661,424 5.36 791
2022 10
19
41,239,944 .25 6,084,954 5.15 760
2023 10
2023 46,738,159.18 6,896,215 5.66 835
46,629,437.04 6,880,173 5.66 835
46,269,575.85 6,827,076 5.61 828
45,018,938.91 6,642,544 5.48 809
45,289,392.83 6,682,450 5.57 822
45,589,952.39 6,726,797 5.62 829
44,209,247.14 6,523,074 5.46 806
42,399,649.41 6,256,068 5.25 775
10 41,244,436.95 6,085,617 5.15 760
11 42,609,167.26 6,286,983 5.38 794
12 43,814,927.30 6,464,893 5.58 823
2024 42,681,915.99 6,297,717 5.48 809
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10 0.72 106
11 0.72 106
12 0.72 106
13 0.72 106
14 0.72 106
15 0.72 106
16 0.72 106
17 0.72 106
18 0.72 106
19 0.72 106
2023 0.06 9
0.06 9

0.06 9

0.06 9

0.06 9

0.06 9

0.06 9

0.06 9

10 0.06 9

11 0.06 9

12 0.06 9

2024 0.06 9
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10
5.79
2013 11 2014 10 31
11
6.62
2014 11 2015 10 31
12
10.99
2015 11 2016 10 31
13
7.97
2016 11 2017 10 31
14
3.33
2017 11 2018 10 31
15
14.51
2018 11 2019 10 31
16
1.37
2019 11 2020 10 31
17
6.01
2020 11 2021 10 31
18
23.23
2021 11 2022 10 31
19
9.51
2022 11 2023 10 31

100
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10

702,030 4,027,591 17,792,705
2013 11
2014 10 31 (702,030) (4,027,591) (17,792,705)
11 454,310 4,570,081 13,676,934
2014 11
2015 10 31 (454,310) (4,570,081) (13,676,934)
12 417,790 3,671,475 10,423,249
2015 11
2016 10 31 (417,790) (3,671,475) (10,423,249)
13 650,730 1,292,685 9,781,294
2016 11
2017 10 31 (650,730) (1,292,685) (9,781,294)
14 903,690 088,502 9,696,482
2017 11
2018 10 31 (903,690) (988,502) (9,696,482)
15 461,020 680,003 9,477,409
2018 11
2019 10 31 (461,020) (680,093) (9,477,409)
16 616,600 548,637 9,545,372
2019 11
2020 10 31 (616,600) (548,637) (9,545,372)
17 1,095,980 1,019,409 9,621,943
2020 11
2001 10 31 (1,095,980) (1,019, 409) (9,621,943)
18 102,810 1,303,543 8,421,210
2021 11
2002 10 31 (102,810) (1,303,543) (8,421,210)
19 92,150 498,725 8,014,635
2022 11
2003 10 31 (92,150) (498,725) (8,014,635)
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USA
USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank Secrecy
Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10 476
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100
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5,000 1972 Exchange
Control Act 1972 BMA
90
75
100
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12
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2021 11 2022 10 31
2022 11 2023 10 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2024 31
147.55
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2023 10 31

2023 10 31

18 3

41,331 6,098

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

36 5

0 0

0 0

41,385 6,106

0 0

0 0

0 0

36 5

24 4

3 0

17 3

65 10

145 21

41,240 6,085

18 3

39,008 5,756

41,240 6,085
8,015

5.15 760
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2023 10 31

44,104 6,508
0 0
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13,0008 due 01,30,/ 3006 e =

Domésican Republic International Bond

5.300% due 01212041 4w e

5. 500% due 02/22/2029 s s

5.950% due 010252027 i o

6000 duw 02/22/2033 i o

6 A00% due DEMS/2045 g oo

6.850% due 01/27/2045 8 umuu i

9, 7500 due 06,/05,/2026 Uy o

11.250% duo 09/15/2035 6200 s

13.625% duwe 02/03/2023 200 1

k3 =D RREAN 2

(LRI 52,297
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HEEE FriE
L i e a] [R5 e

1.7%
Pl B Sk
Eewadar Governmesi lstarnationad Bond
0.000% cue O7/31,/2030 5 26 ] 5
2.500% due 07/31,2040 210 71
3.500% due D7/31/2035 660 253
G.000% due 07/31,/2030 T5T i
E=ST Fafil 718
(PR 51,058

25%

P )
Egypi Govesnmant Internationad Bend
63T cue 04112031 EUR 300 287
TUB15M due D5/29/2032 5 400 230
7.903% due 02/21/20458 400 204
B.500% due 01312047 300 157
BATSH due 05/25/2050 300 160
=UT AN 1,038
(IR 61,5911

El Sahvador Gevarnmenl |sternatisnal Bond

7.125% oue 00/20/2050 200 116
7.625% due 09/21/2034 50 34
9.500% cue 077152052 150 111
Tt Pt m

Republic of Ghana International Bond [b]

0,000 due 040072025 H0a K
7.625% cue 05/16/2022 200 B
8.125% pue 03262032 300 127
B.625% due 040072034 00 B&
B.750% sk 03/11/2061 400 167
M=t 543
(R FRIEE 51,267

FTF=7 08

b 1]

Fortuna Star BYI Led,
3.950% due 10,/03/2025 EUR 100 &5
Airport Authosity
A.875% due 01/12/2030 5 200 152
FRaN 757
(S s26)
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HFEEE i
{FuA FEE)
MM Enargetika 2ri
7.500% cue 06/09/2028 & 200 s 200

Pl s 10
Hungasy Goversmmnt International Band
1.625% due 04/28/2032 EUR 2

o

21

g

173
153

:
2
g
g
I LT
g

157
1,068

¢
:
3
:

425009 cue 05/21,/2036 163 11

L]

3.250% cue 017152030 200 168
A Firdt 256
(bR S350

Fraaport Indosmsia PT

5.305% chue 04/14,2032 00 178
Indunesia Asahan Aluminium PT

5.450% due 05/152030 1o 185
Partamins Persors PT

6.500% due 11)07/2048 00 168
Parusataan Perssrgan Persero PT Perusabaan Listrik Negam

16,1500 cue 05/21/2048 00 170
A ¥ FALT &l pre}

69273 due 02/19/2027 1m 155

TA A7 Bl 155

(R 5163

Levinthan Bond Lid

6. 125% cue 06/30,2025 o 185

PP T

leranl Govesnmant Bond

150005 due 11/30/2023 IS 1,300 3%

lzmal Govesnmant International Bond

5.000% due 10/30/2026 EUR 500 528
=
038
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HEEE L

{4 Wi (R 1rd]
Ml By 1
Ivory Goast Gevernmant Intarnational Bond
5. 7500 due 12/31,/2032 5 )3 5 254
665 due 03222048 ELIR 100 71
= b T —A-E 376
(LR ILEE sa17)
PR
ey = 1 8ond
T.875% cue 07/28/2045 5 00 5 217

BB00% due D1/28/2027 ELIR 100 104
V=i, Fo FANREH 104
(I sl

1
AU
Jorden Governmant Intereational Bond
7.375% due 104102047 5 200 152
1.5000% cue 01/13,2029 300 2RO
EFE e ) 43z
(AR 502

1.2%

13%
KazMunayDes Natiosal Co. J5C
5.375% due D4/24,2030 00 17
5.750% cue 047192047 200 143
Tangitchaveoil Finance Company International Lid
3.250% cue 081502030 0 150
B e S AT8
(PR IEE 5578

0.3%
e Lh )
Rapublic ol Kenya Govesnmant internatienal Bond
5. 30083 gy 01,/23,2034 00 137
r=THMN 127
(B s20m
0.1%
Ve TR
Lebanon Govarnment [sarnatiseal Bond
B.250% due 05/17/2034 (o) 700 a7
Lt il a1
(AR )
2 1_‘\.

PRI 2.1%
Chils Eluctricity Lux MPC Sarl
G.000% cue 01/20/2033 0 154
Groansail Fipelines Bideo Sarl
6. 19% cue 02/23/2038 300 e
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HEEE L
(FEk (FHs)
Gusra Norts Sarl
5.158% due 06/15,/2034 5 177 5 150
Patrorio Luxembsurg Trading Sarl
6.125% cue 06/05/2026 200 150
Unigel Luxembsurg 5.4
B.750% chee 10/00,/2026 200 72
Ao e SAN ] 85
(LR $1.07T)
106
KBaranah Capital Led.
4 876% cdue 06/01,/2033 100 185
Patroms Capital Lid
3.404% due 04282061 200 118
Patromas Enengy Canada Ltd
2 112% due 030232028 Fivi) 173
- L= TN A
(R s504)
Comision Federal de Elnctricidad
6 2E4% due 027152052 0 152
Su Cazita 5.4, da LV,
96200 due 06/27/2043 {b) MXN 3512 o
Patroless Maxicanos
6. 350% due 02/12/2048 5 13 118
5950 cue 01282060 32 307
TUR500 cue 01/23,2050 254 157
10,0008 duwe 02/07)2033 200 177
Sithes Latinoamedics SAS de C.V.
S.ATEN cue 04042032 Fati) 168
1,080
YL
Meuzice Goverssmnt International Bead
2.7500% due 11/27/2031 (c) BN 231 109
3,000 due 130032026 (¢) 6303 n7
5.750% due 10/12/2110 5 100 154
GED
ARiafht 1,660
(KBS 2578
0.6%
MO B %
OCF 5.4
5.125% due 06/23,/2051 00 129
Py a .
Meroeco Gevarnment lmarnatizeal Bond
A.000% due 120152050 M0 119
oy afi 48
(PRI s30T
0.5%
Pl TN
Humibis Govermmant Intemational Bend
5.250% due 10429/2025 200 150
FreTran 180

(R s200
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HEEE P
INE Properiy BV
LATEH due 100082026 EUR 160 EUR
Prazus N¥
32574 due D1/15/2027 s 00 5 176

pid]

P S ay
Rapublic of Angola Via Avanis 1 BY
10,263% dua 12,/07,/3023 E ] E
7 S 738
(LR sas1)
B0I Finamca BY
75000 due 03/16/2027 EUR 300 269

Rigesia Goversement International Bend

7.143% due 02/23,/2030 5 300 242

B.2500% due D5/28,/2051 100 1a1

B 375% cue 03/24/2029 400 352

B.747H cdue D1/21,2031 00 173
[0

A = W T M 1,177

(R 41,086

0.3%

Vi L

Horih Macadonia Governmant Intemational Bond

6, 960% due 03/13/2027 EUR 100 167

dEwd F=TREAH 17

(R % 106

1.1%
R B BWLY

56259 due 014172028 3 300 291
65000 due D3/08,2047 200 175
Ar =g 458
(LS sa71)

1.0%
P BN
Pakistan Goverseant Inteenational Bend
TATS% due 03/31,/2036 300 150
BATSH due 04/08/2051 500 245
AL F 35
(IR sa03)
Barapueris Intarnacional de Tocusen 54
5.125% due 08/11,/2061 0 115
Auteeidad del Canal de Pasara
4.9500% due OT/25/2035 (g] 0 176
Basco Nacional de Panams
2.500% cue Of/11,/2030 00 143

167/437



EDINETOOOO
O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

2 1
6 F

2023 10 31
HEEE L
AT [§ & L]
s 8h
Panama Gewernmest Isternational Bond
43009 cuae 04/29,2053 5 300 5 181
4,500 cue 01/15/2063 H0 119
64009 cue 02/14,/2035 300 184
484
S G4
(KL 81,328
0.5%
FF U s
Paragusy Gevernman Intermational Bead
47009 due 03272027 3o 191
58500 cue 08/21,2033 00 185
SAIITA AN 376
(LR IR $305)
2.7%
i 1 5
ALICORP SAA
6. 875% cue 04/17/2027 FEN 800 200
Baneo de Cresito del Poru 5.0
4,6500 cue 09/17/2024 &00 151
InRedail Consumes
3.250% due 03/22(2028 5 M0 168
Patrobses def Pore 5.4,
5.625% cue 06)/19,2047 300 110
&
L L
Peru Government inisrnational Bond
3.230% cue 07/28/2121 200 102
3.600% due 017152072 300 171
T3
~h—fl 902
(RN 41,235
1.I:'-‘1
bl B §F:
Philippines Gevarnmes Isternaticnal Bond
2.950% due 05052045 300 184
3. 2008 due 0706 2045 20 126
9.500% due 02,/02,/2030 300 354
4l Eal ESH
(B $054)
b SN
Bank Gospodarstwa
6. 250% cue 10/31,2028 200 202
Pofand Government Inlernational Bond
AATSH due 100042033 400 3rn
5. 5000 cue 04,/04/2053 10 177

i
:
@

168/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2 1
6 F

2023 10 31
HEEE L]
{4 Wi Uit i

1] 1.4%
(Owtar Enargy
1375% cue D8/12,/20265 L] 00 s 177
3.125% due 07/12,/2041 300 188
3.300% due D7/12,/2051 300 184
A F—n&l i 558
(AR $778)

1.6%
Vg s 0
Remania Gevarnmeni Internatiseal Bond
2.875% cue D4/13,/2042 EUR 300 125
4.625% due 04/03,/2045 250 156
6. ATS% due 09/18/2033 M0 208
T.625% due 01/17/2053 5 150 148
A—w=T&K B11
(R a7

B.2%

vy e
Rezsia Gowermmant Intermational Bend
1.850% due 11/20/2032 EUR 300 53
o T L]
(PR s2a1)
Sawdi Arablan 03 Co.
1625% due 11/24,2025 5 200 183
3.500% cue 114242070 400 136

Sawdi Governemant International B ond
45000 due 10/26/2046 300

216
FOITIET AN 0]

0.6%
b 10
Sanegal Gowarnmesd International Bond
4. 750% due 03/13,/2028 EUR 300 183
&.250% due 05/23/2033 4 20 158

AR 142

-
4
g
g
]
g
&

|2

Anglofiald Askanti Holdings PLE
3.7500 due 10401,2030 0 158

Davalopment Bank of Sewtharn Alries Lud.
BBD0 cue 10/21,/2024 {1} ZAR 7500 306
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HEEE L]
(i R I
Eshom Holdings SOC Lid
4. 304% due 07/23/2027 5 200 4 176
6. 350% due 08/10/2028 300 2712
BAS0 gy 08102028 300 190
Sazol Financing USA LLC
B.7500 due 05/03,/2029 M0 160
1,382
Pl e EL
Sewth Alriea Govarnmaent Internatiosal Bond
5. 7500 cue 09/30,2049 s 400 5 261
71.300% cue 04/20/2052 o 156
10,5008 due 12/31/X006 ZAR 13,200 TE4
1181
W77 0 HERM 1,563
(MR 83,006
5K On Co Led.
5. 375% due 05/11,/2026 ] 200 158
Loy 188
(R s20m
. : 1.4%
b B S
5ot Lonkn Gevarnmes [sterastisnal Bond i
5.750% due Dd4/18/2049 400 210
6. 125% due 06,/03,/2025 200 104
BASE due 11/03/2025 100 105
75500 due 03282030 300 151
AUFhEN 510
(ECPHETEE 50010
UBS Growp A
2.593% cue 09/11/2025 300 289
A.450% due 0B/05,2025 200 157

el I e )

b L

Trinidad & Tobago Govarnment [starnational Bond

5.950% cue 01/14,2031 200 153
FUSH—F . b 153
(LTI $109)

0.2%
vEd R (5]
Tunisian Republic
5.625% due 027172024 EUR 100
Fa=OTal
(PRI EE s02)

C-
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HEEZE i
kil L] (WL
2.2%
Ml B &N
Turkwy Gewarnmani Intseational Bond
4.875% due 04/16,/2043 § 450 5 275
5.250% due 03132030 300 249
5.7530% due 057112047 500 353
k=i 7
(AR 81,175
NPC Ukranargs
BATEY% due 117092028 100 54
AU
Ukraine Governmant International Bend
GATEX due 05/21,2031 5 200 5 50
1.253% due 03/15/2035 300 77
T AT due 09252034 M0 51
7.7500% cue 09/01,2025 200 62
7.7500% due 09/00,/2026 100 9
77500 due 08/01,2041 43 18
BA%4% due 02/01,/2026 00 61
9.750% cue 11/01,2030 100 58
7

b E e 451

(U 51,220
75 7 i R 5%
4 '

Abu Dbabii Crade Dil Pipsling LG
4.600% cue 1100272047

Abu Disabsi Nationad Eneegy Co. PJSC
4.375% due 01/24/2029

First Abu Diabi Bank PJSC
4.7% due 060612028

Masdar Abu Dbaki Futurs Ensrgy Co.
A8T5% due 077252033

NBK SPCLid
1.625% cue 09/15/2027

_
Financa Departmest Government of Sharjah
4.375% cue 034102051

164

158

152

183

3 & & B B

177

&

122

e 5o R 1,026
(LR 51,078

200
52100 cue 08/11/2028 0 191
Ukraine Rsitevays Via Rail Capital Markets PLC

B8.250% cue 07/05/2026 200 106
4 FU A& 480
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TEEE T
i L] R 1)

T AN HERE12.1%

HEW 1.0%
Ao Oil Finance Trust Secies 20143
9. 7500 cue D1/06/2027 s m $ 2,
Rie Oil Finance Tzt Sories 2018-1
B 200% due 04,/06/2028 145 183
Retaz 2 & 7 Finance Ltd
U0 due 05/30,/2036 173 111
530
e—4'—2 - sSo J RO
BHP Trust
6.357H due 087152036 54 54
Citigroup Martgags Lean Trus
A 305% cue O3/25/2034 2 1
Dwwtscha Alternative A Securities Mortgage Losn Trust
5. 765% cue 08252037 (b) m 235
Lsminent Mortgaga Trust
5. 759% due 120252036 (b) 3 3
Morgan Stanley Morigaga Lean Trust
B.404% cue D6/25/2036 2 2
=
Fannie Mee, TEA [d]
35000 chee 12/01,/2053 300 250
4.000% due 120012053 500 432
45000 due 12/00/2053 500 447
5,000 chee 12/01,/2053 500 461
5.500% due 1200,/2053 G600 5649
2,158
HER R R W
17500 cue 08/15,/2041 300 s
2.000% due 114152041 700 433
3.250% cue 057152042 600 457
33755 due 08/15/2042 10 217
S B PO e
1.625% due 08/15/2029 100 B4
3.125% chue 08/31/2029 (g) 00 637
2,008
TAUhERES 4,580
(ER I $5,580)
0.7
Y s
Govemment International Bend
5. 100°% chue 06/18/2050 350 L)
ST A Al
(R sa53)
[
e (L)
Rapublic of Uzbekistan International Bend
3.900% due 104152031 300 151
o AR A K AR 151
(b 153
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WEER R
(F M&r (WL

Patroleos de Vensauela 5.2 (b
5.375% cue 04/12/2027 s 330 s a5
5.500% cue 04/12/2037 1,600 211
G00CR cue 117152026 300 £
N

Vanezuela Govmrnment Intermational Bond (B
6.000% cue 12/05/2043 400 62
7750k due 04/132024 200 141
8.250% cue 10/13/2024 150 2%
9.000% cue 05/07/2049 200 %
500 o8
353
857

Lambia Govertmant Intetnationsl Bend

8.970% due 07/30/2027 (b} 200 123
Fr T i 123
(R 100

Fannie Mas

5.201% due 1100072023 (2] 500 500

Ausiralin snd Bew 2oalund Banking Grosp Ltd.

38500 cue 11002023 NED 29 17

Bank of Nova Scatia

408005 due 11/00,2023 CAD 23 17

A B30 cue 1100,2023 5 15 15

NP Paribazs Bank

28200 due 11700,2023 560 14 10

3.3300% cue 11/00,2023 RO® a7 9

38500 due 11/00,/2023 NED 10 &

G308 due 11/00,2023 AR 23 1

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

0, 3700) cue 11,/012003 i 10 o

4.830% due 11/00,/2023 3 1 1

Chtibank N.A.

4.830% due 11/00/2023 65 65

DBS Bank Ltd

4 B30 cue 11/00,2023 56 56

DB Bank ASA

2.950% due 11/00,/2023 SEK &0 5

HSEC Bank

282009 cue 11/01,/2023 5GD b [

JPMorgan Chasa Bask NA

4. 830% due 11/00,2023 5 118 119

MUFG Bank Ltd.

(0. 3708%) e 11/01/5023 ¥ 100 1

Swmitama Mitess Banking Caep.

(0.37065) dise 11/01,/3023 617 4

4 B30 cue 11,/00,2023 5 7 7

Sumitome Mitssi Trust Bank Ltd.

{0.3706) duse 1140171023 ¥ 2443 16

48305 due 11/00,2023 5 152 152
57
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BEEE il
L EA (W)

12 2405 dee 11/0272023 HUF B2.000 5 227

12,249% due 11/09/2023 (d) £2,000 226
453

AEEMEMwos

{0.2:905) o wees 0,10/ 2024 ¥ 10,000 6

{0, 1700 lusn 0213720024 10,000 B
132

e E AN 1,592

(E AR 51,555

AR B 105 s 4108

(LRSS 558,977

AT U AT T

D 0.3% 1]

(RN 2 -2 7 A R 0160

FOEmEERCE: L TR, e I2,863)

R s PRFTETT

P A7 S e S

* HomER, TRERRCEEREA ZhEEREEERLTVOI LML E,

ol AOUEER. BRILTSAML. #0HSEE, AEORF EORETEER T,
b SR RTT o A R,

]l ESOHEENLS -7 R L TR ATV S,

W RETHEREER,
il g, MMETOMED § 8T,
i BRI EE B «

e TR E MR EHS
e e (A/B.%) (B89 BfNE B B
Development Bank of Sautherm Alrica Lid, B B00% 10/20/2000  10/07/2021 S s 5 39 096

e WEE # RIS
HEN mAEFR"  (AS8.74) (A7 B9 A" Fhdy
EPS S.420% 12T 2023 11092023 5 [(B40) 5 (=20
500G 5.400% O FRS2023 TBDME (F04&) ;?I!E
# L [ 11,3521
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6 F

2023 10 31

HEREHEA & LT EEnGMECmE

MEORTHEEE
Frsrlm A b
HBEEF
p ] naET A& S E E10:] i

LA

JE NI P 1 a $ o 5 a5 friy 3 {1
s a {640] o o {E40)
LRGN $ [ $ [T [ [t R 1,352
fEANEH % 0L & H40) & [ mz 3 11,3521
B LREEET e D R 0 1,357

4 s L URE O 00 B R 5 o R

BT, 20235000 31 HBES, HIFERC LS BTHDS O SR TS or s LW (SE) ShEfosBTe s,
il MR AME, TEOwAS-MHOSNIIE-SE, SERENITE FAORAEREREEaTVE,

LM B WL firdsker
s A BIliohded S0 e TOMoRe  HREN  =saf—P
i _ S e Soedhdy ML SRt MRS (S =M
Fu—etn S 25— 1R
BPS 5 o % [sa0y % o % g $ {B20] % [ (3
506 o {712} 0 [:] {12 730 15

A L UL Dl O S TS % 0§ nasn & a3 [

a0 AL BT RS, RRHFOTFHRARCZeSY FAaT, MEFRREAT M T Aok, FERAMIL, SR SACEE, 20O TWE LIRSS LS L
W&tz Eith &,

S R L R,

Mo e e o e REL, BBV ERRETRYO VR RS SR (HVR o) RS N, AR L TR 0 A0 R R S 0 e e e
11— L R e W F S — e A Y =B O S R S IRIMeAE BOTIR SRS, A Y- lRRARE T SEmEE T, BRI S
ROEE TedF—iRRR LBz E,

¥ ()
Eisri-Bobl 5-Year Mabe Dicembser Fulures Short 1272023 & 3 7 [ o 5 {11
Eure-Bund 10-Year Band December Fulures Shoe 12/2023 7 21 o 3]
LS, Treasury 2¥ear Note December Fulures Long 1242023 L] 18] 0o {1
LIS, Treasuny 5-Year Mote Détember Fulures Shadt 1272003 32 57 3 (1]
ULE, Treasury 10-Year Note December Futures Lang 1272023 54 {212) o 18]
St e [ (1351 [ 3 4 [0

mEmd  @me £EBp/ _ EOEND
L A CEMeRl (AR PERA g () Wi AR
COX.EM-38 Indey {1.000%) 1My 5 ] 5 7] 5 (10} S 0 5 ()
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6 F

2023 10 31
E2 it | W SwsEE | EREERE
o s ot Re Bt g [ = MmEE i Pt o) j.1 A
B 3-Month ZAR-S0EOR 5.550% 11/30,/2024 AR 5,000 4 14 5 14 5 o5 113)
i, &-Manth CZK-PRIBOR 4.611% OB06, 2028 oIk 10600 {2 (7 1 o
i H-Manth ELIRIBOR 3.3700% WWOSI028  EUR 100 1 1 o a
LA B-Month EURIBDR 34508 10202025 100 1 1 o a
degrm G-Month ELIRIBOR 3.250% 03/20/2029 1,000 ] 7 2 o
Zhene G-Month EURIBOR 30000 03/20/2034 00 & 5 o 1)
S 6-Manth FLN-WIBOR 54550 o1/10/2028 PLN 400 15} {5 o a
2 Gi-hMonth PLE-WIBOR 5.4900% 01/10,/2028 300 (4} (4} o o
L8 BRL-CON-Compoynted 11.828% 01/02,2025 BRL 1,800 24 [2) o ]
=ik BRL-C-Compaunted 12.220% 01022025 3,500 [ F4] 4] 1 @
L BRL-COI-Compoundid 13.190% 01/02,2025 BOO 2 {2} o 0
2 BRL-C0-Compounded 13.215% 04)03,/2025 BO0 2 (2 o o
2 BRL-LEI-Compounded 13.400% 015022025 1,500 ] L] o a
in BRL-COI-Compaundid 11.415% oL/04,2027 1,700 {3 (El] o o
i BRL-CON-Compounced 11.453% o4 0T 1,000 {25 {1 o a
L BAL-CO-Compaunded 11.620% 01,/04,2027 400 o o o a
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities (cont. Detaker 31,2023
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Statements of Operations (cont) i Ervdedl Detabad 31, 2023

Uimad, o Bockdndk| Fond | Fumd @

Invesiment Inceme;

(1! 14,38 a 3 53 TM
18 M [

= 14 85 ] 54, il

1 1 . N K

[ m N e
3 & | ] a
T "8 1 1 0

Het Imvestment Income [Expersel Pl 2] 13,404 LT ] 45 16

MNet Realized Gain fless):

r e SEAE o-featal

2197 [
e et 56 ] i
s Daen i o) | VETT 0
et Change in Unreshzed Appreciasion {Depreciationk:
v TN B I ST 4538 a.4m 1 mg
1] B ah i 0
W i e g 1] i 11,600
m 7 4
LEEL] ! E
Mt Chms [Lemsd | B 10T 7174 w1 b,
Net Ircreate [Decrease] in Net Assets Huul'ling iram Dperatians ¥ 4 556 3 135 L BT 510 | 2R ] Fr)
Feeesgn tames i 1 I
A pora b 4 mory et 56l Semouey resndng b lem 1han o [hoomysd
e i e s g il dersa l Bupi | Dl 31 5

193/437



Statements of Changes in Net Assets (cont)

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Encded Debaber 1, D023

A et b Drindietel

Increase iDecresse) in Net Assees fram:

Dperations:
W rarverarrman o (espanen]

FNCT UL High
ol Frtagy PO Werkd
il Hghucas

1 6] 15 31
252 46TE T 4 78
ustnbunons 1o Lnitheldars:
Osmbwsers 1354 (5,904
Mk N 1.7&0 U T
M4 T 12 3 Mid i
A I [A0F i ™
I NiA M
HM T
MM I MY
m Mk
m i [ M1
4 Hea i 101 M
otal s ¥ Al Hii % 4500 B Ak
[Furd Unit Trarsactions:
N et noeeen (decrases] ransdtng Sam Fond und rancechone” 4 1%l I3
Total Increass (Decreassl in Net Assers 2 [Eilg ] a1 [LRES] 15
et Assets;
Bagenineg ol vear ar.m, 53 800 E L4 540 5147
End of yaar ] 14 15 0 006 o M2 L85 3 41 740
B rard Lt o g 1ol ) D] B el g D bl 1y i | bt
* St nate 12 i ihee Riobes bo Frvmocd 53 mement
™ Fovcx e Al [ FU00 0 Rty |7 XOET ettt A
o P | e 31

L e ]

194/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGAN ZATION

Each Fund discussed in this report (=ach a "Fund™ and collectively, the "Funds ™). which dsoindiedes each diass of units of that Fund {each a "Class™ and collectivedy,
the "Classes™), is 3 series trust of AMCO Bermuda Trust 0 (the “Trust™), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda as a multisenes st
prurpan? 0 3 rust deed eocuted by Winchester Global Trust Comparny Limted on Decernbes 1, 2003 (36 arnenided froem Sime 1o e, the "Trust Deed”). Efiective a5
of the dese of butiness (Eastem tme) on Seplember 29, 2017, Maplis Trustee Senvices (Bermuda) Limited (the “Trustee ™) was appointed as trusbes of the Trus
Padfic neestment Management Company LLC (CPRACOT, the "Manager™ of the "irmestment Adviter™) is the sponsor of and was reponsible fior siruchuring the Tnsst

TR Trist B sulfect I'-i-';l_lln’.‘. 0N and Supenmsion a5 prosided for in the vestment Fands At 2006 and related mles I'r_".al,ll'.l_i 1o skandard funds

The terms of thes Trost Deed confer upon te Trustes, with the consent of the Manager, te power, in the future, 1o estabilsh funtker funds i sddtion 1o the Funds
curren®y in operation as of e date of this report

Reterences to unitholders (each, 2 "Unitholder”, and oollectively, the "Unitholders™) in, or units {the "Units™) of (or an investmentin), the Fund shall mean Unitholders
o the Fund wha hold Units, or Classes of Units {32 applicablel, which are attrbutabie 1o that Fend

Thie Fusnuds prisserited in this report ane 1 ted bilow

PINACI] Baramuias Bank Loan Fund & 0fherend ondy 0 bunck et "Fund of Funck ™ coaciure, & debned n the rubs of e boommm et Tres Asamsos, |
P& Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B Japn, or i my o pmdcion

RN 0 Bermudas Bark Loan Fund €

AL Barmeda bgome Find

FIRACD Biermgcds Dhyrm. ¢ Mufa-Agoa Sarimgy Fund
PYACD Bermuda Lows Dorpseon bncome Fund

P Ewmgeng Bond [ncom Fand ||

PN D Fmmegeng Bond Incore Fiend [0

PR Brermusda Bank Lowns Fand i Do ory 10 coher Fark s corve i an underbang ivesmerd vihicks b such Fundk
PN Bermads Emaegeng Madwns Bond Furd M)

PN Barmuaty ikl Aggregam Ex-Jupen Bord Fund M)
FINACD Brermucdy brccane Fund A}

PMCD Barmasts U5 High Yiekd Fund M)

PN Barmt U5 Hagh Vel Fund 1 {0}

PR 0 Fmed ey Bord | e e (M)

PN Bermuda Emargng Masiwis Bond Fend 11 DSered] 10 Japaress and ofer nvem
M) Biermeady Global Aggregus Ex-Japan [fen Haskged Bond furd
PR Barmeusdly Global Aggregam Ex-Japan Bord Fund

PURCD Bermeady brcgmn Fund A™

FORCID) Brermusds Meonngage Opporurties Fund™

PN Coorw Irneomw Corporaee Boad hund 00107

PRACD 1 5 Bigh Yok MereH eckgedd Fard 1|

PMCD1.5 Bigh Yadd Fund B

PRACD. 5. Bigh Yok Smategy Fund

PRCD L5 Righ Yald Smabegy Fared [l

PIRACID World High lncome ™ * ™

PN Bt g Bord Efevfdigad] beoome Fund Diered ol 10 Fund of Fondk type Jagurece ivestmind Bt onganged onder d L comoseming et iment
PEMC] B g Bord rcome Frend Tris i and drews menl Company of Jipan " Lapacese bnesiment Toss”) whoh vel olier thee Unk o e poblo m
FRCOL 5 Bgh Yaedd YerrH edged) Fond Japan wrtter by wary o puble afienng or prvane places et a0 which ane managed by FIMOD Japan Lid or oifer
FIRCO U5 Bigh Yadd Fund i ilir fcenced vt Mt managee int compioes and sbject 10 the noles of de Invesment Tnz

Benriapon, Japm

= R P Ol g T G o PO et o S’ A 2 e S I o TR TR T SR R T e, e IV e o PO By S el o7 e ol T R T K AT
Sy NN FIET B o ADE Sjemanle bocrew Fad A o e oty i b Pl 55 it 0 s iy it medt bl i cach Py B VA0 Adameryl i e B E Y Moyl it o PO B il i Pt iy 85 0 ol
ey i e by uaty o pullc ¢ Seeg trpugh & a0 lipe and vy o o Bl b gl oo f S i optoe 2 iy Wi

= i o Y gl Cilrs P sy e e (et iy il e el RO S

== D ST er i o el L ot ooy 2 g By iy o pkic 8o Shopaph § et et o 3 b bandong v oy 8 Jipan, el ey e o S i3 e ineto o i Sroses o e Mg

B34 TR n T v B S by woy o sekle sty theagh & fardari # g

2.SIGHIFICANT ACCOURTING POLICIES

The following is & summarny of significant accounting policies consktently followed by the Tngstin the preparation of its finandial statements in conformity with
AounEng prindples genesally socepted in the United States of Ameeica (U S, GAAP™) Each Fundis reated a5 an investment compasy under e reporting
requirements of LS GRAP The preparation of finan dal statements in socordance with U5 GAAP requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions. hat
affect e reponed amounts of assets and liabdines and disdosure of conin gent asets and Babdies at the dake of the Binandal statements and the reported amuns
of inreases and dédeases in net asseks from operations during the reporfing period  Actual results could difer from those estimates

e Fogaen | Dowber 0, 2053 fod
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{a) Azquirad Funds The Trustes and Manager may apply 2l or a portion of
the assets of () FIMCO Berenisda Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCO Bernuds Bank
Lean Fend B and FIMCO Bermisda Bark Loan Fund C; i) FIMCO World High
Income; fii) PIMCO Barmida Global Aggregate Ex-kapan (Yen-Hedged) Bond
Fund and FIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-lapan Bond Fund; (v FIMCO
Bermuda Income Fund A and PRACO Bermuda Income Fund D) &) PIMCO

s High 'r:e!dn{'r'eu'n-l-la\!{.l&,ﬂ'- Fland, PIMCO LS. High Yield Fund, PIBCO L%
High Yeeld Strateqy Fund, and PIMCO LS, Hgh Yield Sirateqgy Fund 11; (w)
PIMCO U5, High Yield (fen-Hedged) Fund 1l and FRACO LS. High Yield Fund
I; (wifh FMCO Emenging Bond (Yen-Hedged) inoome Fund, PIMCO Emerging
Bond income Fund, FINCO Bvenging Bord Income Fund [l and PIMCO
Emeercyneg Bomd drcorme Fund 11| (each refémed oo hisein as & "Fund of Funds™
of " Acquening Furd ™, whidh imvedts in other Funds) 00 the respective ced it of
(1) PIMCO Besrucla Bank: Loan Fand (M: (i) PIMICO Bermuds Emenging
Marksts Bond Fund (M); §h PIMCO Bermuds Global Aggregate Bx-lapan
Bond Fund (M); {v) PIMKCO Bemmasda incame Fund (M) (4 FIMCO Bemisca
L5 High Yield Fund (M (vik FIMCO Bermuda U5, Hgh Yield Fund 18{M),
{vii) PIMCO Emerging Bond income Fund (M) {refemed to herein a5 an

" Acqured Fund(s)”. Any assets so applied will be held in such Acquired
Fund{s) a if received directly. Where gssets are 50 applied, the Acquired
Fund{s) wall recond the B of Lnits i e releaant Aoquining Fund at the
e price per Unit of such Units and will repurchase such Units at the
repunchate price per Unit of aech Units at the Gme of repunchase. Accondingly,
the abdity of the Acquiring Fund 1o achieve its investment cbjective wil

depend wpan the sbility of the applicable Acquired Fund 1o adhieve it
Ievesirnent olyective. There Can be no Jssurance that te imestiment obysdie
of the Aoguired Pund will be achisved

Reatios shoswen in the Fnandal Highlights do not indude expenses of the
Acquired Fund(s) See Note 9, Fees and Expenses, for further infomaton
reganding fumd fees, as applcable

fb] Securities Tramsections and Investment Income Se0unilies Mansactions
are recorded as of the rade date for inandal fepoting purposes. Secuniies
purchased or sold on & when-fssued or delayed-delhvery basis may be

seftled beyond a standard settisment pericd fior the security after the trade
date, Fealized gains and losses from sequrities sold are recorded on the
wdentified cost basis [vigend income is recorded on the ex-ghidend date,
et certain dvidends from Bofegn seaurnitied where the ex-dvidend date
oy b patsed, whidh ane reconded a5 so0n a3 a Fund i3 indomned of the
ex-chvidend date. Interest indome, adjusted for the acoretion of dscaunts and
amcdtization of premiums, s recondad on the aoonual basts Fom settement
diane, with e exception of sequities with @ fonwand staming effecive date,
whife indeest ancome 15 recodded an the acoua basis from effective date. For
cofnveible Securinies, premiums 3mnbutable to the comesrson featunt e ot
amortized Estimated tax liabiliges on certain foreign sequnities are recoeded
on an acoua basis and are reecied &5 components of inberest income of net
change in unrealzed appredation (depreiation) on investments on

the Statements of Operations, as appropriate Tax Eabities realized 25 4
result of sich security sales are reflected a5 3 component of net realized gain
(lorss) on Evestments on the Statements of Operations. Faydown gains and
losses on mortgage-related and other assetbadked sequmities, if ay, ane
reconded i components of mienest incorme on the Stabements of Operatons

[rebt clfigations many be placed on non-aocual states and relaned intenest
incorne may be redaced by ceasing current accnuals and writing off interest
receivable when the colfection of &1 or  portion of inferest has beoome
doubifid based on consistently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
remired from non-sooual status when e issuer resumes interest TN 5
or when collectability of inferest is probable A debt obfigation may be
granted, in cenain sityations, 2 contractual or non-contrachual forbearance for
interest payments that are expecied to be paid after agreed upon pay dates

if Cash and Foreign Currency  The finanaial statements of each Fund are
presented wsing the curency of the primany economic emaronmentin whidh it
cperanes (he “lunctional cusrency”™). The funcional aarency for each of the
Funis is listed in the below tabde

The markei values of foreign seounities, comency holdngs and other assets
and Eabdities are trarslated into each Fund's funciaonal currendy based on the
current emchange rates each butiness day. Purchases and sales of tecurities
and income and expense items denominated in foresgn arrendes, if any, are
trankated into eadh Fund's respective functional CUMenCy 31 the exchange
rate in effecton the ransackon dite. The Funds da not separatdy repoet the
effieds of changes in fondign exchange ranes Fom dubnges in markel prices on
seapites held Sudh changes s nduded in nel readided and net changes in
unreakzed gain of koss from Emeestments on the Statements of Operaticns

Ehe Funds may invest in foreign currendy denominated sequnties and may
engage i foreign oumency iransaciions elther on & spat {oash) basis at the
rate prevaiing in the currency exchange market at the time of through a
fonwand foredgn currency conftract Realized foreign axchange gains or losses
arising from sales of spot foreion cTendies, aurency gains of lgsses redlized
between the rade and settlement dates on seounties ransactions and the
difterenoe bebween the reconded amounts of diddends, interest, and foarign
wathholding taxes and the mctional currency equivalent of the amounts
actualhy receved of paid are Enchuded in el rediced gain of loss on foregn
Currengy ransactions on th Slatements of Operations, Net unnealized foreign
exchange gains 2nd Ksoes agisng from changes in Toregn exchange rates on
foreign denaminane] a5ses and ligkalithes offrer Bian Bvestments in e0miges
Freded @t the endd of the reportng period are induded i nel canges in
unrealkized apprediation or deprediation on foreign asmency assets and
liabilities on the Statements of Operations

The Mt Asset Viaue (THAYT) and 1otal renorrs of certain Funds (or Clagses
therecd, as spplicable) are pretented in the currency for which the N&V i
reporied (the “MAY arrency™) as detalled in eadh Fund's Offering
Memorandum (the "Crffering Memorandum ™). For the purposes of the
presentaton of the MAV and the 1013l renim in the NAV ourency, te
beginneng and endeg NAVS ane comeened using the peniod begrning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and distribufions are converted ysing the
exchange rate at the time of the distibution. See the folowing table for the
WA currency of each respective Fund

Fargticnad
Fend e WAV Coroarey L
FAMOL) Barsisda Blank Loae Fusd (M) 5 delly U5 dolw
FIMCID Bermasda Buank Loan Fusd &
. F 05 IS dely U5 delly
= JUPA B U5 dollw
] Jus Japraness gen .5 dolls
«  YUM Fapassc yen U dollw
*  Y0ED Ll U5 dolw
FHMCID Bermusda Bank Loon Fusd B
=  FRLD A pahon dollsr W5 dolls
= YA Japuenecs yen U5 dole
= YIEAY Japuatica yen U5 dollw
- T (MEH " Faperasm wen U5 dolly
= YRE" Japurensn e U5 dolls
= T[N Jagusen ven .5 dollw
FIMCD Bermuds Bank Loan Fusd C
» YOS Japten v U5 dola
PO Betreaida Chymame: Ml bAteont Summgy Fund
= JLF Japestecs wen U5 dolle
= 150 115 dolls I 5 dollsr
FIMDD Bormudy Erergrg Markeis Bosd Furd (W0 115 dellw 15 dollw
Bracea Fagae | Dowber 0, 2053 w
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Fuedl NAY G Functioml WAV E Fungtionsl
FIMCO Bamuda Emergng Markes Bond Fund B = J e yen U5 dolla
" mellEn Japans yen 115 diodlar . I npeytenn wEn 0.5 dolw
- Iret LIFY, Hudged Japanice yen L5 dollar . J[TRYY Lapaasn ven 1.5 dolly
:wm Eg;:ﬁﬁu i daparese yin F5. dolar mﬂm.t_'mi'.ﬂ-q[uﬁ;q'---'d il Fagsnens wen U5 dollur
i J it i a
:ﬁ:ﬂtﬂ Bermusdy Gobal Aggragnme Ex-Jagan Bond g U5 dallsr : -: E:il ﬂw:: :‘: t: ; d::i
FPIMCO Bearvapdy Glabal A goregas Ex.Japen Bend i S 15 dolse | MDD IS H;ﬁuld[fmwmfd Japecesn wen 1.5 dollat
Fued IM} L FIMDD U 5 High Yeld [Yen-Hedged) Fund Il Japereass yen I 5 doll
FIRICT Bastrmueda Income Fund SU5 U5 doliar L5 dollar FIMOD 115 Hegh: Yasld Fund Japmnesa yen .5 dollay
MG Betrruds lncorms Fusd & FIMO LS. Haah Yosd fund § .’:gprm iR .5 dolls
Ll dapaneyn 15 dollar FIMCD LS. Hgh Yidd Sranepy Fand
L] U3 dolist LES: dollsr - JUP Japearaey RN U5 dolw
L] Japanese yari 5. dollar . J UFY, Hedgadh Japasa yen L5 dolly
= Jjusm Japanes yen 5 dollar = Jisn” I3 dollx U5 diglar
LI kL] S dodist LES: dollsr - ¥ LIPT T W U5 sy
= MY Advieony Japanie yen 5. dollar = Y LIFY, Hedged) Japutesn yen U5 dolle
= OGS0 A doeend LS dellw 15 doller FIMCD U5 High Yisld Sz easpy Fand I
=  NUFM Japanese yn 15, dollar YD Japanesn yen 15 dollar
= D deparves yn b5 dollar = YEAL Japacssn yen U5 dolly
= NN USD U5 dofw 15 doltar e ¥ MIEH) Jogurscin e U5 ol
= PUMm Jupanee yan 5. dodar = Y[AN S wen U5 dollw
*  Ourn dapanee yven 1. dellar FIMCD Wodd High Incoms 115 deliy .5 dollw
= RUFN JBpanee yen 15, doftar * Tha Clacs wen lquidated dusng de repormng periad
" RSO L3 dedist L5 dolsr
L = LYY Japanese yei LS. dollar
= S0GD U5 dollw W5 dollar ) Multicless Dperatiens Each Class of 2 Fund offered by the Trust has
= SE0ED Japanese yan 15 dollar righits g he asses of the Fund equal 1o that of oher Classes of the same
= TUFY Japanise ym 15 dollar Fund, as applicable, except for spedfic assets and gains and Iosses designated
" l2OPm Japanese yen 1B, dillar to & Class redating o currency hedging operations. income, non=Class spealic
= Wush U5 dolim 15, dodar experies, and non-Class gpedhic redized and unrealized capital gaing and
. AU AR ) 1. dolar lsses are dlocated 1o eadh Class of Units based on the relative net assets of
= AEnr U5 doliat 5. dodler each Class of the respective Fund, as applicable. Class spedfic expenses
2l daparescs yen 5. dodwr currently indlude management, advsory. adminisiraghe, agency and
* YE Saim 0. doller dhamibution fies, where apolicable
= LY Japans yan 1E 5. diodlar
FIMCO Bermuds Income Fund ) i Distribution Palicy The Toll dwing 1able thows the sntiopated frequency
= NN U Banctrahan dollat 5 doller of distibutions fof each Fund Dismbuions from each Fund ray be dedased
Y (i Japanse vin 15 dollar and dswributed 1o Unitheobders only wpon the authorization of the Manager,
FALICO Bestrrusdla Lo Dt frcneme: Fuund which autharization may be withheld at the Manager's discretion
= BiusO U3 defly 15, dodar
FICT Barrusda I‘.hw];} I:lﬁ,:ev,u* Fund Declarwed and Pasd .I}IHIM'F
L] Irest LIFY Hdged] Japanese yen LES. dollar PRCT Besrruds Bank Loan Fend A
L] JUFY Japanese yn 15 dollar AL z
= VWICD Bevrrucds Bark Losn Fand 8
= Jqush J—— (15 dolie il efls
= (T ] US dollar 5 dollar PINCE Bievrriuda Bark Losn Ford G
FIMELD Bermuda U1 5. High Yarkd Fusd M} U5 dell 115 dollar PIMCO Barmeda Ircome Fend &
FAMLD Bairruds 5 High Yekd Fusd § (M) Lapsivse v 15 doller + fUm
FIMCO Cire lreome Cotparats Bosd Fund 2000-10 *  Flsh
= 5D U5 dol (15 dolar o b,
FIMCT Emesging Bond [FerHedgedt lcoms Fud | lapanse wen 15 dolar * JisD
FMCD Emergang Bond Income Fend Japanese yon LF 5. dollar «  RuUrn
FILICT Emarging Bond Ircame fend (M) U5 dollst 5. dollar * HEE
FIMCD Esergarey Bond Incarms Fand 0 K050
= JiAD Japanee yan 5 dofler =  SUPYW
L] JiBALY Japinese yen b5 dollsr . 55 ush
= JiCADY Jnparzeym 15 dollar « KU
= JiCHH Japanese v 1E5. doflar - A0SO
L] Japanese yen L5, dollas - ¥ LBY
= i ares e 1.5 dedlas N Y G
PAMCO Bermuda e Fund 0
Iraeral Fagoet | Dovber 20, 2003 o
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D lured aand Pald Manthly Cone )

FIMCD Beremudy Mor oags Dpsonusies: Fisnd
= JurFi

= JjusD

= g
PIMITT] Errvée g B [ Ver-Hadged] I noame Fund
FIMED Emengng Band bome fund
FRACD Emenging Bond Irceema Fend Bl
PIMLD Errvespnng Bond Irzoms Fusd 31
FIMCD U S High Yeid (Yen-Hedged) Fund
FIMOD 115 Hagh Yidd Fund
FIMOD L5 Hegh sl Swesegy Fand
FRMOD S High 'fadd S atagy fund B
FIMCD Word High Incorme

PR Bermesds I ncome Fand &

=  Oura
= RS
= S0

PRI Bermeda Dyrame: Kuta-Aeme Sraosgy Fend
PRI Bermuda broome Fund A
L P LM
= R LP
The Manager dees not sxpect 1o declene dntrbutions with reapect 1o thess
Funds |or Clisses thereal, i1 applic sbbe), but may.inis dscreisen, declare
and pay disteibstises o the Unithglders an eny me,
PIM D Berirasds Blank L oo Fusd L)
FIMOD Bersmusda B gang Marbets Bond Fund (W0
PRALD Bermoda Emerging Mlarkae Bend Furd §i
FIMCD Bermaicda Giobal Apgregete Ex-Japan (Yen Hadged) Band Fusd
FIMOD Bormuda Globd Aggregarie: Ex+Japan Bong Fund
FIMUD Bermada Global Aggregete Ex-Japan Bond Fund B
FIM OO Bermada [neome Fusd &

= K G
= M UPY Advmang
= MG Advmany)
= TUPN
= 2ot
= W En
= TUFM
FIMOD Bermuds o Fusd 8
PO Bermasdy Lowy Diaranen Inceme Fund
FAMCD B eremascin Mo roage Drsormusites Fund
= et LIPY Hedged)

FIMOD Bermuds LS Figh Yield fund (M)

FIMOD Germisds U5 Hegh Yol Fundd 111181

FIMOD Corn Irncome Coeparate Bosd Fund 2020-10

FIMAC Emengng Band ncoms Fend {k0)

FIMCOUS High Yiedd {Yen-Hadged Furd Il

FIMOD L3 High Yisld Ford B
* The Cless was bgudatnd dunng e reporong prod
** iy deirebiinoeee with raipeet 1 Claes U2 UFY) Ui of the Fored wall be declored in
sccondacs vt & lCwt sgreement haswren the Menagee snd the swetter i such Cles

Cistributions, if amy, will generaily be made from the relevant Fand's {or
(lass™s, if applicable) netimvestment income. in addition, the Manager may
authorize the payment of net realized capital gains avallable for dstnbuson
Advitional dsmbutions mdy be dedared 25 the Manbper deerms SDpropd e
Drstribunions paid with respedt bo any Fund (of Class tereod, 11 applicatie)
wall rechuce the NaV of such Fund (or Class heneod, if applicable). AL the
dsaretion of the Linitholders, cash distibutions from a Fand for Class thereaf,
if applicatde) may either be reinvested in additonal Units of a Fund {or Class
thereaf, ¥ applicable) or paid to & Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid mn the NAV currency of g Fund. Each Fund {or Clyss thereal, if
applicable) may declare further distributions if considered necessary in ceder
lomaintzin a reasonable level of dsiributions for 2 Fund {or Class thereof, if
applicable). In the event that here k5 inadequate net income and nef realized
capital gaing (o pay 4 detibution of 3 Fund (or Class thereod, if applicable)
redued bey the Cffenng Memorandum, the Manager may pay a di stribuSon
consissng of a portion of the capital of such Fund {or Class thereod, if
Fpplicable). Distributions not collected within siocyears from their due date
wall Lapse and wall accrue 1o the benefitof the relevant Fund for Class thereod,
if appbcatie)

1) lssue and Repurchese af Units “ubsequent to a Fund (or Class thereaf, if
applicable) commendng buseness, Units of each Rend {or Class thereol, il
applicable) may be issusd by the Manager on & continucos basis at the det
Aaset Value per Unit of that Fund (or Class heneod, i applicable) at the time
of wich issue, subject to the right of the Manager o its appointed agent, in
the scle discretion of the heanager, 1o iemporaily suspend gudh issue. Unless
Slated othenwise in the relevant '."thr:g Memorandum, for eadh Fund (or
Chass therecd, i1 applicable), the issue prce per Uit o such Unies wil be the
Het Asset Value per Unit determined on each Dealing Day calodated a5 58t
forth bedow unider ™ Determination of Met Asset Valee™; provided that, if a
request to purchase Units in a form acceprable to BEBH is nof received by BE&H
price 1o 12:00 noon (Eastem Sme), the issue price per Unit of the rebevant
Fumd {or amy Clacs thereof, if applicable) shall be the MNet Adsat Valus per Uinit
determined on the next Dealing Dy, In the case of repurchase of Linits or
terminaticn of the Funds in the Trostwhich are registered in Japan for direct
dstribution in Japan, the Undis of wsth Funds shall be repurdhased from
Linith obcdeers in cath. o repunchase in kind may be allowed in such Funds
Except a5 otherwise provided i the relevant Offering Memarandam, payment
of the repurchase price will be made by the Trustes of It sppointed agent by
bank transfer generaly within two (2) Business Days sfter the Dealing ey
upon which the repurchase notice 15 recsived, of deemed 1o have been
received, by BEH, dthowgh inder cenain droumstamces, payment may take
up to eight (8) Butiness Days after such Dealing Day. Unless stated othenyise
in the relevant Offering Memorandam, the Funds are not subject to
subscripSion of repurchase fees; provided, however, 3 distibutor appointed i
th ursdiction where 2 Fund is distnbuted may dharge subscription of
riepundhase feed in such amounts &5 agreed with the Manager and the
Trustes

Ig) News Aczounting Pronouncements and Regulatory Updates In Manch
2020, the Finandd Accountng Standards Board {"FASE)issued an
Accounting Standards Update {"ASU"), ASU 203004, Reference Rate Reform
(Topec &4:), which provides opsional guidance to ease the potential
Sooounting burden s tid with transioning dway from the Londn
Interbank Offered Rane (TLIEDR™) and other reference rates that ane expecied
1o e cscontnued. ASLN 2020404 is effective for certaan reference rate-felated
conract modifications. that eomimed during the period March 12, 2020
thecugh Decemnber 21, 2024 In Jangary 2001 and December 2003, FASE
Iisued ASL2021-00 and ASLE 202206, which indwdes addtionsl
anendments (0 Topic 848 Hﬁ}_}éll'-:ﬁll‘.n oG W.-'-‘,‘ -:-fa!uamg the
potential effect a discontinuasion of LIBOR could have on the Funds'
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irvestments and has determined fhatit is unlikely the ASU' adoption wal
hiave a material impact on the Funds' finandal statements.

I June 2022, the FASE 15wed ASL 2022403, Far Value Messurement (Tome
B2, whach afects aF entitees thathave iresimients i squily securites
rreasunied A1 far value that afe dubject ta 3 contrachedl sale restriction. The
amendments in ASL 2002-03 darify et 3 wntraciual restriction on the sale
of an equity security is not considensd part of the unitof account of the equiny
secuity and, Merefore, is not considered in messaring the far valiee. The
amendments dso require addtonal dudowres for equly sscurities subject io
confrachsal sale restrictions that are measured at fair value in accordance
with Topec 520, The effective date for the amendments in ASLI2022-03 is for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 and inferim perods within
thase fiscal years. Managément has implemented dhanges in connection with
the mudie amed his denermined that thene was no matenal impact 1o the Funds’
finangal statements

3. IRVESTMERT VALUATIOR AHD FAIR VALUE MEASUREMERTS

la} lmvestment Valuation Policies The NAV of a Fund, or each of its Classes,
a% applicable, is determined by dividing the total value of portfolic
irmvetirreents and ofher assets attrbutable 1o that Fund or Class, less dey
[iatilithes, by the boldl nusmber of Uinits catstandng of that Fund o Class

Om each Fund's Dealing Doy {35 desmibed in the current Offering
Mermceandum of the Trusth Fund Units are ordinaily valued as of the dose of
regular rading on the New York Stods Bxchrange {TNYSE Close™). informasion
thal becomes kndwn to the Fumds or their agents after the time a5 of whidh
WAY has been cadculated on a parficular daywill ot generally be used to
retroactivedy adust the price of 3 security or the NAY detemined ealier that
day. B regular rading on the NYSE choses earfier than scheduled, each Fund
gy calodate its NAY a5 of the earier dosing time o calad e its NAY a5 of
the normally schedubed dotie of regular rading on the N SE for that day

Eadh Fund generally does not caloulate its MAY on days during which the
WiSE & dosed. Howewer, if the NYSE is dosed on a day it would normally be
open Bor busaness, each Fund ey catoulane ivs NAY as of the normally
sehwdubed NYSE Clote for sich day or such of her S that each Fund may
dungrmine

For purposes of caloulating MAY, portiaio seourities and other assets for
which markeq quetations are readily awailable are vatued 3t market value. A
market quotation is readily awadable only when that quotation is a quoted
pirice (unadusted) in active markets for identical imeestments that the Fund
can access at the measurement date, provided fhat a quotation wall not be
feidly aeadsbde iFit 5 nod reliable. Market vakie B génerdly determined on
the b of aff gal clesing grices of B last pepceted salis prices. The Funds
will ncemadly wse pricing data foe domestic equity seourites necenved Shordy
after the NY2E Close and do not normaly take into account trading,
clearandes of setlernents that take place after the NYSE Clode, vestments
fior wihich markel quotations are ol readily avalatie are valusd an far valye
a5 detenmined in good f3ith by e Manager of persons acting at their
direction. As @ general prindple, the fair value of a security or other asset i
the price that would be receieed 1o sell an asset or paid to transter a liakilisy
i an orderly ransaction between market paticpants at the megsurement
dane. The Marager has adopted methods foe valuing securities snd ot
ALl B GROUMALAA 0 whee market quotet ane nol feadly svailable, ad
hias the responsibility for apphing the fair valuaton methods. The Manager
may vakie Fund portiolio sequnties for which market quatations am not
readty avalatie and other Fend assets utkzing inputs fom prcng s,
QUOLH TGN reporting Systems, waluanon agents and cther third-paty sousces
(nogether, “Pridng Sources”). A foregn (rnon-LLS b equity sequrty Taded on 4
foreign exchange or on mone than one exchange i typically valued using

pradng edormation from the exchange contdened by PIMCO to be the
primary exchange. f market walue pricing is used a foreign {mon-U 5 ) equity
gecuity wil be valued as of the dose of rading on the foreign exchange, o
this MYSE Chrse, i the NYSE Choroe occurs befiore thee end of rading on the
toreign enchange

Domestic and foreign (ron-L1S ) fixed income sequidies, non-xchangs taded
dertvatees, and E’\]Ui[y OpRi0nG are aoammally vaiued on e Desis of quiates
chrained from brokoers and dealers or Fridng Sources using such data

refbecing the prindpal markets for those securifes. Prices obtained from
Fricing Sources may be based on, among other things, information provided
Iy market makers or esimates of market values obtained from yield data
Fiel N 10 inEimen s of SeaEiBes with drilar dharactensics. Certain fixed
IFofree sequribes punchated on 3 delayed-delneery base are markced to markel
dhaily un®l settlernent at the fonwand terthement date. Exchange-raded
oplons, except equity options, futures and oplicns on futures arevalued at
the sefdement price determned by the relevant exhangs. Swap agreements
2re waliped on the basis of bed quotes obained from brokers snd dealers o
e (- Bursed prices supplied by Preang Sounces. WISh neSpect [0 afy porson
of 3 Fund s assets that are imeested in one of more open-end management
imeestment companies (other than exchange-traded funds ("ETFs™)), the
Fund's HAY will be caboulated based on the NAYS of sech investments, Cpen-
end mandgament imediment ampanies may indude affiliated und

It a feweicn fron- 115, ) equity secunity’s value has matedially changed after the
deee of the security’s primary enchange or prindpal market but before the
WFSE Close, the secunty mary be valued &0 faie value based on peocedunes
estabiished and sppeoved by the Manager. Foreign (non-UL5.) eqety
SeCufBes that do nob made when the NYSE i open ane dao valued at Lar
walue, With respect o foreign (non-U 5 ) equity seamilies, a Fund may
determene the fair value of ivestments based on information prosided by
Pricing Sources, whidh may recommend far value of adustments with
reference to other seourities, indexes or ausets. b consedening whether fair
waluation is required and in determining fair vaues, the Manager may, among
other things, condader significant events fwhich may be considered to indude
changes in the value of U % sequrities or secunities indexes) that cour after
the clierte of the relevant maske and befone the NYSE Clote. A Fund may
wildi2é mouding tools provided by thand-party vendors to detérrmme fair vadues
ol foreign (roneLl S ) secities. For thete purposes, enless otherwise
determened by the Manager, any movement in the applcabibé reference inde
of insanument {"zero gger” ) between the earier dose of the applicable
foreign market and the NYSE Close may be desmed (o be 2 dgmificant event,
prompiing he spplicaton of e pridng model {effecivdy resulting in dally
fair valuations) Foreign exchamges may permit trading in foreign (non-U 5)
equiby securnifies on dayswhen the Trustis not open for business, whidh may
resulf in @ Fund's portfolio iwestments being affectsd when Unithol dees are
unable to bury or sell Units

Serior secured floating rate boans for which an ackee secondary marke? edsts
10 3 reliable degree will be vatued at the mean of the Lt available bidask
prices i the markoet Tor such loans, a5 provided by @ Pridng Source. Seniof
secufed Hoanng rate laans tor which an soive Secomdary manken does nat
x5t to 4 refatle degree wil be valued &1 Tair vakue, which is intended o
spprocimate market value In valuing a senior secured finating rate loan at
fair value, the factors considered may indude, but are not limited to, the
foll owang: () the credinaorthaness of the tomrower and any intermedkate
participants, (b the rerms of the loan, () recent pices in the marker for
srmilar lazns, if any, and (d) recent prices in the market for instaments. of
sirfiilar quality, rate, perbod wnSl next interest rate redet and maturity

Irrvesstreends valued in ourendes othier than the fnctional currency of 3
Fund ane comvened to the fncional curmency using exchanme rates obtained
frotn Precing Sources AL 3 fetdy, the vilue of weh inweatménts, and in fum,
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the MAY of the Fund's Units may be affected by changes in the value of
curmences in relation bo the funclional aumency, The value of investments
traded in foreign markets or denominated in curmendies other than

the knctichal currency mdy be dected Ugnificansy on 3 day that the Ti
nat apen for business. A5 A nesull ba e exbent that a Fund helds fone
(=5 ) imeestrnents, the valee of hote inwesiments may dhangs a1 e
when you cannot pirchase, redeem or exchange Units and the value of such
Irvesaments will be reflected in the Fund’s next cabalsted Nay

A ELS

Far valuation may require subjective determinations about he value of a
secunty. While the Trust’s policdes and procedures are intended to resuitin a
cabulagion of a Fund's MAY that faidy reflects secunity values as of the time of
pricing, fe Trst cannot ensye that fair values determined by the Manager
of pefsons actng at ther direcion would acourately feflect the pace that 3
Fund eould abtain for a security if itwere o dispose of that secunty &5 of the
time of priding (for imstance, in 3 fonded of distressed sale) The pnces used
by & Fund may differ frcen ghe vialee that would be realized if the sequnties
were sold

{h) Fair Value Hisrasshy U5 GAAR desaibes fair value a5 the pice that

a Fundwiould recedve bo sell an assetof pay to ramsier a labllity in an orderdy
tramsaction betwedn markel parbicipants a1 the mesurement date. it
establishes a far value hierandhy thal prioaizes mpuls 1o valuation methods
and requires disdosure of the fair value hierardey, separately for each major
category of assets and Rabilities, thatsegregates far valse measurements int
Deseds (Lewed 1, 2, o 3). The Inputs or methodology used lor valuing securites
are nat necessanly & indcation of the rigks assooated with mestng in tose
securities. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hievarchy are defined a5 folows:

* Leved 1—uoted prces (unadjusted) in actve market o exdhanges for
identicad assets and liabilines

= Lewe] 2—Significant other obsenvable inputs, which may indude, but ane
not lirted ba, quoted prices for smilar assets of Batalities in markets that are
aarce, quoted pndes for dentical of similar assets of Kabehnes in markets that
Are DL FOUE, NS Other than quoted prices that ane obsencable for the
Assets or Rabilives Such 5 inlerest rates, yield curees, volanlines, pregayemem
speeds, Boss severities, credit mdks and default rates) or other market
compbrated inputs

* Level 3—Significant unodservatie inputs based on the best information
avalable in the drourstances, 1o te extent obsenvable inputs ane not
avistable, which may indude Fssumplions made by the Manager o persomns
adting an thesr drection that are used in determining e fair valie of
investments

Assets or Babilities categorized & Level 2 or 3 a5 of period end hawe been
transhented bitwedn Levels 2 and 3 snce the prce pedicd due 10 dandges in
the method wilized in vabuing the imestiments. Translers from Lewel 2 o Livel
3 e a et of achange, in the nocmal course of budiness, from the use of
methods used by Pridng Scurces (Level 2) bo the use of 3 Broker Quote o
valuaton technigque which ullizes significant unobrenvable inputs due 1o an
abeence of oamentor reliable muarker-based dats (Level )

Tramsfers from Lewvel 3 to Level 2 are aresult of Bhe availability of wment and
reliable market-based data provdded by Pridng Sources or other valuation
techniques which utilize sgnificant observable inputs

In acoordance with the requinements of 15 GAAR, the amounts of transfers
in and outof Level 3, if masenial, are disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Fivestments for each regective Fund

Faor fair valuations using sgnificant unobservable inputs, U5, GAAF requires
to disclose transfers inbo and cut of Level 3 of the f3r value hierarchy and
purchasss and lsaues of Lewel 3 assets and liabilities duning the period

AddBonally. 15 GAAF requires quan italive infeemation regarding the
ugnificant unobservable inputs used in the determination of fairvalue of
assets or Babllifes categonized a5 Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, In
asccondanos with the requinements of S GAAR, a 1ar value kierardy, and if
raterial, detads of significantunobsendable inputs, have been induded 0 e
s 10 Schedde of imvestments for each respectie Fund

el Valuatian Technigues and the Fair Valus Hierarehy

Lewel 1, Level 2 and Level 3 trading assets and irading liabilities, at

Foir valum  The valuanon memods (or “techinkgues™) and sgnificant inguls
utied B0 cetermrining the i valies of portholio securites of ofer st and
liabifiies categonized a5 Leved 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hberarchy
e a5 follows:

Common stacks, TR, echange-traded nates and Snandal defivathe
Irstrmeents, such as fuhpres Contracts, nghts and warrants, of options an
futres that are traded on 3 national secunties exchange, are stated at the
last reported sale or setdement price on i ':'.'qjj"ﬁ"-'ﬁ':m[!'.'lll To the exient
Ui secunities are achwely raded snd valuation sdustments are not applied
Uy are cabegonized a5 Lel | of the fair value Feerandy

Ivestments in registered open-end imeestment companies fother than ETF)
wiill b2 vaalued based wpon the NaWs of such ivestments and are categonized
a5 bevell | of the f8ir value hisranchy. Irnesirments i uniegistensd open-end
Imeestment companies will be calculated based upon the NAYS of sudh
imeestments and are considered Level 1 provided that the NANS are
dheervable, cadaulated daily and are the value at which both purchases and
Sakis wall b conduded

Fixed income sequrities inddng conporate, comvestible and munidpal bonds
and nokes, LS. govermment agendes, U 5. reasury obligations, soversign
issues, bank [oans, convertibe prefemed securites, mon-L%, bonds, and
shoet-tenm debt instruments (such as commerdial paper, me depotits, and
certificates of depasit) are nommally valued on the bags of quaotes obtained
from brokers and dealers oo Priding Sources that wse beoker-dealer quotations,
reported trades of valuation estimates from their internal pricing models. The
Peidin g Sousncies inbermal models use inputs that are obrservable tuch 35 e
delals, inberestrates, yeld curves, prepayrnent speeds, aedit AtkuiiEreads,
el 3wt rates and quated prices. bor sifdar assets Seasibes thal use smilar
walupation technigues and mputs a3 described sbove 3ne Categonized as Level
2 of the fair value hierardhy

Finied mnoome seunties purdhased on a delaped-deinery Dasis of a5 3
repurdhase commitment in 3 sale-buyback ransaction are marked to market
daily un®l setlement at the fonward settlement date and are categorized a3
Leved 2 of the fair vaue hierarchy

Martgage-felated and astel-hacked seamties ane uiually ised a5 Wparae
randhed, of dasees, of securiSes within each dedl Thete teaxities afe also
nomady valued by Frigng S0urces that uie broker-gealer quotatons,
reported races of valuation estimates froen their intennal pricing models. The
pricin g madels for these seounities uasally corsider wanche-level attibutes,
current market data, estimated cash flows and markel-based vield spreads for
each tranche, and incorporate deal oflatera performance, & available
Mor bgage-related and asset-backed securides that wse simdar vauation
techniques and inpts a5 desaibed above e Categonized 25 Level 2 of the
fair walue hierarchy

Irvestments valued (denominated) in currendies ofher than the functional
currency of & Fund are comverted o the functiongs OTEN QY WSING exchange
FaREs {onmen Cy spot and Tonward faled) obtained from Fl'il'.il"ll.}l SOUnCEs. A5 3
resull, thie WA of @ Funid's Units may be affected by chamoes in the vabue of
currendes in relation to the funciona aarency. The value of sequrities traded
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in foresgn markets of denominated in currendes other than the funcdianal
currency may be affected sgnificantly on a day that the Trust is not open for
buminess Valuation adjustments may be applied to certain seaurities that are
soliely traded on a foregn eochange to sccount for Se markel movement
Daebwisin the dose of the foragn market and the NYSE Close. Thest securnties
Are valued using Pridng Sounces that conader the comelation of he trading
pattemns. of the foreign security bo the inraday rading in the L5 markets for
IMVESBTIRATS. Sequnties WEng Sese valaation an:iuirmems e GECNTIED 35
Lewel 7 of the fair value heerarchy . Prefermed secusides and otfer equities
trinded on indctive markets of valissd by reterence 1o Smilar indruments e
ko categonized a5 Leved 7 of the far walue hieranchy

Equity-inked seqrities are valued by referencing the last reported sale of
settlement price of the lnked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Forgian exchange adustments ane apglied to the lat reponed prce o
ctgrvet Bhe linked équitys tradeng qurrendy 16 the cnirad's settling curnency
These Brestments ane categonzed a5 Level 2 of the fair walge hieganchy

Valuanon adusiments may be appled 10 certain exchange raded futunes and
options fo acoount for markel movernent between the exchange sefthement
and the NYSE dose These seqaniies are vaued using quotes obtained from a
quitation reporting systemy, estatiished market makers. o Pricing Sources
Financial derivatives using these valuation adustments are categonized as
Liewed 2 of the far value hisrardhy

Equiny exchange-traded options. and over the coumer fimancial derivative
insanments, s a5 fonwand Tode1 gn QurrenCy CONYas and apdond conirads,
deriwe: thear valise from undedyng aset prices, indexes, reference raes, ad
ather BpULs of & coirbon A5on of thete Tactoes These Contecls e noimally
valued on the bags of quotes ablained from a quotation reporting system,
establiched market makers or Fridng Soarces (nomally deterrmined as of the
WY SE Chose). Depending on the product and the terms of the ransacion,
financal derrvative instruments can be valued by Fricng Sources using a
sefied of techiniques, induding simulation prdng models. The pridng models
use inputs that are obsenved from acively quoted markels such as quoted
prices, Isuer detals, indexes, bidfask spreads, inbenest ranes, impled
wilanlibes, yeld curves, dnadends snd ecchange rates. Finanaal demale
IS that use Srilar vauaton technaguies snd inpurs a5 destnibed
abire ane ctegonaed ot Leve 2 of the far value hiefandey

Centrally deared swaps and over the oounter swaps derive ther value from
umderhying assed prices, ndexes, reference rates, and ather inputs of 3
cormbination of these factors. They are valued using a broker-dealer bid
quotation of on market-based prices provided by Pricing Sounces (normally
determined s of the MYSE (hose). Centrally deared swaps and over the
CoLnber Swapes can be valised by Pricing Sources wrenig 4 series of technegee,
Induding sirmlation piand modes. The priang mode s ey wie inpals that
ane obdeniid rom actively quated markets wich 35 e cvemight index Sswap
rate (TO157), LIEDR forwand rate, interest raties, yield curves and oredit
spreads, Thisse seouities are categorized a5 Level 2 of the far value hierarchy

When a fair valuation method is applied by the Manager that wses sgnificant
uncbservable inputs, investmen s will be priced by a method that

thie Manager or persons acting at their direction believe reflects far value and
are categonized as Leved 3 of the fair valus hieranchy

Prosy priceng proosdures St the base price of & Tived indome Security and
subrbadueen iy adust the pide proporionally o market value changes of a pre-
determined seunity deemed o be comparabie in duration, generally a s
Teeasgury of Sovereign note based on country of isszance. The base price gy
B @ Doroker-caler guate, (RansBOnon phce, OF & mbemal valie & defived tr,’
analysis of market data. The base price of the sequnty may be reset on a
pemodic basis based on the availability of maket data and procedures
approved by the Manager Significant changes in the unobservable inputs of

thee proeey pricing process (e base price) would result in direct and
proporBonal changes in the i value of the security. These sequities ane
categoeized & Level 3 of the fair value hieradry

The CpBon Fricing madel enay B wiilized it an moarme of market approadh is
unrefeable, or if i enteqevee value i< nol suthdent i cowver cutstandng deb
and preferred dams in the capital structure. Option models can ako be
hack-sobved if there e recent ind cative ransactions for securifies within
the: same isaser. For instance, the Bladk-Schalies model is 3 spediic fype of
generally aocepted opdion model, typically used 1o value call options, puts,
warants, and convertible prefemred securities. Significant changes in the
unobservable inputs would result in direct and proportiona changes in the
fair vafue of the secunty These tecurifies se categonded a5 Level 3 of e fai
walue higrarchy

If hingparty evaluated vender pridng is not available or not deemed tobe
indicative of fair value, the Manager may elect toobaain Broker

Quadtess directly from the broker-dealer o passed-mnoagh Broker Quote from
& therdhparty vendor. In the sent that fai walue is based upon a ange
sourced Brober Quote, these sequnties are categonzed as Level 3 of the fair
walue hierarchy. Broker Quotes are typically received from established market
particgpants. Although independenty received, the Manager does not have
th tranapanency 10 view e wnderhying inputs which support the market
duotation. Significant changes in the Broker Cuate would hiave direct and
proporBonal dhanges in the Lar value of the security

Reference inmsuument valpaton esimanes fak value by utihmng the comélanon
of the Sequnity [0 one of fore broad-based SEQUFIGES, murkel indexes, andior
il firsind 8 instrumments, whode pridng information s resdily sealable
Unodsereable inputs may indude these used in dgorithm fommulas based on
percentage change in the reference instnuments andfof weights of each
refesence insrument. Significant changes in the uncbservable inputs would
resufit i direct and proportional changes in the tar value of the sedrity
These sequities e calegodized 3 Lewel 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The Discounted Cash Flow model is based on futme cash flows generated by
thee: irrvessarment and may be normatzed based on epecisd nvesiment
performance Future cith flows e dsoountied 10 predent vdue ushg an
appropeiate rate of retumn, typically calibrated to the indtid ransaction date
and adjusted based on Capital Asset Fridng Model andior other market-
based inputs. Slgnificant changes in the unchiservable inputs would result in
drect and proporticnal changes in the fair value of the security. These
gecuriBes are catedgorized a5 Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

ecurities that are smaller in size than irsftutional-sized or round kot
positions of the particulas seuringinstament type may appde a0 adustment
factod 10 the daly vendod-promded prce bor the coméponding round lat
position 1o e St 4 tar value for the applcable odd lot poditions. The
adjustment factor is determined by comparing the peices of inteenal trades
with vendor prices, caloulating the weighted average diferences, and using
that dfference a5 an adusement factor to vendor preces. These securities are
cateqgorized a6 Lewel 3 of the fair value hieranchy

The Comparabde Companies model is based on applicasion of valuation

il tiglies from publidy raded comparable companees 10 thi finandals of e
fubpe compaiy. Aduatmenty may b made B the madkel-denved vauation
roultiglies based on differences be ween the compasable companies and the
ubject company. Significant dhanges in the unobsenvabie inputs would result
in direct and proportional changes in the far value of te seasity These
Se0bes e Categonzed a1 Level 3 of the Tair value heerarchy

The Comparabde Transactions model is baied on spplication of valuation
mmultiples from obeenvable transactions comparakie bo the sequrity or
company. Adusiments may be made to the implied comparabde ran sacton
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multiples based upon differences between the obeened ransactions and the
subject company or securnity. Sgnificant changes in the uncobsenvable inputs
wioubd result in direct and proporiona changes in the fair value of the
Secufify. These Securiied ane cabsgonzed a5 Level 3 of thie 1air value hisrardhy

Shiat=termn deblindtruments (ssch a6 commencial papel, e depodits, and
certificates of deposit) having a remaining matunity of S0 days of less may be
waued at amontized oot S0 long a5 the smonized cost vaiue of sudh shors-
term insansments is appecdmately the same & the fair value of the nstrument
a5 determined without the wse of amortized cost valuation. These securilses
are categonized as Level 2 or Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy depending on
the source of the base price

4, SECURITIES AHD OTHER INVESTMENTS

i8] Delayed-Delivery Trans-actions Certain Funds may purchase of el
securilties on a delayed-delbvery basis. These raniacions imvohve a
commmitment by a Fund to purchase or sell securites for a predetermined price
of yiel o, wath payenent and denery talong plae biond the customany
settlement penod When deliped-gevery rantactans e outslanding,

& Fund wall desigrane of fedknve &5 oollateral liquid a5t o a0 amounil
sufficent to meet the purchase price of respective chiigations. When
purchasing 4 secunty on 3 delaged-delivery bads, a Fund astumes the rights
and risk:s of cwmership of the seamity, induding the ridk of price and yield
fluchuations, and takes sch fluchaations into aocount when detemining it
HAY A Fund may dspose of o renegoiiate a delaped-delivery ransaction
afterit is entered into, which may result in a realized gain or loss. When

a Fund has sold a seawrity on @ ddlayed-delivery basis, the Fund does not
partidgate in fulure gaing and |ossed with resped 1o the seaxity

i) Inflationdndexed Bonds Certan Finds may insestin inflaton-indexed
bonds Inflation-indeced bonds ané froed income securities whse prindpal
walue i peniodically adjusted by the rate of inflafion. The interestrate on

these bionds is gererdly fooed Al issuance ala rate lower than typical bonds
Crver the life of an inflaticn-indaxed bond, hiowever, interestwill be paid
b con @ prvvcipal valee, which 15 adusted for inBatcn . Any indedse of
dedrease sn e prinapal amoenl of an inflaton-ndexed bond will be indisded
&% nberisd income on he Sutements of Operations, eeen though inves o &
not receive their pringipal unel matarity, Repayment of the origina bond
prinipal upon maturity (35 adjusted for inflation) is gearanteed in the case of
WS TIPS, For bonds thal do nob provice a similer quarantes, the adusked
poindpal viaue of the bond repaéd 21 matun Ty My e less than the onging
princpal

ic) Loan Participa tiens, Assignments and Origiations Certain Funds may
iFvisSt i et bt instruments which are inlenests in amounts cwed 1
fenders or lending syndicates by corporate, govermimental, of other bomowers
A Fured’s imeestments in baans. may be in the foem of pertidpations in loans of
assignments of 2l or a pordon of loans from tind paries of investments in of
onginations of laans by the Fund, A laan is often administersd by 3 bank o
offier inandal institufon (the “lender™) thal acts a5 agen? for all holders. The
agent administers the terms of the loan, & specfied in the loan agreement. A
Fund may invest in midtiple semves of tranches of a loan, which may have
warying tenme and caery ditherent ataodated naks. When a Fund purdhases
Asipgrments from Dendiers i soguEres dinect fghts againal the bomowers of the
loans. Thise loans may indude pariapations in badge loand, whidh are loans
taken out by bomowers for 3 sho period (typicaly leds than one yexr)
pendng amangement of mone penmznent finandng through, for examgle, te
isapance of bonds, frequen thy high yeeld bonds ismed for the purpass of

E Lo L

The types of loans and related investments in which She Funds may imvest
Indude, among pthers, senice loans, sbordinated |oans (indudng second

[en loans, B-Motes and mezzanine koans), whole ans, commerndal real
estate and other comemerdal loans and structured boans. A Fund may
orignate |oans of aoquire direct interests in loans theough primary kean
damributzons andior in private ramactions. i the case of wibdednated laans,
there may be sgnificant indebledness ranking ahead of the bomower™s
ailigaticn to the holder of such a loan, mduding m the event of the
brvowver's insobvency, Mezzanine boans are typically seqred by a pledge of
@ P'}-Ill‘p'il‘l[":fl?ﬂ in the mormgage bomower that owns the real estate rather
than an inlerestin & mamgage

Investmendts. in loans may indude unfunded boan commitments, whidh ane
confrachsal obligations for funding. Unfanded loan commitments may include
revolving credt faclites, which may obligate a Fund to supply additiona cath
1o the besmowver on demand. Unfunded [aan commutments represent a fubse
ailigatican in full, even though a percentage of the commined amount may
ol be utilized by the borrower. When investing in a loan partidpation, a
Fund has the right £ receive payrments of pradpal, enterest and any s 10
whiich it i ervtitled anly Fom e lender selling the loan agreement and only
W el -'.lr'pa«,-menls Ry the leradier from the boreoweer. A Fund ey
recie A Commitrnent fee Based on the undrawn portion of the underhying
fine of gredit portion of 2 loan. In certain drcumstances, a Furd may recaive a
penalty fee wpon the prepayment of 2 loan by & bomower Fees eamed or
paid ane recorded a5 2 component of interest inooame of inferedl expense,
respedively, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
e reffecied & 3 liability on the Statements of Assets and Lisbilites

{dh Morigage-Related and Dibar Asset-B acked Securities Cerlan Funds may
IEnSL i 0F Tgage-rel ated and other asel-badoed secunbes thal deecmy of
indirecty represent 3 partidpation in, or are sedred by and payable from,
loans on real progerty. Mortgage-related securifies are areated from pools of
residenal o commendal morigage loans, induding mongage loans made by
savings and boan inslitulions, mortgage bankers, commendal banks and
others. These secunfies provide 3 monthly payment which conssts of both
interest and princpd . interest may be determined by Bxed or adjustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underlying morlgages wal aflect the price and
wokylility of & morigage-related sequnity. and may have the effec of
dhodtening of extendng the effective duration of the seunity relatve 1o what
s, anapatied at the tme of punduase. The dmely payment of prindpal and
interest of centain mortgage-rel sted sequnties is quaranteedwith the full Gith
and credit of the U4, Govemment Pools oreated and quaraniesd by non-
governmental issuers, induding govemment -Sponsaned corporations, may be
spported by various forms of Insurance or quarantees, but there can be no
atsurande that private inturers of quarantons can meet their obligations under
thee inswrance polices or guasanites amangements. Many of the nisks of
imeesting in mongage-related seowities secured by commerda mortgage
I el the effects of local and athier eoononms conditions on real eaate
rradeets, the shelity of tenants to make leste payments, snd the ability of 3
property o aftract and rétam tenants. These securibes may be less [iquid and
gy et greater price volatility than other types of mortgage-related or
othéer asset-badied seunties. Other assetbadoed senmies are aeated From
Fany fypis of assels, induding, but nof lirited o, aute laans, agounts
recendabie, Such a5 oredt Cand recervables and hospsldl sccount recervalies,
Frome equity Inans, stodent boans, boatloans, mobie home loans,
recreational vehicle loans, manufachared housing koans, angaft leases,
computer leases and syndicated bank loans. The Fund mayinvestin amy |evel
of the caputal stnacture of an msuer of mangage-badked or assel-hacked
wouribes, indudng the equity of "frst loss” ranche

{¢) Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (“CMO:") are deba cbligations of 3
legal entiry that sre collateraiiped by whole morigage 0ans of private
mortgage bonds and divided into dasses CM0s are stuctured inbo mulSple
dlasses, often referred to a5 "wanches”, with each dass bearing a different
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stated matunity and enfitled o 3 different schedube for payments of pindgpal
and inferest, induding prepayments. £ MOs may be less figuid and may exhitat
greater price volatility than osher fypes of mortgage-related or asset-badeed
SEculied

i Stripped Mortgege-Backed Securities (™5MES") are derivative mult-dass
moetgage securifies. SMES are wwally structured with twe dlasses that receive
ditferént proportions of the interest and prinapal destributions on a paool of
mortgage assets. AR SMBS will have one dass that wal receive all of he
interest {the inerest-only o "I07 dass), while the other dass will receve the
enfire prindpal (the pindpal-only or "FO" dass). Payments received for K05
ané mcuded in interestinoome on the Statements of Operanons. Beciuse no
prndpal will ke received at the mitunry of an 10, adustments e made
the oost of the secunty on a monthly bases unbl matity. These agusimeants
are inchuded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Fayments
received for POs are eated & reductions to the cost and par value of the
SEOETIES

ig) Collateral zed Debt Dbligations ("C D057} indude Collaterdized Bond
Oblegasons (TCBOS™), Collaterabped Loan Obligasons (CLOL") and othes
sivelarly soractured Securites. CBOS and CLOS &6 types of asser-badied
secufities. A CBCOS & rust which is badied by 3 deversifed pod af high nk,
below investment grade ficed income securifies. & CLO s @ tast pypically
collateratized by 3 pood of loans, which may indisde, amang others, domessc
and foeeign senior secured boans, senior unsedured loans, and subordinate
corpar ate boans, induding boans that may be rated below invesiment grade or
equivalent unrated loans. The ridks of an imvestment in a COO depend Largely
on e type of the oollateral seqpities and the dass of the COOinwhich a
Fend Emeesis. In addition to the normal risks assodated with fived income
siecuritioes dfsoussed elsewhiene in this repoet and thee Funds' Oflering
Memarandum (g, prepayment sk, credit risk, Bousdity sk, market risk,
stpchural risk, legal sk and miteredt rate sk dehich may be eacerhated if
the inferesl rate payable on a struchared finandng changes based on
muftiples of chandes in indenest rales of inversely 1o Changes in nberest
rates)), CBOs, CLOs. and other C00s camy additonal risks induding, but not
liemi b 80, (1) thoe porssibdity Shat disiributions. Fom collsteral securies wall pat
be adequate to make interest or other payments, (i) te quality of the
coilateral may dedine in value or default, §il) the sk that a Fund may invest
in CECH, 105, or other C00s that ane subordinate to other dasses, and (i)
thoe cornplien: S tructurne of e securty may not be fully understood a1 the sme
af ivestment and may produce dsputes with the issuer or unepected
irvesEmeent regults

fhl Payment In-Hind Securities Cenain Funds may svestin payrent in-ond
sequrifies (T PIKs™). PIks may give the issuer the opSon at each interest
payment date of making inferest paymen'ts in either cash andfor addidonal
debd sequrities Those additional debt securifies usaly have the same tems,
incipding maturity dates and interest rates, and assodated fisks & the
orginal bonds. The daity maskes quatations of the criginal bonds may indwde
the accrued interest {referred foe 25 4 "dirty price ™) and require a pro rata
adiustment from the unrealized appredation of depredation on imesiments
1o berest redervable on the Staements of Assets and Listdites

i) Aestricied Securities Certain Funds may hold neestments that are subject
to legal or contrachual restricBons on resale. These sensities may be sold
pivabely, but may be requined 1o be registersd or exempled from such
regeiiration bedore being sold 1o the public. Private placement sedurities ane
generally congidened to be restricted. Disposal of restriched imvestments may
irvohve time-Consuming negodiations and expentes, and prompt sale at an
AomEpRable peice may De chffculn 1o achieve. Restricted ivesiments held oy
the Funds ot Ocober 31, 2023, & applicable, are disdosed in the Notes o
Savile oof Mneestrments

@ Swrcwored Netes Certain Funds may irvestin stnuctuned notes and other
related instuments, which are privately negofated debit abligations in which
the prindpal and or interest ks determined by refesence to the performance of
& benchmark: asset, market or interest rate (an “embedded index ™), such a5
selechied secunibies, an index of securities of pediied mtenest rates, of the
differential performance of teo 34tels or markets, such 3 indeet reflecting
bonds. Structured instruménts may be issued by coporations, induding
banks, 3 well & by govemmental agendes. The temms of such siuciured

IS EnETEnS normaly provede Shat et panapal Jndfor mienest paments ane
Lo o e st upwvasrcls of dowemrecarcts (bt ordinasily not below zem) 1o
riefect changes in the embedded indix while the seuctured insnements an
cutstamding As @ result, the interest andfor prind pal payments that may be
made on 3 structured product may vary widsly, depending on 3 variety of
factoes, Enduding the volatdity of the embeddad index and the effect of
changes in the embeddad index an prindpal andior et payments

k) U5, Government Agencies or Gewvernsent-Sporsared Enterprises

Certain Fands mruy Ifvest in securines of LS. Govemment agenaes of
genrnren-iponsored enterpnses. LS, GOvernment secuntes ae
cbligations of and, i Certaam cates, guirantesd by, the S Govemimeat, itk
agences of instumentaities. Some U5 Government securities, such as
Treasury bals, notes and bongs, and securities quaranteed by the Govemment
Hazonal Morigage Assodation (GNMAS o "Ginnle Mae™), are supported
by thoe full faith and credin of the US. Govemment others, sudh 35 those of
the Federal Home Lodn Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
bomow from the U 5. Department of the Treasury (the "US, Treasuny™); and
others, such & those of the Federa Nationd Morfigage Assodation (TFMMA®
o " Fanmee W), dre supponed by he damenonary authonty of the LS
Gervemnment (o punchate B agency"s obliganons. LS. Governmient et
iy i chude et coupon Leduritisd, which do not ditibube intered on 4
current basis and tend to be subiect 10 2 greater risk than interesi-paying
secutities of similar matuwites

Government related quarantors § &, nof backed by the full fath and redit of
the L5, Government) indude FMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporaton ("FHLMC" o "Freddie Mac™). FNMA s 3 govemment-sponsored
corporation, FRMA purchases conventional § e, ot insured or guarantesd by
iy qoremmient agency) redenial mongages from a list of approved
swelberianacers whidh indude state and federally chartered savings and loan
asodatons, mutual sadng banks, commendal banks and dedit urbons and
miorigage bankers. Pass-through secanties issied by FNMA are guaranieed a5
to iy payment of princpal and interest by FNALA, but are not badeed by
the fiull faith and credic of te U S Government. FHUMC [sues Partidpation
Certificates (TPCA™), which aré pass-hnough Leoribes, sach fegretenting an
undkvided interest in a pogl of residential mortgages. FHLMC guaraniees the
timedy payment of interest and ulBmate aollection of prindipal, bat FCs e not
badeed by the full faith and cedt of the U5 Govemment

In Juree 2019, FNMA and FHLMC starbed issuing Unsform Morigage-Badked
Securites (TUMEST) in place of their current oferings of TBA-lighle
securites (ifve “Single Sequrity inbdative™) The Snghe Seaunty Rldatve seeks
to supgeort the cwerall licuediny of the TBA marker and aligns the
characteristics of FNMA and FHLMC certificanes. Thie eftents that ihe Single
Security nitiztive may have on the market for TEA and other morgage-
badeed saurilies are unceriasn

Ridl-tming trategies can be weed where 3 Fund seekd 10 extend the

expir aSon of maturity of 4 position, sudh a3 a TBA seurity on an underhying
asset, by dosing out the position bedore expiration and opening a new
position with respect i subs tantially the same undering asset with a kater
exparasion date. TEA secunties purchased o sold are reflected on the
Staternents of Asters and LiskediDes a5 40 aaset of llabiling, respecinaly
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il WhenJszued Transeediont Certain Funds may purhase of sell seorities
on a when-issued basis. Thesw: Tansyions i made Ew“J‘iJl[lL'l‘HJh' because a
secunty, though suthorized, has notyel been issued in the market
Tramactasns o punchade of el Lecunties on 4 when45ued baus mobe

3 comenitment by 3 Fund 1o purchase of sell these sequities for a
predetemmened price of yield, with payment and defivery taking place beyond
the orsiomary settkement period A Fund may sell when-issued searities
betore they are delivered, whidh may resultin a reakized gain of loss

im) Bank Dbligutiens Bank obliganons inwhich a Fund may imvest indude
certcates of deposit, bankers” acceplances, and feed dme deposits
Cenmificates of deposit are negonstie certficates issu ed aganst funds
dispotived in & corrrnerdal bank for & defrite penod of tme and eaming a
spedfied retum . Bankers” acceplances ane negotiztle drafts or bills of
exifiange, nommaly drawn by an importer of exporter 1o pay for speafic
merchandese, whidh are " accepied” by a bank. meaning, in eflect, that the
bank uncondition dly agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on
maturity. Fxed ime deposits are bark obligations payable at a stated
maturity date and bearing interest at a fined rate. Foed Sme deposits may be
withdrawn on cemand by this investon, Dut muny be subject o earky
withdrinal penalties which vary dependng upon market condtions and e
remaining matsnity of e obigation

il Wamants Certain Funck may receive wamants Warranis ae seqmgies
that are usually tewed together with a debit security or prefered secunty and
that give the holder the right to buy a proportionate amount of common shodk
ata spedfied price. Warants are freely ransfierable and are often fraded on
i of exchanges. Warrants nonmally have a lite that is measred in years snd
enmile the holder 10 buy comman stock of & company 18 price that is useally
highesr than the market pace at e Gre the warant is ssued. Warranis may
ental greater fides than ceran other types of inveaments. Generally,
Warants do not carmy the sight to receive dyvidends of exerdise voting rghis
with respect to the underbing seauities, and they do not represent any fghts
in e asses of the issuer. in addition, their value does not necessanily dange
with the valwe of the underfying seaurities, and they cease to have value if
thiey aze not exercised on or before their expiration date. i the market price of
the undertying stod: does not exceed the exerdse pace during the life of the
warrant, the warrantwall expire worthlets, Wamants may ingeass the
protendial profit-or loss o be realized from the imestment & oormpansd with
irmvesting the sarne amount in the undedying securities. Samilarly, the
percentage indeate of decrease in the vaue of an equty sequrity wamant
gy b greater than the percentage ndess of demease in the value of the
underlyng ooimmon Shode. WaETants may relate 10 the punchase of equity of
debd securities. Debt obligasons with wiaeranis attadhed 1o purchase squly
sequrities have mamy charactenstics of corvertible seurities and their prices
may, to some degree, reflect the performance of fe undedying stock Debt
obligations also may be isswedwith wamants attached to purchase additional
debd senurities a3t the same coupon rate. & dedine in interest rates would
peernif 3 Fund 10 sefl such warrants at a profit, i interest rales rise, these
warrants wiould generally expene with no value

§. EORROWINGS AND OTHER FIHAHCING TRARSACTIONS

Thie bollowang discersures oon taen indormanon on the Rands” soudity b0 bind of
Boerows cash or sequities 1o the extent permitted under the Offering
Mermorancim, which may be viewed as bomrowing or finanding transactions
by the Funds. The: location of these imstnaments i5 desorbed below For a
dutaled desTiption of aredil and counterparty ridks that can be acociated
with boemosvings and ceher finanding transactions, please see Note 7,
Findpal and Other Risks

{s) Repurchese Agresments Cerlain Funds may engage in repurchase
Sgrecmenls Under the terms of a T,T.W.'M repurchase SIEEMNENL 3

Fund purchases an underdying debr obligaton dooateral) subject to a0
ailinaticn of the seller 1o repurchase, and a Fund to resel, the abligation at
&N agreed-upon price and Sme. in an open matusity repurchae agresment,
thete is no pre-determin ed repurchase date and the agreement can be
tereninated by the Fund o counterparty at any time. The market value of the
Coll aberal migst b equa 10 of exceed the total amount of the repunchass
abligatices, induding interest Repurchase agreements, induding acaued
imterest, ane induded on the Statements of Assets and Liatulies. Inberest
eamed is recorded 25 3 component of interest income on Hhe Statements of
Operaony. in pericds of increased derand for collaneral, a Fund may pay &
T e recepd of collaneral, whach iy resultin meenes expense 1o e Fund

it Reverse Hlpl.m;lm .lgr"m-nl: Ceffan Fungs may ember into reverse
repurchase agreements. In @ reverse repunchase agreement, & Fund delivers. &
secity in exchange for cazh to a finandal instituSon, the counterpaty, with
a ﬂmltsne-:-..s agresment to repurchacs the same or ssbstantially the same
sty at an agreed upon price and date In an open maturily reverse
repundde sgreerment, there i< no pre-determined reponchase date and the
greisment can be terninated by the Furnd of countemarty ot sy lime. A
Fusid s entithed 1o recenwe principal and interest payments, if any, made on
thee Sacunty delnvened b the countirparty during the term of the agresment
Cash recenved in exchange for securities delivered phus soonaed interest
pearyents. b0 e e ' & Fund [0 counterpanes ane reflected a5 & liabisy
on the Stabements of Assens and Lisbifties. interesh payments made by 3 Fund
to counterparties are recorded &5 a component of interest expense on He
Statements of Operations, In periods of increased demand for the secunty, a
Fund may receive a fee for use of the security by the counterparty, which may
resullt i inderest income to a Fund A Fund will segregate assets determined
1 e licused By PFIMICOY o0 will othesweibe cower its obligations under reverse
repandase agreements

i Sale-Buybecks Certain Funds may enter into Enan:mg Fansanms
refemed o as “ale-buybacks’ A sale-buybade finandng fransadion consists
of 3 sale of 3 security by a Fund 1o a finandal instituion, the counterpaty,
with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase the same or substantialy the
same sequnify at an agreed-upon price and date A Fund ks not entiffed to
recEndr grincipal and intenest parments, if any, made on the seurity wld 10
the counterparty during the terem of the agreement. The agreed-upon
proceeds for securitied to be repunthased by a Fund are reflected a5 a Rabikity
on e Statements of Assens and Uabalties. & Fund will recognize net iname
represanted by the price differental benwesn the price recened for the
ranstenmed Seounty anvd the sgreed-upon repunchase price. Ths is commonly
pishgrmisd 10 4% the “price drop” A price drop consises of () te foregone intenest
and inflati omary income adjustments, if any, a Fundwiowdd have otherwise
recenved had the security nod been sold and (1) the negotiated finanding termes
between 3 Fund and counterparty. Foregone interest and inflationary income
afjus ments, if any. are recorded a3 components of Eberest oome on the
Stanements of Operations. interest payments based upon negotiated finandng
termres made by a Fund to counterparties are reconded a5 a component of
interest expense on the Statements of Opérations. in periods of increased
dernand fof the seanty, & Fund miy recene & Tee fof use o the sequnty by
thee countenparty, which oy resslt in intenest income 003 Fund. A Fund wiall
segregate ssets determaned to be liguid by FIMCO o will othenioe cover jts
cbligations under sale-buyback ransactions

i Shart Salex  Cerlain Runds may enter into shoet sales transactions. Shon
sales ane transactions in which the Fund sells 3 seourity that it may not cwen
A Fund may make short sabes of securnities to () offse potentid dedines in
o persatins i demilar secuimties, (1) 00 inenease the fledtality of the Fund,
(ol for Envmsameent retuem, fv) o5 part of 3 nsk arbivage strategy, and &) as
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part of its overall portfdio management sirateges imalvng the use of
dervalive instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sdle, it may bomow
the secunity sold short and defiver it to the counterparty. The Fund wil
ordinadiby D 10 pin' 3 e OF pReILM bO Dormow 4 Seaunity snd be obligated
10 hepeay the lender of the secunity any dividend or intenest that accrues on the
siecuri by drineg the peraed of the loan. Sedunties sold in short sale Iransactions
and the dvidend or interest payable on audh sequrities, if any, e reflecied
piayable for short sales on the Statements of Assets and Liabllites. Short sales
exp0se thi Fursd 10 the ik St it wall De requined b oover its short poiion
ana tme when the seoariny of other asset has appreciated in value, s
resulting in losses to the Fund A short sale is "against the b if

the Fund hodds in its portfolio or has the right 1o aoguine the seority sold
shoet, of securities identical to the security sold short, at no additional cost &
Fund will be <ubject to addiSonal redks 1o the extent tat i1 engides in short
sales that are not "aganst ®e box” . A Fund's ks on a short sale could
theoretically be unlimited in cases where the Fund & unable, for whateser
reason, 10 dose aut its shoet position

I8} Lime ol Cradit FIMCO Benmipda Bark Loan Fund (4 entered intg a 364-
day sensor unsecaned revdheing credit agreement with the Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishd UIFJ, L1d, CMUEG™) and other commendal banks 1o be ufilized for
tempcrany purpases 10 fund Unatholder redempions of dor other short-benm
lncuichity purposes. MUFG senet a5 bath a bank and 2 an agent for ather
banks that are parties 1o the agreement PIMCO Bemuda Bank Loan Fund
(M) pays Binandng charges based on a combination of S0FR-based varable
plus a aredit spread. The Fund also pays & fee of 030% per arnum oo the
unused commitment amounts. The agreement was rendwed on Augest 18,
2023 and espires on August 16, 2024 unless exended of renswid Thene i£ 3
maximism availade commitment amount fior PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (M) equal 1o $28,000,000. Prior 10 August 18, 2023, the maximum
aéalable commitment amount for the Furd was §15,500,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0 30% per annum on the wnused ComMIBTERE amaunts
Commitment, upfront and interest fees of §100 810 paid by AMCO Bermida
Eank Loan Fund (M) are indlwded in interest epense in the Statements of
Operalions

Dueringg thee periced, thisrie where o Borrcssangs o this e of oredit

G.FIRANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMEHRTS

The following disdosures contan information on how andwhy the Funds use
finandal derivative instruments and how finandal dervatie insrurments.
affect e Funds' §nandal posiSion, results of operaSions and cash flows. The
location and fair value amounts of these instuments on the $tatements of
Acgats and Listelines and g niet resbzed gain (1o5s) and net change in
unrialized appredation (depeedation) on the Statements of Operatons, sach
categan 2ed by type of fnandal dervative contract and related ik eposne,
areindudadin 2 table in the Notes 1o Schedule of bvestments. The finandal
dervative instruments cutstanding as of pencd end and the amounts of net
realized gain (oss) and net change in unrealized appredation (depredation)
on finandial derivative instruments during the period, & disdoced in the
Hotes to Schedule of Investments, sene a5 indicators of the volume of
finandal derivative activity for the Funds

{a] Forward Foreign Currency Contracts Certain Funds may enigage in
forward foresgn qumendgy confracts in connection with settng planned
pirchases or sales of securities, to hedge the qumency expasure ssodated
with some or all of 3 Fund's seneities of 3s part of an investment srategy A
forward foreign cumency contrad i an agresment bebween by parties 1 buy
and sell & currency at a et price on @ future date: The market vaue of a
forward foreign cumency contrad fluctuates with changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Fonwand foreign curmenicy contracts are marked bo market

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

daily, and the change in vaue is recondsd by a Fund a5 an unrealized gam o
hess, Realized gars or hosses are equal 1o the difference between the value of
the contract at the dme it was opened and the value at the time itwas dosed
and e reonnded upon deélroeny of receipd of the ot endy. Thete conlracs
Fitay iTvoha mancel nsk in exceds of the unfealized gam o loss refeched on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbdlines. In addition, & Fund could be expaged
to misk: if the counierparties are unable to mest the terms of the confracts or if
the value of the currency dhanges unfavorably to the lunciiond ausrency. To
rtigane suach nae, Cash of sequnities may be exchanged & oollateral pursisant
Lo e Rismng. of T undestytng Cononects

Certain Fends, having a hedged Class, may also entes into forward foresgn
currency ooniracts designed to offset the effect of hedging at the Fund bevel in
arder 10 beave the Fedged Class vath an exposice to curnendes othér than the
Tumcthonal aarency. There can be no guarantes hal thewe Class specific

fone and fereagn Qurrendy Ooniract: wall be suctesshul

il Fuarss Contracte Certain Funds may enter into futures contracts A
fubures confract is an agreement to buy or sell 3 sequrity or other asset for a
sel price on & fulure date and is raded on an exchange. A Fund may use
futures contracts to manage its exposure to the securities markets o 1o
FrachremEnils in inberest ratis and aurrency values. The primany isks sSaodated
walh thee ure of hulures comiracts ane the imperiect comelabon betaeen the
change in marke? value of the sscuritied held by a Fend and e prices of
futures confracts and the possédiny of an illiquid market Fubares confracts
aee waliped based upon ther quoted daily setement prices. Upon £
feiten & fusures cortract, 4 Fund is required o deposit with (15 futures broker an
amount of cash, U3 Govemment and Agency Olbligations, o sebect sovereign
debt, in acoordance with fe indtial margin requirements of the broker or
exchange, Futures confracts are marked to market daily and based on such
movements in the price of the conrads, an appeopiate payable or receivable
for thie change in value may be posted or collected by the Fund ("Futures
ariafion Margn ™) Fubures Vaniation Margns, it any, are disdosed wathin
centrally deared fnandal desivative instruments on the Salements of Assets
&nd Liabelifies. Gamns of losses dne recogrized but not considened realized unbl
e ConbnmCts, expung oF dose. Fulunes contracts i, 0 vanying degrees,
risk: o boss in excess of th Fusures Varatian Margn induded within
exchandge: raded of centrally deared fmancal demvatee msmurments on the
Statements of Assets and Liablites

e} Optiors Contracts Certamn Funds maywrite or punchase options to
erthance refumns of 1o hedge an existing podition or futre investment. Certam
Fumndk ey write call and put aplions on seurites and financial derivative
irvsnrumens ey own or i whedh they muy invisl Wiiting put opticens. tends
lo inaredse & Fund's exposure 0 the underlyng insrument Writing call
opaons bendk b decreace 3 Fund s expodune 1o the undistyng instn ment
when a Fundwiites a call or put, an amount equal 10 the premium recenved is
recorded and subsequenty marked to marked to reflect the qument vale of
the option written, These amounts are incuded on the Statements of Assets
and Labeities. Premiums regeneed from writing opSons which wopire Fe
treated as realized gains. Presmiums received from writing options whidh are
exergsed of doted are added to the procesds or ofset against amounts pad
on the underlying ftres, swap, secunty of umendy ransaction 10 detesmine
U risadi 2ol )i OF 1065 Cobmimn PTONS frudry Dok wirk i Wi Ry o ol Loy B
depermmed an & funure dase. Thi premium b thise opians e based wpan
irnplied vedatility parameters at spadfied terme. A Fund a5 awriter of an
option has no control over whether the underhing instrument may b soid
("call ™) or purchased ("put™h and a5 a result bears the market risk of an
unfaeoratle change in e price of the instrument undedying the weitten
opion, There 15 the nsk & Fund mdy not be able 1o enter mtd 4 deting
tranzacion because of an illquid market
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Certain Funds may also purchase pul and call opSons. Purchasing call options
tends to indreate 3 Fund's exposure 1o the underying instrument. Purchating
put opSons kends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the underhying insrument
A Funed puanys  presmdurm wihadh is incduded a4 an assel on the Stalerments of
Assels and Listalines and subsiquently markosd to market 1o feflect the
cusrent vatue of 1he option. Fremiums paid for pondhating aptiors which
expire are freated a5 realized losses. Centain opticers may be purdhased with
premitams 1o be determined on 3 futare date. The premiums for hese gpsans
are based upon impdisd volatility parameters a1 spedfied tems. The risk
assocd ated with punchagng put and call opoons i imebed 1O the premim
paid, Fremiums paid for puschasing oplions whidh are exerdsed or dosed are
added to the amounts paid or offset agairt the proceeds on the underlhging
irvesiment fransaction o determine the reakized gain or loss when the
underhying fraraction is executed

Credit Default Swaptions Certain Funds maywite or purchase oedi default
Swaptons b hedge exposure o e cedtnsk of an investment without
rraking & cofreretment 1o e wnderlyng insrument. A credit default swaption
I an opticn 10 sell or buy credit protection to 3 spedfic reference by entening
intg a pre-defined swap agreement by some spediied date in the future

Fersign Currency Optiens Cértan Funds may wiite of purchase forégn
curmency options oo be used a5 a shortor long hedge against possble
v aBonms in foreign exchange rates of to gain sxpoagre o foreign aumendes

Inflatiom-Cappad Optione Certain Fundd may write or purchase inflagon-
capped options 1 enhance retums of for hedging opportunities. The pupase
of purchasing i ation-capged opsions is 1o protect @ Fend from infaton
E0EIon At A CEAIN Fabé on 4 green notional epature. A floor can be
uised B give dowrisi e profecion [0 imestments in mflatondirked prodiscts

Intarest Rate Swaptions Certan Funds maywrite of punchase intensst rate
swaptices which are options 1o enter into a pre-defined svap agreement o
to shorten, extend, cancel or otherwise modty an existing swap agreement,
bry o specified date in the fiture. The weiter of the Swaption Becomes the
COURSEEDArty (o the dwap i the burer exercies. The Bberest rate Svagion
agreement wil spcify whvether i buyer of the swaption will be a foed-rae
plcEnir of 3 Tieed-rane payer Upom exindse

Dptiars on Exchange-Traded Futures Contracts Certain Funds may wile o
purchaie options on exdhange-iraded futunes soniracts (T Fulures Oplion ") 10
hedge an exiiting position or future investment, o speculathe purposes of to
anage exposure 1o makel movements. & Fubmes Opoon |5 an opion
contract i which the underhing insmument is 2 sngle futures contract

DOptiors an Securities Certan Funds may write or purchase options on
SETLEIRIES Do enhance returms of 1o hidge an @ostng position o futune
ifvLient An Gption on 4 Seaurity uses 3 spediBed deunly & the undehing
Instruemeent for the opticn oontrac

id) Swap Agreements Certain Fundh may invest in swap sgreements. Swap
agreements are bilaterally negatialed agreementy bedwesn 3 Fund and a
counterparty bo exchange o Swap imvestment cash Bows, assets, foreign
currencies of marketdinked rehames 2t spedfied, fubere intervals Swap
Agpeerments muay bie pevately negotiatied in the OTC matket of may be disned
thecaigh 4 Shind-party, kiown a5 & central counterpadty of derivatives deanng
oiganizaton ("centrally deared Saape ™). A Fund may enter inlo assel, credit
distault, goss-Cumendy, inbenest fate, total return, variance and other forms of
VD Agreements [0 manage it exposire to credit, Qumency, interest rate,
commodity, equity and inflation fisk In connection with these agreements,
Securilies of Cish may be idensfied a5 collateral o mangn in accondance with
the terms of the retpective svap agreemen'ts to prowade assets of walue and
recoyrse in the event of defiault or banknaptopirscdvency

Centrally deared swaps are marked 1o market dadly based upon valuations a5
determined from the underfying contract or in accordance with the
requirements of the central cownterparty o dervatives dearing orgarization
Chandges in ket value, i any, e reflacted &5 2 component of net dnangs:
I unfead 2ed appreaation (depredanon) on the Statements of Operations
Ciasly chamges in valuaton of centrally deaned twaps ("Ywap Vanation
Margin™), If anvy, are disdosed within cenirally deared finand d dernivative
imstrumen s on the Statements of Assets and Labilities. OTC wap payments
recerded OF paid 51 the beginning of the measurement period are induded on
e Statements of Assens and Liabelmies and regresent premmis pad o
received upon entering inho the swap agresment i compersate for
differences between the stated lerms of 1he swap agreement and prevailing
market conditions (oedit spreads, qamency exchange rates, interest rates, and
ol relevant factors). Uipdnont premiume received (paid) are initially reconded
&t liabelites (assets) and subsequently marked o mark et to reflect the aament
walue of the swap. These upfont premiums are recorded & realized gains o
hosses on the Statements of Operations upon temmination or maturity of the
vap. Aliqudation paymment recaved of made 3t Be temminaton of fe sHap
5 recorded A realized gain oF lods on the Statements of Operanons. Net
peteodiic perens recenaed of pald by & Fund afe ndisted a5 pan of realized
gains or losses on the Stabements of Operations

For purposes of applying cenain of a Fund's imvestment polides and
fesinicions, swap sgresrnents, Bbe other demvatiee mstrumen s, may be
waluwed by 3 Fund at market value, notional value or Rl exgeosure value |n the
case of a aredit default swap, in apphying certain of the fund's imediment
polices and restictions, the Fundwil value the qedit delault swap atits
rofonal walue of 15 full expoanne value (e, the som of the notiona amaunt
tor the contrad plus Me marked value), but may vale the credt defaull swap
at rraroet value for purposes of apphing certain of the Fund's other
Imeestment polices and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value gedit
default saaps at Ll exposure valie for purpenses of e Fund's credit quality
quidatines. of amy) because such value in general better reflects the Fund's
ol enonomic expasure during the term of the oedit default swap
agreement As 3 result, 3 Fund may, at imes, have notional exposure 1o an
asset dass {before netting) that is greater or lesser Shan the stated fimitor
restricon noted in the Fund's Offeting Memorandum. In this context, both
thie nctional amount and the markel value may be posive of negative
depending on whether the Fand is saling o Buying protection thiough e
credfit default swap. The manned in which certam securilies of other
Irsrmmeents ane vauid by the Fund for purposes of applying irveshment
oo s el PeSATICEONS My differ from the mamner in which those
Ieveetimients e walued by other types of imvesions Enteding it seap
greemens imvatves, 10 vaning degrees, elements of imerest, aredit, markes
and documentation risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the
Statements of Assets and Liabdities. Such risks imvolve the possibility tat
there will be o Biguid market for these agreements, that the counterparty to
the sgresmenis may fail to perform o meet an chiEgation of disagres 34 to
the maeaning of confrachual temms in the agreements and that there may be
wnfavoratie changes in interestrates of the walues of Be assel upon which
the fwvap is based

A Fundl s mdparriam risk of boss from oounterpaety credi sk is the discounied
reet wakue of the cash fows 10 e received from thee counberpanty over the
contract’s remairing life, to the extent that amound is positive. The risk may
be mitigated by having a master netting amangement between a Fund and
the coumterpar by and by the posting of collateral 1o 3 Fund to cover 8 Fund's
exposire 10 the courterparty

T e extenta Fund has a poboy 10 lienT e ned amount owed 10 o o be
receed Trom & single counterparty urider Ed4Bng SHap greements, sdh
fimatation ondy applies to counterparties 10 OTC svaps and does not apply to
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centraky dedred swaps where the counterparty is 2 central counterparty of
denvatives dearing onganizaton

Credit Detauls Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter into aedi default
Taps N conporate, loan, sovereign, U5 municpal or US Treasury issues to
prenvidie 3 meature of protection against defaults of the istuers .., bo redine
risk where & Fund owres or has expoduane 1 the relerenced abligaton) o to
Lake an active long o thord positicn with respact to the Bkelihood of 3
partioylar isuer's detault Credit default swap agresments invobve one party
rreaking & stresm of payments (referred o a3 the buyer of propecion) to
another party (the seller of prosection] in exchangs for the Aght 10 e 3
specified returm i the event that te referenced entity, obligaton of index, &5
spedified in the swap agreement, undergoes a certain redit event As a seller
of profection on aedt default swap agreements, 3 Fund will generdly receive
from the buyer of protecticn 2 fixed rate of income throughout the erm of Ge
vevap prondded tat there is no credit event As the seller, a Fund would
effectoely add leverage to it portfolio becawse, in addition 1o its total net
aszets, the Fundwould be subgect to imvestment exposure on the notional
amount of the svap

I a Fund 5 & seller of protectssn and a oredl event ooours, 5 defined under
the s of that particular svap sgreernent, 4 Fund will eithér (i) pay 1o the
bpyer of protection an amount equal to the notional amount of te swap and
take delivery of the referenced obligation, other deliverable obligations o
underlying seasities compeising the referenced index oo (i) pay 3 net
settlement amount in e fomm of Cash or searities equal ta the nofomal
amount of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced obligation or
underhying sequities compeising the referenced index. I a Fund is 3 buyer of
prafecion and a credit event ooours, a5 defined under the terms of tat
partioular swap sgresrment, & Furd will either (i} recee from the seller of
protecson an amount equal io the national amauntof the avap and delivsr
the reterenced obligation, ather deliverable abligations or underhing
sequiities comprising the referenced indsx or {if) recesve & net settiement
ameunt in the S of cash or securities equal to the nofional smount of the
Swap bess the TECOHEDY walue of the referenced 'ﬂjlgﬂl'll)ﬂ of ul'ldéﬂ'rﬂg
SeCUnRies compasng e referanced index Redovesy values are estimated by
market makers considesing either industry standard recgeery rates or enfity
spedific factors and consideraSons unil a orecit evend ooours, If a credit event
has poosmed, the recovery value is determined by a fadlitated aucion
wiheretyra minimum number of allowsble broker bids, sogether with a
spedfied waluation method, ame used to calodfate the settlement value. The
ahility %o diliver other obligations may résull in 3 cheapest-qo-deliver opSon
{the bauyer of protection's ight to choose the defiverable cbligation with the
lowes vl following a qedit event)

Credt default svap agreements on aneditindeses ineobve o Pty making 2
stream of payments 1o another partyin exchange for the right 1o recele a
spedified retum in the event of awrite-down, principal shortfall, inberest
sheetfall or default of 2lor part of the referenced enBiies comprising the
aredit index. A creditindex is a basket of qedit nstnements of expotunes
designed b be representative of some part of the aedit market as a whae
These indexes are made up of reference aedits that are judged by a poll of
deders 1o b the most bquid entities in the credit default swap market based
ot sechor of He index Companents of the adeds fdy indude, but ar
nal limated ba, imeestment grade secunities, high vield seasities, sset-badoed
Secufifies, emerging markets, andior varicus cedit ratings within eadh sector
Credt indees re traded using qedt dafault swaps with standardized tenms
induding & fed spraad and standand matueity dates. An index qedt defaudt
gwiap references gl the names in the index, and if there is 3 default, the credit
event is setied based on thatname’s weight in e index. The compositon of
the indexes changes peniodically, usually every s months, and for most
indexes, each name has an equal weight in te indes A Fund may use gedit

default awaps on dedit indeses 10 hedge a portiolio of redit default swaps or
bonds, whidh i less expensive than it would be o buy many gedt default
awvape to achieve a similar effect Credit default swaps on indewes are
ierienmments for prabecing mweston cwning bonds ageanst default, and
traders wse Them bo speculate on dhanges in aredil quality

Implied gedit spreads, represented in absolute terms, vilfized in determining
the mmarked value of credit default swap agresments on oOmOate, loan,
sovereign, Lis munidpal or WS Treasury issuses s of period end, if any, ate
disdased in the Notes to Schedule of Investments. They senve a5 an indicator
of the asrent slatus of paymentiperfomance risk and reprasent the likelfhood
or risk of default for the referenced entity. The impled qedt spread of 2
particular referenced entity refects the cost of buging/salling protection and
iy inchude uptront payThents required fo be made B0 enber N0 He
agresment. Wider ared! spreack repredent a detericration of the referenced
enlify’s credit soundness and a greater likelihood or sk of defadlt o afher
credli event oooumng &5 defived under the tems of the agreement For credit
Gefaull S ap agreemments on aset-backed securites anvd credil indexes, the
duiobed market prioes amd resusting values sende as he ndcarcr of tie current
stangs of the payrnentperformance nik. Inreasing marbel vdues, in sbsolist
terms when compared o the notional amount of the swap, represent 3
deterioration of the referenced enfity's aredit soundmess and a greater
Idelieond or rigk of defacit or pther qedt event ooouming & defined under
the berme of the agreemant

The madmum patential amount of future payments (undiscounted) that 3
Fund 5 3 seller of protection could be requined o make under & oredt default
QNap agreement equas the noonsl amount of the dgreement. Nomona
amounis of edch indeadual orediit detault sap sgreement oy tandng i

of period end for which a Fund is the seller of protection are disdosed in the
Nites 1o Schedule of Investments. These potental amounts would be partially
offset by amy recovery values of the respective referenced obligations, upfront
payments recelied upon entening iIMo e agreement, of et amounts
received from the settlement of buy protection gedit default vwap
agreements entered info by a fund for the same referenced entity or enfitied

Imturest Rate Swap Agreemanis Cerlun Fumds e subject 1o intenest rane
risk exposre in the normal course of pursuing Bheir nvestment objectives
The value of the fixed rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease if interest
rates rise. To help hedge against this risk and to maintain its ablliey o
generate iNCome 3t prevading market rates, a Fund may enter into inferest
rate Swap agieements. interest rabe swap agreements invohve the eochange
by 4 Fund with another party for their respective commetment 1o pay or
recefve interest on the notional amount of pindpal. Certain forms of intenest
Fatg S agreemnents mdy indude: ) interest rate caps, wnder whidh, in
U Bor & premmiurm, one ity agreEs 10 make payments o the ather to the
exnen | Ehat interest rales exceed 2 speafed rate, of “cap”, i) intere rate
floces, ynder which, in retum for 3 premium, one party agrees 1o make
payments b the other 1o the extent that interest rates fall below 3 spedfied
rate, of “HBoor™, (i) interest rate collars, under which 3 party 2&ifs 3 cap and
punchases 3 fioor of Vioe versa in an sttempt 10 prosed it Rt ingeest
rate miwements eoceeding given minimum or madamum levels, (vl callabie
imterest rate wvaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
considerasion for the right to early terminate the wwap ransaction in whak,
at zerg ost and at 3 predetermined date and fime prior to the maturit date,
() spreadlocks, which dliow thi inbenest rate swap whers 1o lock in i
torward differential o spnead) between the infenest rate swap rate and a
ipedfied benchmark, o () basis wwaps, under which two parties can
exchan x viariable interest rates based on different SEQMENTS af I &Y
rarkets

Total Return Swap Agresmenss Certan Funds may enter into total retum
ayap agreements bo gain of miBigate exposure bo the underlying reference
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Totd rehem Swap agresments involve cormmetments whene single or multiple
cadh fows are enchanged based on the price of an underying reference assat
and on a feed or variable interest rate. Total return avap agreements may
Iredshv ComPmitEIENDS 10 Py nteneat in eachanges b 3 market-lnked return
O CouUnDbApaty pays out the cotal return of a spedic underying reference
asiel, which may indudie a single scurity, a bateet of secunities, of an index,
and in resum receves a fied or varizhle rate. At the maturity date, a net ca
Tl b5 exchanged where the total refum is equivalent to the retum of the
undehying rederence asset less & finandng rate, if any. As 3 ieceher, 3

Fund would recerve payments based on any positve DLH retum and wousd
e payments in the event of a negative total retum, As the payer, a

Fund weould owee payments on amy positive total retem, and would recetve
payments in the event of a net negative totd retm

T.PRIRCIPAL ARD OTHER RISKS

{a} Principal Risks I the normal ourse of Business, the Funds (or Acgquered
Fundz), if applicable) rade finandal instruments and enber into finanda
transactions where risk of potential boss eises due to such things a5 dhanges
in ghe market (maroet risk) or falure or inability of the other party o a
tramsaction bo perform (oredit and counterparty risk). See befow for 3 detaded
deaription of select prindpal gk

Funvd of Funds Risk To the extent that certain Fumds invest substantially all of
el respective assets in Acquered Fund(s), the risks assod sted with invessing
in these Funds will be dosely related to the risks aswodated with the sequrities
and other imvestiments hebd by the Aoquired Fundis). The abiity of the Funds
to achiewe their respective imvestment objectives may depend upon the abslity
o the Acguired Rund(s) b0 dchisne their fespedin: s Ment oyt
Thee can be no asturance | the imesrment obpectihee of any Aoquired
Fend{s) wall b achieved The NAY of an Acquiring Fundwaill fluctuate in
riesponte t0 changes in the respective NAV of the Acquensd Furd(s) in which it
VSRS

In thie noomal course of business, Aoguired Fund(s) vade Snanaal instremen s
and enter into finandial ransactions where risk of polential loss exists due to
changes in the market (market risk), or falure or inability of the glher party o
a fransaction to perform (redt and counterparty risk)

Market Risks A Fund's invesiments in finandal derivative instruments and
-‘_lE"lEf'ﬁl!.’ﬂUﬂ! INSIFLITIERES EXpore the Fungd ovanous nsks sadh a5 buinot
liFvited o, interest rate, foregn {non-U05 ) cureency, equity and comenod ty
risks

Interest rate rsk is the risk that fed income securiSes and other insruments
Pl ey & Fursd iy Aockuate in value Bicaute of & dhange in intenesl faed If
nofmng mierest rates nse, the vilue of certen foed mcome secanties hield by
4 Fund wold Tieely decriesse. A nomnal interedd rate can be described a5 the
sum of a real nterest rate and an sqpected inflation rate. inbérest rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money if
these dhanges are not anbopated by Fund manJgement. A Ful'ldf'flaﬁ'fll."[ be
able tohedge against changes i interest rates of may dvoose nat 1o do 50 for
ook or gfher reasons: in additicn, amy hedges may notwork s intended

s of the date of this report, interest rates in the United States and many
parts of the wodld, indudng certain European oouniries, contnue b indee
I effoens 1o combat infation, the L5, Federal Ritens raited interes] ranes
rouktiple times in 2022 and 2023 Thus, the Funds cumrenitly face a heghtened
el of misk assodiated with msing interest rates andior bond vields. This could
e chriven by a vaniety of facmers, endisding bat niot liméted 1o central Bank
mesetany podices, changing inflation of real growih rates, general economic
condbons, Inneasing bond ssuanies of reduoed markel dismand for low
yielding investments. Further, while bond markets have steadly grown over

the past three decades, dealer invenionies of corporate bonds are near historn
bows in refation 1o market size. As a result, there has been a significant
reducion in the ability of dealers 10 “make markets™

Foreign (nof-UL5 ) securites in tas report ane dusaSed by the country o
Incofparation of a holding. In certain indlances, a waurly's oauntry of
incorporation may be different from its oountry of economic exposure

It & Fund nvests directly in foreign (Roa-U S ) aumendies of in secmities that
trade in, and recéive revenues in, foreign {non-U S ) aumendes; or in finandal
derivatiee instruments hat provide exposure to foreign (non-LS ) amrendes,
itwill be subject to the risk that hose arendies wall dedline in value relative
Lo thee Bt currency of the Fund, o, In the cate of hedgng podtions, that
the Fund's base currency well decline in walue relative do the asrency beng
hisdged Curency rates in bonign countries may fluchiate sgnificantly owr
shioet periods of fime for 3 number of reasons, induding changes in interest
rates, intenention (o e Glre fointervensh by LS. or foreign govennments,
CEnral panks of Supranatonsl entines such as the internationa Monetany
Fund. or by The impsimon of qurrency contrals of other politcal developments
im the United States or abroad. As aredwlt, a Fund's investments in foreign
currency-denominabed sequrities may reduce the Fund's relums

The makel vahues of equities, such a3 common shodks and pretemed seamtied
o equity ref sled wvesiments such a8 futures and opions, have hishorically
risen and fallen in periodic cpcdes and may dedine due 1o general market
condismns which are nof speds Cally related b0 3 par ticular comgany, wdh &
re O percerved sdverse eoonomeC ConAons, Changes in e general
outhook: fof conporate Eanings, dhanges in intenest o Quirency rates, public
Frealth emedgendes, wdh & e spresd of infectious Aneis of dleass, of
adverse imvesiorn sentiment generally They may also dedine due to factors
which affect a particular indusbry or industries, sdh 35 labor shortages o
Increased production costs and competitve condidions within an industry
Citterant types of equity secqmities may read differently 1o these
dewebopments. Equity sequrities and equity related investments generally have
greater madke! price voladlity than fied income sequnties

Credit and Counterperty Risks A Fund wall b exposed 1o gedi ik o
parties with whom it rades and will dlso bear the nisk of setfement default, &
Fund minimi 24 concentrations of aredit risk by undertating fransactions with
a large number of Oxtomers and counterparties o recogni zed and reputable
exchanges, where applicable OTC demvative trantactions of other smlar
irestments ane subject bo e risk that a counterpaity o the transachon will
ol Bl its contractual obfigations to the other party, as many of the
profecions afforded ceniraly cedned derivative (ran seoions raght nol be
avaiatie for OTC derivative Eansscions of other sedar envestments. Foe
dertvaies traded on a0 exdhange of throogh 4 Genersl Counterparty, aredit
Fidk resides with the creditworthiness of the Fund's deaning broker, or the
deannghuse itself, rather than with a counterparty in an OTC denivative
transaceon. Changes in reguiation relating to -3 Fund's use of demvatives and
related instnaments could potentialiy limit or impact the Fund's abiliey to
ISt in dervaimess, limit the Fund's abiity to employ dertain siratedqees that
use derivatives andior adversely aflect the value or perfomance of dervatives
and the Fund. A Fund could Bose money if the isswer or guarantor of a fimed
income sequrity, of the counterparty to a finandal denivative

e AR I CORIEACE, repundhate agresmentof 3 loan of portolio Seduntied, 1S
unable o unvalling 1o make Smely prindpal andfor sntenest payrments, o o
atfwrerse honor it obligations. Seaanities and finandsl derivalive instrumients
are subgect to vandng degrees of aredit risk, which may be reflectsd in credit
radngs

Simila to qed risk, a Fund may be expoted o cownber party risk, of the nisk
that an institution or other entity with which a Fund has unsettled or open
tramsactons will default PIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes counterparty
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risk:s bo the Funds through 2 niember of ways. Prior 1o enteing into
transactions with a new counterparty, the FIMCO Counterparty Risk
Committee conducts an extersive qedit review of such counterparty and must
approrde the uie of such counterparty. Furthisrmade, paruant 10 the b of
thé urdesrityin g coniract, 10 the extent that unpad amaosnts dwed 1o 3 Fund
exieed A predetermined threshold, such counperparty shall advance collateral
to @ Fumnd in the foern of cash or seoanties equal in valiee 1o the unpaid
amount cwed 1o 3 Fund. A Fund may invest sudh collaterd in SIS OF
ofer nsmuments and will typlcatly pay interest 1o the counterparty on the
cotlberad recetvid, 1T the unpid amcunt owied 103 Fuend subsequenty
degeases, a Fund would be requered to retum bo the counterparty all o a
poetion of the collateral previously advanced, PIMCO' attempts to minkmize
counserparty risk may, however, be unsucoessil

Al tranmsaction: i listed secunties ane sefthedpaid for upan delivery uing
approeed counterparties. The mdk of default s consediered minimal, a5 delivery
of secunities spld is m'yffﬂﬁ? once a Fund has recensed payment. Payment is
mdce on g purchase once Be Seourites iave Deen gl ivened by the
counterparty. The made will £ if either party fals so meet it obligaton

ib] Oiber Risks In geneval, each Fund may be subject bo addiionall risks,
Ircfuding, but nak lirmitsd to, s ndated 1o goamnment regulaton and
intenvenBon in finandal maroets, operaional riss, ks assoaated with
finandal, scnamic and gobal market disruptions, and oyber security risks
Please refer 1o eadh Fund's offering documents for 2 more detabed
desaription of the risks of investing in the Fund

Market Digruptions Risk The Funds are subject to investment and
operational fsks atoodaned wath finandal, econdaric and other ghobal market
developrents and discuptions, sndudng thode arising fom war, temoim,
market manipulation, govemment intensentions, delauln and shutdeens,
poliBeal changes of dplomasc developments, public heahh emerendes
{zuch as the spread of infecioys disaases, pandemics. and epidemics) and
naturalensironmental disasters, which can all negatnely impact the SeOpises
markess, interest ratess, sucticns, secondary trading, ratngs, credt risk,
inflaticon, deflation and other factors refating to the Fund's investments o the
Manages"s operations and cause a Fund 10 fose value, These events may have
adverse long-terrn effects on the US. andworld economies and markets
generally, These events can also impair the technology and other operaticnal
sysberms wpon which 4 Fund's service providirs, indwding PIMCO a3 the
Funds’ imvestment adviser, rely, and could offwrwise dsnept & Fund's senace
prosiders’ abulity to fulfill e abligations to the rélevant Fund

W5 and global markets recenty have expenenced mdedded wvolatility,
Induding & a resut of the recent failures of certain US and mon-U S banks,
which could be harmiul fo the Funds and isaers in which they imest for
example, if a bank atwhich a Fund or ksuer has an acoount fals, any cash or
ather assels in bank or custody aocounts, which may be substantial in size,
coukd be temporarnly inacoessible or permanenty bost by the Fund of issuer. o
2 hank that provides 3 absaiphion line credit fadlity, aiset-based fadlieg,
other gedi fadlity andior ather senaces bo an iswer of 1o a fund fails, the
isswer or fund could be unable to draw funds under s credit fadlites or
obitain replacernent oredit faoiBes or other sendces from other lending
INRIDULRCN S itk SiFmlar Lefie

tsers inwhich @ Fund may invest can be affected by volatility in the banking
sector. Even if banks used by kssuers in whidh the Funds imeest remain sobvent,
conreied volatiity in the Banting sector muld conardbute o, Cause of
Intenisity 30 econOMIC recedSon, ngeade the costs of capital and banking
senwioes or result in the rsswers being unable bo obtain or refinance
indebiteciness at all or on a5 favorable terms a5 could othenwise have been
obtained Condtions in the banking sector are evohiing, and the scope of any
paitengial imnpacts o the Funds and isuers, Both from market condtons and

o potential legidative of regulatony responses, are uncertan. Such
condiBons and responses, aswell & a changing inlerest rate emvironment,
can contribute by decreased market liguidity and erode the value of certain
ol b, Bnciudimg therte of U5 and non-ULS. baskes. Continuid market
wolatility and uncertainty sndfof 3 downtum m masket and economec and
fnandal conditions, 343 reslt of developenents in She bankirg sector of
othenwise Gnduding a5 a result of delayed access to cash or credit faciitles),
coubd have an adverse impact on ihe Funds and kswers in which they imest

Goverrmant Intervention in Finencial Markeis Federal, state, and other
governmens, their reguiatony agendes, or seff-regul story orgenizations may
Take acsons that affect T résgulation of the InStnsTEMS nwhich a Fund
Ienaiests, ooF e issisers of Such Bndrements, in ways thal se unforeteeable
Lesgeshatacan oo requlation may also change the warg in which 4 Fund itsel? i
reguiated Such legiskation or reguiation could limét or predude a Fund's
aloikiy to achieve its investment oljective. Furth ermaore, volatile finandal
arkets Can expose a Fund W gredter market and liquediny fisk and potental
difficulty in valuing portfolio instraments hald by the Fund The value of 2
Funds holdings is also generally subject to the risk of future local, national, or
gobal economic dstrbances based on unknown weaknesses in the markels
Inwhich a Fund invests, i addition, it is not certain that the U % Govemment
wall inbenesne in response 10 & Juture markel dstuibane and the effec of any
wich future intencention canmol be predicted. | 15 difcult for issuers o
prepare fof the impac of future finandal downiurms, although companies can
ek 00 identify and manage fuliare unceraintes tough risk management
ErOgRans

Ragulstory sk Fnanddl enSities, such as Fvestment compénies and
irmestment advisers, are generally subject to extensive government regulation
and inbeneen tion. Goverrement requlation andion inteneendon may change the
weiry & Funsd is regulated, aRec the sqenes incuried deectly by & Fund and
the value of its imvestiments, and limit andfor predude 3 Fund's ability to
achieve its imvestment objecive. Govemment regulation may change
frequenthy and may have dgnificant adverse consequences. Morever,
QovErmment regulanon may hine unpredictable and uninbénded effects

Operationsl Rk An investment in 2 Fund, like amy fund, can involve
operatanal ritks arising froem 3o such a procestng emors, urman &ors,
Inadequate or failed intemal or exderndl prodesses, talures in systems and
technobody, changes in pertonndd and ennors caused by thind-party sevice
prowidens, The conamence of any of these falures, emors o breadhs could
resalt in 3 boss of information, requlatory sauting, reputationsl damage of
other events, sy of whidh could have & material adverse efiect on 3 Fund
While 3 Fund seeks o menienize auch events throwgh confrols and oversight,
there may still be failures that could cause losses to the Fund

Cyber Security Risk  Cyber security sk is the itk that, & the use of
tedhncdogy has become mane prevalent in the course of butiness, the Funds
have beqome patentially more susceptible to operational and information
SECUEIR risks resulting from breadnes in oyber senmty. A breadh in Opber
efers to bath intentional snd wnintentional ober events from ot
thiedd BCtors oF internal resources that may, among ofher tings, carke 3
Fund to bose proprietary information, suffer data comuption anddor destruction
or Pose operationd capadty, result in the unauthoeized release or other
misisse of confidential information, or otherwdse disupt norma business
operatmns. Cyber secunty Lalures or breaches may rewlt in fnandial lossaes o
4 Fund and its Unitholders. These falures or Breaches may also redultin
dsmuptions 1o budiness operations, potentially resulting in financal losses;
imterference with a Fund's abiliey 1o calculate it net asset v, process
Unighclder mardacuons of ofhensrie Wansad business vath Uinitholders;

i o radng valatons of applcable privacy and other Laws;
reguiatony fines; penalies, Sirdparty daird in Figation; reputational
damage; reirmbursement or other compersation costy; addfional compfiance

Bl Fage | Dowbar 0. 2003 bl
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and cyber security risk management costs and other adverse contaquences. In
addtion, substantial costs may be incumed in or der 8o prevenit any ovber
Ingdents in the fature There i a0 a rigk that oyber sequrity breaches may
nil be detected. A Fund and i Unitholders ry sufier ot 252 result of a
oytef Secunity breach related to e Fund, its serace providers, fading
CouRBEaArtes of the rssuers i which the Fund imvesss

8. MASTER HETTING ARRANGEMENTS

Thie Funds may be subject to various netting amangements " Masher

Al eements ™) with select counterparties, Master Agreements govern the
terme of certain transactions, and are intended B recuce the counterparty sk
assod ated with rikevant ransactions by spedtying credit protection
mechanisms and providing stendandization that rs intended 10 improee kgl
certanty Each type of Madter Adgresment governs cerain types of
transactions. Different types of ransactions may be raded out of different
legal enbses of affliates of & particular oeganization, resulting in the need far
ruliiiple ﬁ_:'.?’l.“il'lﬁﬂl‘.-'ﬁﬂﬂ'l & ‘.~"1I}:t‘ COBN TETDAar By A5 the Masier Al?":ﬂmll",
e spedfic b unigee operations of different asset Types, iy #low  Fund to
close oyt and net its total exposire 1o 4 counberpanty in the event of 2 default
with respect o all the transactions govermsd under a single Master
Aryeement with 3 counterparty For fnandial repoeting pumposes the
Staternents of Assets and LiabeBties generally present dervative assets and
Iabilities on a gross basks, whech reflects the full ks and espadsures prior o
netting

Masher AGreEmEns Can ko hedp lim COUNDE DTy Mk L{f ".{'.'I'?IZITﬂII':_I
colkateral posung Arangemints M pre-aranged opotune levels Under most
Matter Agreaments, allatersd i routndy ansfered if the tata net epaiure
to certain Transactions (net of exising collaterd already in place) govermed
unger the relevant Master Agreement with a counterpanyin a given acoount
exgeeds 3 spedfied threshold, which nypically ranges from zero 1o $250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agresment Linited
States Treasury Bills and U%, doflar cxsh are generally the preferned forms of
il ateral, although other secqunBes may be used dependng on the terms
outlined i the applicable Misier Agreement. Secuntes and cich pledged i
oothateral aee reffected a5 assets on the Sranements of Asters and LiabiiSes a5
it a component of Invesiments a1 value (Seounties) of Deposits with
oounterparty. Cath collateral received is not typically held in a4 wgnegated
acpount and as such is reflected a5 a Bability on the Statements of Assets and
Liztisties a5 Deposits from counterparty. The market valse of 2oy seosifes
received & codateral 15 not reflected &5 3 component of NAY. The Fund's
Crver 3l exposLne 10 COUNTENparTy sk can chamge sulsitantially wathin 4 shart
period, as it is affected by each fransaction subject to the relevant Master
Agesment

Master Repurchase Agresments and Global Master Repundate Agresments
{individually and collectively ~Master Repo Agresmenis”) govern repurchase,
revierse repurchase, and sabe-buyback Wransacthons beteesn e Funds and
select counterpanties. Master Repo Agreements mantan provions fur,
amcng other tings, iretiation, income payTnents, events of default, and

e nbenan ce of collanesal. The mia ket value of ransactions under the Masher
Repo Agreement, collateral pledped or received,. and the net exposure by
counserparty as of period end are disdoded in the Motes 1o Schedule of
rvestments

Master Securities Forward Transaction Adgreements (T Master Fanward

Ay eaments”) govern certam fonwand settling ransactions, such as TRA
secur lies, delayed-delivery o sake duybad: ransactons by and

bistween the Funds and seled counterparties. The Master Forerard
Agreements mantan provsons for, amang ofher Sings, mitaton and
oorfirenation, payenent and trander, events of delwll, termenation, and
maintenance of collateral The market value of fonsard setfing transactions,

collateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by counterparty as of
period end are disdosed in the Motes bo Schedube of Invesiments

Customis Acoount Agreemients and relansd sddenda govem deaned

iy atvies IWaMSHI0nS sdh a5 futunes, Optoes on fulufes, and deared OTC
derivateed Sudh rardactons requine pasing of miial mangn a8 debéruned
by each refevant dearing agency which i5 segregated in an acoount ata
futures qonmission menchand ("FCM) regrstened wath the Commad ty
Futures '-hl-d'l'l'_] Coenmisslon {"CFTC™). in the United 513165, COLIRTEIPATY ok
iy be reduced as aeditors of an FOM cannot have 3 daim 1o Fund assetsin
the seqgregated account. Portabality of exposure in the event of an FCM
default scenario further reduces risk 1o the Funds. Vanation margin, or
changes in market value, are generally exchanged daily, but my not be
rietbed between futures and desred OTC demdatves inbess e partes have
agreed to 4 separabe amandgement in respect of fund mangining The masket
walue or st ated unrealized sppredation (depredation), initial mangn
posted, and any unsettled vanabion margen a5 of period end are discosed in
the Mates bo Scheddle of Ivvesmnents.

Intematicnal Swaps and Dervatives Assodation, Inc Master Agreements and
Crodt Support Annees {1506 Master Agresments™) govern bilateral OTC
derivabive ramsactions enbered inbo by the Funds wigh select counterparties
rfA Master Agresments mainkain provisions for general obligations,
repreenlalions, agreements, oollateral posiing and events of default or
terrnination. Everits of termination indude conditions that may enlitlé
counterparties b elect to terminate ealy and Guse setthement of d
Cuistandeng transacuons under the spplcable 1504 Mater Ageement. Amy
eleion 10 teminare eary could be manenal ro the fnandal statements The
IS0 Mt Agreernent may contain addtiona provisions that add
counferparty protection beyond ooverage of exisiing daily exposure if the
counferparty has a dedine in oredit quality below a predefined level o a5
required by requiation. Simdlarty, if required by regulation, a fund may be
requized to post addidonal coflateral beyond coverage of daily exposure
These amounts, if any, may (or if required by law, will) be segregated with a
third-party artodian. To the extent a Fund is required by regulation to post
addional collateral beyond cowerage of daily expomure, it could potentially
Inauf oals, induding in prodursng elighle asets 1o meel oollateral
regquiEments, assocated with such pastng The marker value of OTC
fmandial denvative inttnumwnts, oollateral received of pledged, and net
expiiune by countemarty & of peniod end ane disdosed in the Nates 10
Schedle of Invesments
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9. FEES AMD EXPENSES

dlowing fees payable at the Sllowing annual rates (stated as a percentage of the average daily net asete of each Fund, or Clazs, if

Fees

Fund Manag 1t Acksesory Adminisirative Agency Distrabution
PIMCO Bermuda Emengirg Markets Bond Fund 1l

LI TR = [

" |t P Hedged as 0 35% i s -
PIMCO Bermuwda Glabal Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund @8 0 25% i1} o
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A

= Eup
= LSO
= IFY}
. LIS - - - ~ -
L] - - - -
" 1 76% - - [ 6% hE%
i | 75% = = [06% HEE%
. — - -
L] N _' B _
- 0EE% 1 bo %
" L
= A

| 5% ] %R

] EE% - (A" -

1 7%= — — =

- [ ES% A% = -

[ B =
" IstP He | 45%=
" 1)

PIMCO Bermusda LS. High Yield Fund Il (M) - 035 % 020%= 2 .
PIMCO Care Inceme Corparate Bond Fund 2020-10
= UsD 1 4% - - [ 0% 0 A%

PIMED World High Income | 1% 0 0% %"

eyl Fagart | Dowber 0, 2003
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o't T P e i 0 s T Y U o V7 ) 1 A AT S G S et vy e it % o s i

# ALY fpom ety ke’ gty (e ol Fon [0 # T I a0 iy do vl vy Paeesd 12 vl et v i Pl e 7% e v ey i ot e 40 el o ' o ey 0 e e e
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The management, advsory and sdminisrative fees, if applicable, are pad monthly in arears 1o PRVCO for provding o amanging for the provwsion of advsory,
adminittrative and third-party sereices indudng sudt, astodial, Fustes, portholio actounting, routine legal, ransler 20en1 and printing senices. The agency and

it i on fees, if 4 appiicable, are pad rr'nnlh’fl- i @ress 1o reimbyrse fingnd 3 mtermed daes thal provade senvices and dismibution relag fig b e Utz of the
appdcable Fand (or Class thereof, a5 spplicatle). In exchinge for wdh fees, FIMCO wall bear the cost af vanous senece providens required teyf the Trust and sppacable
Fund. PIMCO, and not LE fifiers, wiortild bervefin from anvy price decredse im the cost of sudh thindparty sendoes, induding deoreates resulling from an inaeass in ne
Aseets. In atdtion, with nespect 10 Funds that ane subgect toan administrative fee, PIMCO generally makes 3 profit on sudh & fee

As mofed in the table atowe, cartan Funds and Classes of Funds are not subiect fo management, advisory, admmnistrative, agency of deinbution fees. PIMCO Japan
Lied, FCO's affiliate in Japan, is paid a fee from the lapanese Invesiment Trssts or other imestment vehides that invest im such Funds or Classes and a portion of
such fee is then dlocated to FIMCO 1o compentate it for its servces, as applicable

The Funds (or Classes thereof, a5 appicable) may bear other expenses refated o their operation that are nat covered by the management, advisony, admiresirative,

aenoy or duiribution fees, induding bt not lirited to: ) taxes and govemmental fees; §i) brokersge fees and comemissions and other portfolio ransaction expemses;
() 0w 15 0 Do oawinig Frionsy, 'vJu:}rrg iNEREst expense; (i) extracedinary expnie, induding costs of lingaton and mdemnifcanon expenses; snd i) sy expen s
abocatid o allocable 1 a x|_.-._||._ Clarss of Uit PIMSCO hars pid the orgamzational expendes atsodd sted with de creation of the Trust. PINCO has pasd he
organizaBional expenses assodatedwith the crestion of each Furd

PIMCC Bermuda income Fund A (the M (IFY Advisonyd and M (LED Advisony) Classes), PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10 and FINCO Workd High
Inome pay on-going expenses relsled ta the public offering of their Units in lapan

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Thie nvesstmnent Acviaer i 3 nélated party to the Funds and |4 2 rajonty-owned subsidary of Alianz Adset Management AG Fees paid to the relatéd party. if any, ane
dischosed in Hote 9, and acoed related party fee amounts, if any, are dsdosed on the Statements of Assets and Lisbiliges

Aliang Asset Management &G, arelated party of fe Trst, owned § 013% of the net assets of FMCO Bemoda Dwmname; Malti-Asser Srategy Fund and 0 014% of
the net assets of PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportuniies Fund as of October 31, 2023

Cemain Funds ae peritted to pundhase of sell seouritles from or 1o certain related affilianed funds under spedfied conditions outlined in procedures adopred by the
Lament Adviser. The procedures have been designed 10 ensure that sy pendhade of sae of sequnities by & Fund from of 10 encther fund hat isof oould be
comsicened an afliate by virtue of hindng & commeon adviser (or atiliated evestment advisers), is effecied at te curment madcet price. During the period ended Ootober
31, 2023, the Funds) below éngeged in pundases and tHles of sequnties amdong affikated funds (amounts in thousinds)

Fund Purchmse Saes  Posled Ganflos)
FAMACED Bowmmasdy Bk Loune Fund 05 3 694 3 o % 333
FRMDD Bt Emesigeng Marke®: Bosed Fond (1) 254 20 [18E)
FIMOD Besmuda Emeigpng Markes Bond Fond 1l 3015 1802 3l
FHACD Bemmaia (Govbed Aparega e Ex-Jupan Bend Fund iU} 357 4,750 16
P Beemasda Income Fund G % 8510 {6604
FIMOD Boemada Lo Durason logame Fund 2066 BX 1]

s Fogae | Dowber 1, 2052 Fod
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11. GUARARTEES ARD IRDEMRIFICATIONS
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Notes to Financial Statements co
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Notes to Financial Statements co
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO World High Income

INESTMENTS IN SECURITIES D.0%
(SHORT-TERM INSTRUKENT S 0.0%

Benl af Neva Seatls

4 E30% e 110172073 : LI 1
Civibank MA
4 555% dee 11017073 3 3
OES Bank Led
4 E30% dee 110172373 2 2
JPMsrgan Chase Bamh MLA
A 330% dee 110172073 5 L]
Sumitems Mitsui Trust Bank Led.
A B30% den 110170023 ! !
18

Tatal Shart:Term Instrumenis 18
Cast 18
Tadal Invesimenis bn Securiies 18
Cast $18)

LTS

il

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES 100.3%

OTHER IMJESTMENT COMPANIES 100,3%
[PIMCD Bermuwds Emavging Markats Band Fesd i)

Cest $39,008) 2558

Tedal Imvestmants ia Afilisten 1.3
Cest $39,008)

Tatal Imvestments 1 00F5 030
Cest 330,008}

Ouker Assets and LiskSities, ne 0D, 3% aog
et Bnets 100.0% 41240

HOTES TO SCHEDULE OF INWESTMENTS

A zers balanc e may reflect actual asmsunts rounding te less than ene thousand,

This foioevira & 3-pummaey ol 1he B valmnons aocording 12 B mpos woed 45 of Oesober 30, X070 naubeng the Funds s and kel

Fair Valuw 1

Categery and Subcatagery Level | Lavel 2 Lewel 3 10312023
Arwesimenss in Secwrites, ot Valee

BorrTem Incinmens H D & {1 n £ 18
Mrwesimenes in AHBasws, a1 Valus

(b g vy Cooom purisy 1133 g 1] 433
Tatal Invesiments § 4N & 18 & ok 41348
Th

kWi 0 Lt raralen s e on o el 3 ey e penod enided Qiachar 30, IS

Sen ot viemp aa plag mitn degl B | Donaber 31, 059 )
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edule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Em

FENCEL
AMOUNT VAE
L] T

INESTHEN
ANODOLA 1%

Ansslan O e 14

B 5P dhe (500705 F

0 ¢ 155
S1T% den 11052043 m il
Total Angala
Cast §537)

Mrganting Gendameatinternitional Bead

75 dee 0P0B2030 130 k-
10 deon 070972073 86 3
TS0 doe D041 T 184
TETH doe 700055 BT 116
T dee DP002HG 0 LT
Pravincis de Buenas Alres

BT den 0012037 100 13
Pravincia de ls Rlsja

B500% dee 2002028 a0 1]
Tinal Arganting 503
iCesr $800)

Armenla Geeernment interna tenal Bind

TE0% dee 20E001 FiL| i}
Tatal Armenia 161
East 4147

AZEREAIJAN 0,75
i o= 7

SRCAR Turkwy Enevjii A5 via Sinis Fundiag 1 DAC
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erging Markets Bond Fund (M)

FralCa Al
A NALLE
e uce)
Ol ivcht Dil & Gas Fisancs Led. (@)
0000 e 1 EA0EET 3 s 1
0000 dus 120172023 a7 ]
1
Brazil Gavernment Intesnatana| Band
4 T50% dus DLA 42050 ] m
STRUCTISHED NOTES
WVile 5.4
13780 due 1350172 ) BAL 240 13{
Tutal Brazil 131
Cest H810)

CAMERDON 0.3%

Repubilic of Comarann MatesaiBans Bend

1 130% chen {00 1AN0H 100

Swuthem 0 s Corvider CJ5C

BETH due (ATL0TE FiL] 108
Tadal Azwrkaljan 204
ezt $308)

Bahrain Davaenment baterna fisnal Band
A 50% che 0125200 i i)

Tanwl Bahrain

BERMUDAD.4%

LAl RF LIRS

Star Eneryy Grathrrmal Darajat i

B
g

4 550% dee 10047058 Fal 1] 165
Tatal Bermuda 168
Cest $200)

i

T i

Banca da Brasll 5.0
B500% dee 01227008

L] i

566 o g i g Sl

5B due (ITRTSAZ EUR o 138
Tetal Cam#rsan ]
Eezt $200)

CAYMAN ISLANDS 5.1%

CORPORATE DOMOS & NOYES 515

Biscapnics Saveraign Cortificute Lad,

DUERDO% dom DERSE34 2 8 185
CH Hutchizen Internationdl 23 Lod.

A T5IM% che DA C00R oo 42
LTSS due DA o] 182
[z Firsd mwesiment Co.

S 000% due 100372007 3 Fi )
2120 due DEALA003 30 e 73
Inseraceanics IV Fingres Led

DO duw 1 RCOTS igh 155 140
Inseraceanics W Finance Led

D000% e (5452000 I ur
Halsa Group Heldings Led

11.750% ds GTRT040 ) Fo] T
Pivw Enharedd Pass Theaugh Finanss Lod,

000 o OSSO0 g u "
Pelmsetila Finunce Lid

BEZ9% due DEA 12000 17 140
Seazen Greup Lid

44500 dus DR 32005 o] 4
Suci Secend lmvestment Co.

B000% due 1TSRCE Fo i,
Sunac China Heldings Ledl

T2 dum 020 4120408 ) Fol] H
T500% doe 02004 il i
Deangiheng Group Haldngs Lad,

2000 due DI VH0E 7 1
Tetal Capman Islands 2087
Emi§2,50)

PR A  BOMNDS 1 |
Bance Santander Chile
2 0% due DLRDGEES i) 15 Ll
Cary. Machsnal del Cabre de Chils
BTSN dus 11BN
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FRMLIFA
EMRTLAT WAl
A 0
Emjrets o o Farrecarcilen del Eitud
108 due 087250 ] b 1 1
B3 due 001 472051 Ll 18
Empresa Machanad del Petralea
6150 due 05 072053 1 18
108
o — e
Chile Devarmmant bntematisaal Band
£ A dow DOT3042 1 155
Tatal Chile BED
a1 41,140

Ecaprird 5S4

1375 due DOAA43 13 1E3
Calembis Devernment Intemational Band
TN dow (TR0 509 35
13755 dow (0 B713T m 181
1 500 due 0T n 164
120
Total Calambla 803
Cest 61,240

COSTA RCA BLA%

Cosia Rica Gavernaent Internathenal Band

BB A ARV wm__ e
Tatal Costa Rica 180
Ee1 $16T)

DOMINC AN REPUBLIC 6.4%

Oeminkzan Aepublic Contral Bank Mates

12 B00% due 104037005 [op B03 4
13 000% dus 129057005 11400 M3
13 000 due OIS 1 303 )

Deminkcan Regubli Internatianal Besd

5 0% dow 01215H1 ] il 1 148
5 500% dos 127100CH m 153
OG0 doe 1057007 Bl !

G000 doe (IR0 il 1
€00 chom OBARYITMYG m 154
BB o DTS i Bl
07500 o OBIERTE oo¢ 8603 140
11 T0% due 1063 52005 apm 143
13 525% due D2NAT0T] 8,200 ]
Tatal Deminican Regublic 2,248

Cent §2,397)

Ezuads r Gaverem ani inpermational Band

QDGR doe DTG0 £ o i
15008 dor 0TGN Fal! N
508 dw 0TS B3 e
B D00 o 07030 a7 3
Tatal Eewadar Me
Cwst 41,088

denl Pypen | Sowber J1 0T [+
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edule of Investments PIMCO Eermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

Egypt Oarvermmend baironationsl Band

BIT5% che B8N 172031 B bl
1A des ES007030 ] 400 e ]
7 90 des (20172043 40 i
500 cha 01012047 =00 157
AT den ER0R050 o 1]
Tatal Egypt 1038
st §1.881)

fL SAELVADDR D.7%

B Salvadar Deverma

nt bnterna tisnal Band

T125% cea 01 20050 b %
TEIH doe 20017203 50 2
S500% due E7N 5052 150 111
Tutal Bl Sabvadar m
Cazt 3400} ===

Repulilic of Giha s Imterna thenal Band f)

D00 dee DLOTINTS ki [
T dee DGNENN il BE
1 25% dee D602 3 {F
A de DLOTZOMM 0 B
B 750% dem 000 172061 1] 167
Tatal Ghana 543
Cast #1280

GUIAT EMALA B.B%

Quatemala Deveenment Band

B0 25 due DAR012050 i} 160
BE0% due BT VXM 00 -3
Tatal G temalka 345
Cast $400)

HOHG KOMNG 08%

Fertune Star B Lid

i ] 100 i}
Rirgart Autharity
ATPE den 01N 20030 & ol _ inz
Tetal Hang Kaag 2587
Ceat $288)
W Energetiia Zri

7500% due $R002073 0 L)

Hungary Qe rinment ksematisnal Band

| dee DAZEN0ID Eeh Ll il
5 250% e 0BNE0H 2 o L
S500% dee (6052034 o L |
G250 cue 002N ] 183
Magyar Expare-bmpart Bank 2ro

G173 den 12047027 ] 1]
S0 ai bimp s pag wala

FrafCa Al

AT NALLE
(=) eece)

MFB Majyar Fajloiz i Basd Zrt
G500 due DETR2628 & 0 & 147
N F .
Tetal Hengary 1,768

[Ceat §1,308)

L & il B2

Ao Tranimiwsien Seep-One Lad,

4 TS0 che (15017008 156 17

Expertlmpart Bank of India

50 due DRASD 0 160
Tutal India 86
Eenn $3637)

INDONESIA 1.7%

Frasgart Inderesia PT

531 5% dus DAALO00Z 0 m

Indenesia Asahan Alusiniss PT

54500 due 035800 0 186

Prrtamina Persera PT

B 500 due 1 LOGDLE 00 188

Perenaba gn Perseresn Pereers FT Pernshsan Lnwit
Hagirs

B 1508 don (14710408 20 _ A

Tetil Indanesia Tz

Emi kT80

IFRELAND 0.4%

Regublic of Angala Via Awemir Issuer 1 frelend DAC

B E27% don (120972637 1m_
Tetal Ireland ¥
Ewst 5153

Lirviathas Bend L1d,
B 125% due DSO0V0TS &l 186

Ak

sra Gavirnm em Band

1 500 due 10072003 L5 1360 k7]

tard ol Cavirnm e |m matianal Bard

& (0% due 100E0E EUR 550 Eri ]
L3

Tetul barunl e

Eenn $1,004)

IWORY COAST D&%

vary Ceast Gowerrment International Band

5 T50M% dus 12710007 2 = ]
6 625 dus (IVT2EHE EUR 100 il
Total heary Cuast pra ]
Emt&diT)
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Jamakca Gavwrmmant Inoernatisnal Bamd

THTS da OTORMS 3 mns 7
Tetal Jamaica 217
et 62007

JERSEN, CHAKNEL ISLANDS 0.3%

o

Carsalr Intermational Lod

BRI e 115807 TR 103 104
Tatal Jerswy, Channel

I lands. 104
CmifNa

JORDAN 1.0%

Jurdan Devemnment Internatisnal Band

1375 dm 1O 0NT B m 152
T 560% o 010101 300 il
Tutal Jardan 432
Cast 6612

Hazldunayas Nathinal Co. JSC

2375% due 4TURI00 1 178
STH dos D4NGGAT Ll 14§
Tengizcheyr edl Finance Company Insernatiena] Lo,

1750% d DBASEII m____ 5
Tatal Kazak stan S

Lost EETE)

HENTA 0.3%
DVERE0M I55UES 1.3% |

Fapulilic of Kemyga Qovernmant inersatisnal Band

6 300 dow TG00 ¥l 137
Tatal Kemya 137
Cen1 5200

Lebanam Gavesnment Internatisesl Band

0250 due 057 IR0 1. 47

Tetal Lebasan a7

Cwat $61)

LUXEMBOLAG 2.1%

Chile Beciricity Lux MPC Sarl

AOI0R due 0103 Ha 184

Grermalt Pigelines Bides Sad

A170% due 02020 300 ko]

Guara Marte Sarl

2190% due 51 5204 (1) 150

Petraris Lussmbaury Trading Sarl

6175 due DGOSE m 180

Unigel L smbaerg S.A.

B TS0R o 1 DA 1 brl
demgl Bypen | Sovber I 0T ]
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edule of Investments PIMCO Eermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

FRaNCF
AnUNT WALE
freet) o)
Tatal Lum emesury § aas

Cast 51,097}

Khazanah Cagital Lsd.

5T dee DRO10T3 ¥ A0 i
Patrenat CapimalLid

JADA% dos DRE0E] 00 E
Patrenat Enedgy Comada Lad

711 2% dee VTR0 00 i
Todal Malaysia 476
East $534)

Camislon Frderal de Beciricidsd
B I54% dee 020572052 il 57

Hipebecaria 5 Casita 54, & V.
BB du DRGTIA &) MOy 3512 L]

Priraless Mesicases

6350% dee TN 244 ¥ 3 LiE]

G550% dee 01087060 2 a

50 dee 01232050 el 157

10 000% e DPT203 a0 nr

Sities Latnasmerics SAE de TV,

S379% du DAL kil | 1]
1,080

1a——

Wxice Javeramaet bntsrnitional Band

1150 des 112T021 D L0 B | ]

T006% den 1203000 & ] Hy

STH de 100210 8 kil 151
T——

Total Masies 1,880

Cost 52570

OCPEA,

S E25% de ERTHI05) kL] ]

Warecce Gevermmeat Internatisnal Bend

A0 dee 12052040 Fil 1] 113
Tanal Marszcs 4B
Eest $397)

Hamikia Oavedamant Mabivas Henal Band

S750% due 10007035 ol 109
Tadal Namibia 150
Cest $200)

HETHERLAND 5 0.7% _
CORPOAATE BONOS k NOTES 0.6%

HE Praperey BY

1875 dee 10UOSTTG 28] 00 g3
S0 0 phemp aa plag we1

FRbCE A
AN VALE
[ LCey
Predus MU
3257 due 0112607 ¢ w0y m
poi]
Regublic ot Angala Via Awenir 1| BV
N0 VB den BOTAZD a 5.1
Tetal Hashorlands ol
Eean £351)
DRFORATE BONDS & NOTES .75
B0 Finance BY
TS0 due 2N B20QT EUR 3 %0
Nigeria Gawernm ent Ingernatisnal Band
114 3% due I2T32000 v i u;
B2 due DSTR2050 a LIl
B3TH% due [ITL003 L] nl
BT due DLT172000 =0 173
]
Total ligeria i
Eean §1,386)

NORTH MACEDOMNIA 0.3%

Hareh lscedanla Govemment internatienal Bend

B S50 due (137202007 EUR 180 Nl
Tutal Merth Macedanla 107

Euest H10E

Dman Gwvernment imiemmatiana Bend

SES due DRATROZE ¥ 30 kil

5000 e (12007047 o 1"

Tetal Dmsn AR

Eeznfd7n)

PAKISTAN 1.0%

Pakitin Geverns iml Intemmatisnl Band

TETSS due 137102608 ] 150

BETSS e DARGZES0 500 M5
Tetal Pakistan 355

Eean 8453

Seragueris Intemacional & Tecumen 5.4

5 125% due 0212068 a 135
Aaxisaided del Canal de Panama

A S50% due (TTO005 ig) w0 1
Bancs Hicianal de Panama

25000 due 027172000 20 148

——
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FRAMGFA
ST WAILE
L] ]
Sr— e rroe

Panama Gevemment inbematisndl Band

4 300 e D4TO053 : L 181

45008 de 010 T0R3 H 19

B L00% due 02 07015 mn 184
LB

Tetal Pansma L

Cee1 41,328

alenilg S

Parepuay Devernment Intedna Senal Bend

4 T A D3ECIT m 181

S S DR 0 L]

Tatal Paragey 3TE

[

PERL 2.2% _

CORPOAATE BONDS & NOTES 1 |

ALICORP SAA

RETEN das 1A 1707 PEN B i

Elancd di Credis Sil Peru 5.4

L E50 e DA NEM 1] 151

InFis tail Comswm er

1750 A DTN ] Hid L]

Patraless dal Pru 5.4

5 FIS4 dae (R 04T i 11
]

Peru Gevernmenat Infernationd Bmd

1M do NN m jLird
1600 A MASAT 300 171

iT3
Tutal Peru a02

et §1,235)

Philippines Gevernment interna tanal Bend

25 don DSTBAMS 3 184

1300% dow ITEAMEA ilh 136

0 500% A DRIQAT0 100 156

Tatal Philigpinm GEE

Lot $8E4]

oL 5

l 00 ISSUES 18

Bank Despecarstve Krajewege

B Z50% e 1 DALAAE i o)

Paland Geversment Internatisnal Bead

4875 dm 1D0A0T3 L3} aml

5500% dm DA 1o 177

Tatal Paland TE0

[ SR L]

D kar Emargy

1375 dhom (10 20T i 11

1175 b 0T 2NN 8 i}

13000 due 070 201 3 18
denl Pypen | Sowber J1 0T o
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

PR
ARTUNT WALE

frert) oo

Tatal Oatar § £59

Cast §776)

Ramania Gevenm st nterna ienal Bead

BT dee BRAZN2 =] 20 F=)
A B2 dee DRO32049 0 1]
B379% dee TANE0IT a0 1]
15T9% doe DINT05] ] 150 g
Tatsl Remanis L1
Cest 3870

[Rerstin Oeved mm et Internationl Band

1E dee 110070032 A ] LE]
Tadal Russia 83
East $281)

SRUDI ARARIA §.8%

R

Swudi Arakias DIl Cs,

H2% dee 11RUNTS # o

J500% dee 112472070 400

Saud Gevemanatinterastional Band

A0 den 10062045 ELi] 18
Tatal Saudi Arabla B35
East §328)

ENEG AL 0.B%

Seing il Gevernm st lnterns anal Baad

A 50 e BN 300 B
. 250% due ES2320T 3
Tatal Senngal

Eest b4a8)

EREIA .75 =

Serbla Sewernment miematisnal Bend

LE5% doe DA0E033 (3] 150 {11
B500% dee (9062030 ] L] 5]
Tatal Serkia 295
East 3370}

il & Bl 1

AnglaGald fakanti Heldings PLC

1 5 e 100172030 00 15

Dwvelagmant Bank of Ssuthem Alvica Led

A500% den 10G1/AT24 10 LA 1500 mh

[Estem Haldings SOC Lid

AF10% che D707 2 Fu] Lk ]

B350% du SN0V m ripi

BA5M% de BRIV Fu i} im

‘Sartel Finansing USA LG

75 da B0V Fu i} 1]
1,382

e Ll e

FralCa A
AMOONT NALLE
[ 00
NS——— - o ek

Seut Ahrics Gevernment Interna isnal Eand

5 T30 due DRCOGSHE : 0 3 ¥

T 300 dus DATHL05T 0 13

10.500% du 1220730 R R T
EE 1 V1

Tetal Seuth Alviea 1563

Eeen £3.006

£ OREA 0.5%

ICOR NS 5 N TES 8.6

5K On Cs, Lad.

5 37% e (151 172008 3 o _ 158

Tetal Suuth Keres 158

]

Srl Lanka Gewernment Inssrnatienal Band (b)

5 T30 due [URBROEE L] ]
B2 dum DEEATEDS F] 1M
B ES0% due 1L0GR0TS o] 105
TS50 don (MRG0 ¥ 19
Total Sri Lanka L11]
Eest FER1)

SWITZERLAND 1.2%

CORFORATE BOMOS & NOTES 1.7%

UBS Graup AG

L0 due 020172025 3 Fii ]
4 490% due (2RSS o] _m
Tetal Sevimeiand A58
Emn H4ET)

TREMOAD AND TOBAGD B.E%

Trimbdad & Tobags Gevernmeat Intsrnatisnal Bead

S5 due DRNAZEON H_ 183
Tetal Trinddad and Tebage 183
Eusn E155)

Tursisn Republic

S0 dum 20 V2024 EUR 180 a4
Tetal Tunisia 5]
et 852

Turiwy Gevernment intematianal Bend

L E75 chs DATEAN3 PR | b
5 750% dus (13172008 3 Mo
5 TS0 dus (51172047 B0 _ m
Total Turkey n7
Eest 51,178

NPE Uik remerys
BETSR dus | LRSS & o

2271437

FRmLFAE
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)
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1 0

45,257 6,678

0 0

0 0

0 0

31 5

0 0

45,289 6,682

0 0

0 0

31 5

25 4

4 1

18 3
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142 21

45,147 6,661

1 0

45,955 6,781

45,147 6,661
8,421
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0 0

427 63

61 9

766 113
TBA 263 39
0 0

741 109

17 3
49,580 7,316
2,624 387
176 26

92 14

428 63
307 45

0 0

TBA 535 79
1 0

0 0

31 5

129 19

0 0

0 0
4,323 638
45,257 6,678
64,540 9,523
0 0

60 9

203 30
(237) (35)
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(16,673) (2,460)
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7.92 1,169
@ (0.09) (13)
(1.75) (258)
(1.80) 7))
(0.72) (106)
5.36 791

(®) (24.38)
45,147 6,661

1.30

1.30

(1.30)
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@
(b
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2022 10 31
N
18.36 2,709
@ 0.95 140
(5.24) (773)
(4.29) (633)
14.07 2,076
(®) (23.37)
45,257 6,678
0.05
0.00
5.81

0.01
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2006
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PIMCO
PIMCO
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PIMCO
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BBH
2020 FASB LIBOR
Accounting Standards Update
ASU 2020-04 ASU  2020-04 2020 12 2022 12 31
2021 LIBOR
LIBOR 2023 30 2022 12 FASB ASU
2022-06 LIBOR 2024 12 31
LIBOR
ASU
2022 FASB ASU 2022-03 820
ASU 2022-03
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258/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NYSE

NYSE NYSE

PIMCO
NYSE
NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE

259/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NYSE

US GAAP

260/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP
US GAAP

ETF

261/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE

LIBOR

262/437



60

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

263/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US TIPS

264/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CMOs
CMOs
CMOs
SMBS
SMBS
SMBS
10 PO

10 10

PO

CDOs CBOs
CLOs CBOs CLOs

CBO

CLO
CDO CDO
CBOs CLOs CDOs

CBOs CLOs

265/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CDOs

PIK PIK

2022 10 31

GNMA

FNMA

FNMA
FHLMC FNMA
FNMA

FNMA

FNMA
FHLMC PCs

266/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FHLMC
PCs
2019 FNMA FHLMC TBA
UMBS
TBA FNMA  FHLMC
TBA
TBA

TBA

267/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
UFJ MUFG
364 MUFG
PIMCO
SOFR
0.30
2022 19 2023 18 PIMCO

268/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15,500,000 2022 19
45,000,000
0.275 PIMCO
137,379

269/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

270/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

271/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0TC

272/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

273/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

274/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

275/437



EU

EU

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

276/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LIBOR LIBOR ICE
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 COVID-19
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PINCO
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PINCO
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PINCO
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10
0.30
0.325
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0.25
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0.40
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0.60 10
0.55 2019 12
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO 2020-10 PIMCO
10
2022 10 31
PIMCO 0.008
PIMCO 0.013 PIMCO
0.678
2022 10 31

PIMCO 29,442 88,857

250 3,302
PIMCO

2,063 4,178
PIMCO
97,560 2,379

PIMCO 121,667 153,576
PIMCO 4,410 5,517
PIMCO 10,938 12,360
PIMCO

927 3,672
PIMCO 2020-10 - 7,488
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10

2022 21 2022 10 31

2022 10 31 80.61
10

2022 2022 10 31

2021 11 2022 10 PIMCO
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2022 12 15
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities (cont. Detaher 31,2022
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities (cont. Detaher 31,2022
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities (cont. Detaber 31,2022
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Statements of Operations (com) Yaar Ended Dctebar 31, 2002
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Statements of Operations (com) Yaar Ended Dctebar 31, 2002
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets (cont)
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets (cont)
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Financial Highlights cont)

e Endted Detabed 31, 2022
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Financial Highlights cont)

redad Detabes 31, 2022
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1. ORGAN ZATION

Each Fund discussed in this report (sach a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds ™). which dsoindiedes each diass of units of that Fund {each a "Class™ and collectivedy,

the "Classes™), is 3 series trust of AMCO Bermuda Trust 0 (the “Trust™), an open-ended unit

stablished under the laws of Bermuda 35 2 multisenss st

prrpand 3 rust deed eccuted by Winchester Global Trust Comparny Limeted on Decernbes 1, 2003 (36 arnenided froem Sime 1o e, the "Trust Deed”). Efective a5
of the date of budiness (Eastem tme) on September 29, 2017, Maples Trussee Sendoes (Benmuda) Lmited (he "Trusee ™) wad appointed a3 trustee of the Tz
Padfic kneestment Management Company LLC (CPRACOT, the "Manager™ of the "irestment Adviter™) is the sponsor of and was reqponsible fior siruchuring the Tnsst

The Trust &5 subject 1o requlagion and supenvision 5 provided for in the Ivestment Funds Act 2006 and related rules reating 1o standad funds
The terms of the Trust Deed confes upon te Trustes, with the consent of the Manager, te power, in the future, 1o essabilsh funtker funds i sddtion 1o the Funds

curren®y in operation as of te date of this report

References to nitholders (each, 2 "Unitholder”, and oodlectively, the “Unitholders™) in, or units of {or an imestment in), e Fund shal mean Unitholders of the Fund
witio hokd umirs, or dlasses of wnits (as applicable), which ane atributatle to Shat Fund

Thie Fusnids priserited in this report ane listed bilow

PINACID Baramurds Bank Loan Fund &

PS40 Bermuda Bank Loan Fund 8

PN 0 Bermuds Bank Loan Fund €

PIRACID Bermedy Bark Loan Fund

PIRALD Baravucdy brecms Fund D

PN Bermvuda Dyrem ¢ Mufs-Sent Sammgy Fund
FRMCD Biarmeta Lows D tions Income Fund

LD Emsmeging Bondd ncame Fend ||
FINKC D Evmmgang Bond Ingiome Fred 1R

Dfherend ondy 50 bunck et "Fund of Funck ™ comoiure, & debned n the rubs of e boemm et Trues Asamsos, |
Japn, or i my o pmdcion

ML) Brermuads Burik Lown Fand )

PRCD Barmuads Emae gy Madis Boed Fond M)

FINACD) Brermuady Global Aggregam Ee-Japen Bord Fund )
PN Bermasts ncoms Fund M)

PR Barmata U5 High Yl Fund iM

PRCD Bermunda U5 Hagh Yield Fundll i)

PINSCID B g B | eomet Frared (WA

Ofered] only 10 ochee Furek wo corve s8 a0 undarandg iserese it whicks b uch o

PN ) Bl B g Maiz Bl Fnd |1
ML) Brermusdy Global Aggregums Ex-Jupun (fen Hediud] Bond Furd
PURCD) Brerveecady Gkl Agregans Ex-Jagsen Bored Fund
FICD Bermuds become Fund A”

PN Brermuads Mangage Dpparnundis Fund™
P Care Ineom e Corporine Bosd Ford H00-10° ==
PACD1.S Bigh Yorkd MareH ecgedd Furd ||

PRCDN. 5. Bigh Yald Fued B

PIMCA U5 Bigh Yol Smategy Fnd

PIRECD U5 Bigh Yeeld Smanegy fFund ||

PIRRCHE World High Income™* "=

Dfared 12 Japanase wnd ofer e

PEMCD Bt Term Mortgage booae

[¥ered 1o Jipiness aod offer remidon. Unis of g BFA, 2PY 20 U0 Cligce e 6 %ered 6 ieiil rveslon m
Japan by way ol public ofiencg through a di ibuar in Japan, and miey be offlersd fo osher inves 1 a1 e
decrezion of the Manager, Units of the EUR, JPY and 50 Clape will be resircod 1o enly thos e imvesion who are
appread by the Manager

PN Emvier g Biond £ digad]] lecome Fund
FINCD Emerrging Bored Ineomes Fiond

FIMCD LS. Bigh aedd [YareH ecged Fend
FMCD 1S Bigh Yield Fund

Déiered only 10 Fund ol Funds Type Japanese iwermand rass organged onder dhw Lear compeming inveiment
Tres ¢ moed e omeng o prasy. o Jopuan (" lapares e isvep s Trs ™) wehich wall oifer shier unis 1o e pubicin
Japan envter by wepy o pubde o8isning or prvone plecemean ped whh s msaged by PIMCD Japen Ui o ofer
o iy Iercad ausrmedng MET MBRHCE 4N E com [ a0 Labpect 10 e nglet of de Invez mmant Tnz e

A g0euipon, Jipun

= R TR Gl i A CNPY) e o PR Sty P S e fleiad’ iy B9 (I achERT T e e sl Dt i) et oF T il PR iy eroted it A o Y Sty 1 R A Rl T
S N CUET Thiy o FANE  Edemnantl bie set Fad  Mipved ily  ib Fatel 5 ol 8 i sty it et il il Pty T D it i il VP e sy i PO i sl v Faal A i el ol
T B Sy B Peir 2 g gt TR U B Y 18 PRI SRR SR 18 O iy M

== T i (Y Bl Ul AR ety WAt e (i St Pt a £%5e st U il ok 2 il o ooy

=== Dby ST 2 ol 1 o vty i g By iy o bl e gt i Sateieter s e Mindlang oy ity 2 upin, i iy B 3 P S et 1o e S o e i

v AT SRTET B AR by iy B e S chaagh kb a dp

e Fagae | Dowber 0, 2062 &
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2.SIGHIFICART ACCOURTING POLICIES

The following is @ summary of significant accouniing polidies corsisienty
fothowved by the Trust in the preparation of its inandial statements in
confcamaty with accounting peinciples generally sccepted in the United States
ot Amenica ("US. GAAPT). Each Fund is treated a5 an imeesiment company
umder the reporting requirements of U 5. GAAF The preparation of finandal
stalements in acoordance with LS. GAAP requires management to make
esfimates and assumgptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liatkties and dscosire of CoMingent as5ens and llabdies at the date of the
financad stavements and the reporied arnounts of noreates and dededtes in
net et from operatons during e reportng penod. Aciual fesulis oould
ditfer from those estimates

in) Acquirsd Funds The Trustes and Manager may apply all or a portion of
the assets of (i} FIMCO Barmmusda Bank Loan Furnd A, FIMCO Bermuda Bank
Loan Fend B, FIMGCO Bermpdia Bank: Loan Fund C and FIMCO Berruda Bank
Loan Fuend O (i) PIMCO World High income; (i) PIMCO Bermuds Global
Aggredate Ex-lapan (ren-Hedged) Bond Fund and PINCO Bermuda Ghobal
Aggregate Bx-Japan Bond Fund; (iv) FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A and
PIRCO Barmuda Income Fund D; i) FIMCO LS. High Yield (Yen-Hedged)
Fund, PIMCOLES Higj1 viekd Fund, PIMCO LS rl'if.‘l Yield Sirategy Fund, and
PIMCO LS quh Yield Strategy Fund 1l (v PIMICO LR S I-il_'lh Yield {¥en-
Hedged) Fund Il and PIMCO LS. High Yield Fund I; dvi) PIMCO Emérgng
Eond {¥en-Hedged) Income Fund, FIMCO Emergng Bond income Fund
PINGCO Emenging Bond Income Fund I, and FIMCO Emenging Bond income
Fund 10 (each referned to heteln a5 8 “Fund of Funds® o “hogiiring Fund®,
which inwests in other Fundsh 1o de fespectve credin of () PINKCD Bermuda
Bank Loan Fund (MY (i) PIMCO Bamnuda Ererging Markets Bond Fund (W),
Qi) PIMICO Besrrnuda Ghobal Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M) () FINCO
Bermuda Income Fund (M): () PIMCO Bermoda U5, High Yield Fund (M ()
PIMCO Bammuda LIS High Yiekd Fund I (M) Gvn) P IMLC Ernen;'n_] Bondg
income Fund (W) frefermed to heresn as an " Acguired Fund(s)”™ Amy a5sets so
apphied will be held in-wdh Acgared Fundi(s) 35 if receved directly. Wherne
assels are 50 applied, the Acquired Fund{s) will record the issue of units to the
relevant Acguining Fund at the issase price per urst of such units andwil
feputchate such units a2 the repurdhase pace per unal of such umts a1 the
time of repunthase Accordmgly, thee ability of the Acqemng Fund to adhiee
Tt s et albgecnve will digpend upon the abelity of the applicable
Aciuired Fund to achieve its imeestment obective. There can be no aswrance
that the mvestment objadive of the Aoguined Fund will be achieved

Ratios showmi in the Finandal Haghlights do not indsde expenses of the
Acguired Fund(s). See Note 9, Fees and Expenses, for further infomaton
reganding fumd fees, as applicable

b Securities Transactions and Investment Income Securilieg ransactions
are recorded as of the rade date for inandal reporting purposes. Sequnities
purchased or sold on 2 when-rsued or delaved-delivery basis may be

settled beyond 3 standard serilement period for the security after the rade
date. Realized gains and losses from seaurities sold are recorded on the
identified cost basis. Dividend income i5 recorded on the ex-dvidend date,
extepd certain dvidends froem foreign seurities where the ex-dividend date
may have passed which are recorded 2 so0n a5 a Fund is infomed of the
ex-chidend date. Irteret indome, sdusted for the aoretion of didounts and
amcetization of premiums, is neoonded on the soonesd bass Fom wttement
date, with the excepltion of seamitied with a fofward Haning effectve date,
where interest inoome is reqeded on e aooual basis from effective date For
coervertible sequities, premivms aribotable 1o the comersdon feature ae not
amcetized. Estirnaned rax labilies on certain forelgn sequrides are recorded
on a0 acrual basis and e refleced &5 aorponents of interestinoome of nel
change i unrealized appredation (deprediation) on investments on te

Slatements of Operatiions, as appeopriate. Tax liabeities realized a5  result of
sich seqrity sales are reflected 25 2 component of net realized gain {Joss) on
Ienestmen s an the Statements of Operations Pargckonet s, vl Dot on
racrtgage-related and other aiser-backed secunities, if sy, are reconded a5
comgeanients of inbérest inoome on the Salements of Operanons

Detpd obdigations may be placed on non-aoarual stasus and related inferest
imooene may be reduced by ceasing cument aconials andwiiting off interest
recefeabie when the collection of all or 3 portien of interest has become
doubtiul based on contstently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
removed from non-acoual status when the issuer resumes interest payments
or when coflectabllity of interest is probable

Il Cash and Foraign Currency  The financial stasements of each Fund e
presented using the asrency of the primary economic ervironment in which it
operates (the “functional cumency”™) The functional aarency for each of the
R i6 listed in the below tabde

The market vilues of f':]ﬁ."i?‘a secunties, axTency holdngs and oiher 35t
and Babilities are rarslated mio each Fund's functon sl currency based on the
current xnchange rates each biness diy. Purdnases. and sabes of seturites
and o snd expente items denominated in foresgn urrendaes, if any, ane
transkated into each Fund's respedtive functional qurrency at the exdhange
rate in effect on the transacton date The Funds do not separatey repoet the
eftects of changes in foreign exchange rates Fom dwangss in market prices on
securites held Sudh changes ane nduded in net realized and net changes in
unreakzed gain of lods from Emvestments on the Statements of Operaticens

The Fands mayinvestin foreign ounrency denominated seoities and may
engaqge in foreign aamendy transachions either on a spot {cah) basis at the
rate prvaling in the cusrency exchange markel at the tirme of through 4

fonw and forsgn currency’ conlract. Realived forsign exchange Gard or koddes
anjsing from sales of spot fomeign curendes, aurency gains of [geses realined
Eetween the tack and settlement dates on sequiities Farsactions and the
difference between the reconded amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign
wathholdng taxes and the finctional CUFEnCy equivaent of e smounts
actualhy reveived or paid are Induded in net realized gain or loss on foresgn
urrendy transactions on the Statements of Operaticns, Net unredized foreign
exchange gains and losses agising from changes in foreign exchange rates on
foreign denominated assets and liabilities other tam imestments in securities
el it thee e of the repeing period ane induded 0 net change in
unreakined appreciation of deprediation an foreign asmendy as4ets and
liatifities on the Staterments of Operaions

The Met Asset Vaue (THAY ™) and total renurrs of certain Funds (of Classes
et a5 Spplicable) are prisented in the cumency for which the NAY i
repored (the "MAY arrendy” ) 25 ditailed in ead Fund s Ofhenng
Memorandum (the "Crffering Memorandum ™). For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the fotal retum in the NAY qurency, te
beginning and ending NAVS are converted using the period begirning and
ending exchange rabes, rispecively, and ditirbutions ane converted using the
exchange rate at the time of the distibution. See the foowing table for the
WA cumency of each respedtive Fund:

FINCD Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M} L5 dellr 1.5 dollw
UMD Berenuydla Bank Loan Fund A

= Fus L5 dellr U5 dolw

- J P Japacama yen U5 dollar

= JiusD Japacecn yen U5 dollw

w ¥ LPY) Japacems wen L5 dollar

- TII.EI]I Japmeess ven Il 5 dollar
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Notes to Financial Statements

Furetional Fungtionsl
e Wy
FIMCD Barmuda Bank Lo Fund B FIMCD Bermuda U1 5 High ield Fund |1 1 Japmoesn wven 1.5 dollar
= Fikion Bnrrshan dedlan 115 diollar PIMDD Care breome Coeporse Boad Fund 2000-10
- ¥ (AL Japanes v 1F 5. dolar - (£ 115 dellw £l 5 dollar
= Y[ERL dapanee yon W5 dollar FIMCI} Frmergng Barsd [¥en Hidged) Ingoume Fuend Jngsnsen yen U5 dollw
L] ¥ (MAN) Japarete yin B dollsr FIMDD Emargng Bord ncoma Fend Japatan wen U5 dollw
= YD Japaneseyen IF5. dodar FIMCE) Ermergng Exared Ircome Fgnd i 115 delly .5 dolx
w YITAY Japaness yen IS diollar FIMID Emergng Rond kcome Fand il
FAMCO Baurrasdls Bank Loan Fond . Japasecn en U5 il
- ¥ [CAXSR Japanee yan 5. dollar . Japaness yen 1.5 dollar
FIMCD Berrmuda Bark Loan Fund 0 - Jnpertn yEn 1.5 dols
- ¥ Workd) aparaee wan 115 dollar - Jagursiein iy U 5 dolls
FIMCO Bermuda Dynamc Miglo Asse Seanegy Fund - Japsmsan yen E.5 dollar
L] AUFY Japanece yen 15 doltar . Jafeitesin yen U5 dolls
= us0 U5 daltat 1 5. dollar . J ki Japestins wen U5 dolls
FILCD Besrusds Ermsigng Ei:z Bond Fund (M} US dolla L5 deflar . BRI T Japeateda Ve U5 dollx
FIMCO Betrmuds Emangng Markes Bord Fund Il ® JRM Japanesn yen U5 dollar
= ImclFY Japares yan 15, dollar FIMOD Brergng Bard lncoma Fand Bl
- Irest LIFY, Hadged Japarecs yan 1B 5 diodlar ] JIELR) JSamama wen L5 dollar
PIMICH Besrrasdls Gl Apgragate Ex-Jupan {Tes- e = iR Ripuistaira ey U5 ol
Hedged) Fosd Fund oxicbakinl e . Jusk Japanomm ven U5 dolw
FHICD Brrmmuda Giobal Aggregam ExJagan Bond : FIMED Seare-Term Monimgags fcoms
Fusd e Y e «  EW Eer U5 dolw
FINICD Farmudy Giobal A ggregane ExJapan Bond - MY Japutesmn yen U S dols
P H Japereste yean LS. dollsr 2 PV P, Hadged! e U5 sl
P Betvrardy bncoene Fund Gy U5 defis 115 dollar ¥ 150 1S dallr I 5 dollat
FILCE Berrrua bncoms Fund & FIMUD LG Hgh Yeld (Van-Hadgad Fusd Jageatesn yon U5 dolly
CO 1| Japanze wan 115, dodlar FIMOD L5 Hagh Yield (Y- Hisdiyad Fuaed 11 Lafrtasin v 1.5 dolw
L] Fiusny L% dellw i doller FMCD L High Yl Fund Jagurtenia i .5 dolls
L] A LFY) JEEnE e K5 diodar FIMOD 115, High Yild Fund i Jagsnaen wen L5 dollyr
= s Jnpanie yan W5, dodar FIMCD U 5 Hgh Yidd Svacepy Fend
L] K [ U5 dolist 5. dollar . JLFY Papaycemn yen .5 dolls
= MUPY Advmaryl Japane yin 155 dolar * I UFY, Hedgad) Japateen yon U5 dols
= Ms0AdEsnd U5 dellar 15, dodar *  JjusD 115 dellyr U5 dollw
L] N P Japanecs e W5 dollar . ¥ LIF Japatess yen U5 dolle
LI Y] Japanes yen W5 doller » ¥ LIFY, Hadged) Iafuitacn win U5 dols
= KN USD U5 delar 115, dolas AN U5 Bigh oed Swoagy Fend I
- P LYY Japane v WS dollar . T A Japnea yen B.5 dolls
| QuFn BT e ] L5, dollsr . ¥ (ERLY Fapersy wen L5 dolly
= AU Japanee yan 15, dodar « 7 (MEH) Japaesia n U5 oy
= Rush WS dedla 5. dollar . ¥ (TR Japusnesn e 1.5 dolly
L1 Jepanese yen U 5. dodler FIMCD Wadd High Incoms LS defix U 5 doller
= TN Jupaniccs e 5. doder * Eflocsavs Aped 13, 022 tha Dl chenged v nares froem J GRUE) 00 J ICHH)
L 2 PR Japanese v LS. dollar
: ;I”":;? 'llefu;n::’m Il: ; ﬁ: b Multiciess Operatiens Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
. %S0 LS dellar 05 dollar Fights bothe aseets of the Fund equal to that of afher Classes of the same
= YUPT Sanarnte e 5 dollar Fumd, as applicable, except for spedfic assets and gains and Isses designated
Y Tapansss i U5 dolls o @ Class redating 1o cusmency hedging operations. Income, non-Chass speafic
= TUM Japanse ven 5 dollar experries, and non-Class speaiic redized and unnealized capital gans and
FIUICD Bemuda come Fund O logses are alocated 1o eadh Class of units based on the el ative net assets of
. NN Samrrakan dolat 15 dollar each (lass of the respective Fend, a3 applicable. Class specfic expenses
Y dapanece wen W% dollar currently indude management, advisory, adminisirafive, agency and
FIMCD Betrasdla Low D aces bncome Fund T distribution fees, where applicable
= BiEn . sl Lt e Distribution Palicy The following table shows the anficpated fequency
PMCD Berrrush Marigage Diposmicdoes Fund ] of dhsibutions for each Fund Distributions from each fund may be declared
" Ire UFY Hadpad] Japanie yn 5. dolisr e g gl ey £ the Man
. JUPY i oA U5 dollee and distributed to Unithalders only upan the autharization of the Manager,
. s TR U5 dollar wwdiich autharzation ey be withheld at the Managers discretion
= ls0 IS dedlst 115 dollsr
FIMCO Bermuda U5 High Yield Fusd M) U5 dollsr U5 dollar
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Doelared and Pald Menthly

PROLD) Bermeads Bk Loan Fand A

PRICD Bermusda Blank Loan fend B

PRI Bermda Bank Loan Fend C

PRICD Bermeda Bank Loan fend 0

PIRULL Bermmada | ncome Fond A

FLP

F (U0

JuPn

J S

N U

N s

KN USD

SUFY

LUPY

X nE

¥ U

L 1F=a)]

PO Bl I Fund D

FIMDD Bonmada Mor cgege: Dppormumiess Fund
= JuFn

J S

[IE1]
PRILD Errves g Bond ( Yen-Hadged] Income Fund
FIMCE Emengeg Bord kcome hand
FIMOD Emengng Bond | ncoma Fend il
PR Emengng Bord Incoms Fusd 81
FIMDD LS High Yield [ Yen-Hidged) Fusd
FIMOD LS Fsgh Yol Fuefed
FIMOD LS. High Yidd Smmegy Fend
FIMCO 15 Hagh Yesld Sracegy Fond I
FIMDD Waorld High Incoms
PILD Bermds Ireome Fund A

QUFn

= F U0

PRICD Bermeude Dyravno Mula-Aoset Strabegy Fund
PRICD Bermeda | neome Fend A

P UM

Uk

FINDD Shait-Term Morigsgs nceme

EUR

Iy

JUFY, Hodged

151

The Manager dees not sxpect io declae dntrbution with respect 1o these

Funds {or Clirses thereal, i applic sbbel, but may.in is dscrotion, duclare

and pary disitibaiiesn 1o the Unitalders a1 an
FIMDD Bermuds Blank Lioers Fusd (W0

FIMOD Bersruds Errer gore Mlarkoets: Bond Fud (W0
PICD Bermeda Emenging Markis Beod Furd II
FIMCD Bermasds Global Aggregene Ex-Japen [Yen Hadged) Band Fusd
FIMOD Bermuds Globd Aggregae ExJapan Bond Fund

Thie Manage deet set mpeet 1o declars dnwibution with retpe t 1o thede
Funds |er Clanses theveal, il applicablel, bur may, in il dacretion, declore

and pay distribiutions te the Unithaldsrs at any tima.
PINSCT Bermuda Giobal Aggrogam Ex-depan Bond Fund (MG
PAMCE Bermuda ncorme Fund A

K =

. M LUPY Advsond

*  MIUSD Adveand

THET

UFUPY "

= WSO

L UPN

FAMCT B bneames Furedl (M)

PANCT) B Lowy Dirapa Income Fund

FIMDD Bermuda Morigage Cppor tenstes Fund

It LIPY Hesdgedh

FIMOD Berrrnada U 5 Hagh edd Fnd (M)

FAMCO Berrnoda U5 Hagh ieled Fund 1 IND

FIMOO Gares Income Corperase Bond Fusd 2020-10

PAMCD Emiarging Bond Incoome Fusd {06

FAMCOUS. Hagh Yield [¥o-Hieigess Fuead I

FIMCDNU S Hagh Yiedd Fiond I

* Aowy drnsbutiote with eepact m Dhes U2 LR Urie of doe: Fusd will be declaed in
arordance with &l e agrament beowseen g Manages and the st in such D

Drstributicns, if amy, wall generally be made from the relecant Fand's (o
Chass’s, if applicabe) net imestment income. In addison, the Manager may
authorize the payment of neq reatized capital gaing availatle for dsmibuson
Addtional disiributions gy De dedered 35 the Manager deems. Sppropd e
Dustributicns paid with respea o sery Fund (or Chass tereod, if applicable)
will reduce the NAY of such Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable), At the
dsreton of the Unitholders, cash dstributions from a Fund for Class thersaf,
I applicatie) may either be reinvested in addifional units of a Fund {or Class
thetect, i applicable) or paid to & Unitholder in cash, Cath payments will be
paidin the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund {or Cllass thereod, if
pplicable) may declare further distributions if considered necessary in codes
1o maintain 3 reasonable level of dsmibations for & Fund {or Class themeaf, i
Spplicable). In the event Bt Shers (S inddequate net ncomse &nd neq reglzed
capetal gans o pay & dsmibuion of & Fand (or Cliss deereod, IT applicatle)
piequanied bey the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay 3 distibuson
consissng of a porton of te capatal of such Fund {of Class thered, i
spplicable), Distributions not collected within siocyears from their due date

witll Lapse and will acorue to the benefitof the relevant Fund for Class feneod,

If applicatic)

{7 bum and Repurchese of Units Subsedquent 10 & Fund (of Class thereof, o
applicable) commenang buseness, Units of eadh Fund {or Cliss thereof, if
Fpplicable) may be issued Dy the Manager on & coninuous basis at the Net
Angiet Valie per Uit of ;al Fund (of Class theredd, il applicable) at the tme
of such issue, subject b the right of the Manager or B3 appointed agent, in
the sole disaretion of the Manager, to temporanily suspend such issue. Unless
stated othenadse in the relevant Offering Memaorandum, for each Fund (or
Class theneod, if applicable), the issue price per Unit for such Units will be the
Man Azset Value per Unit determined on each Dealing Day calodated as sat
forth bedow under ™ Delerminasion of Net Asset Valise™; provided that, if a
st b pufchase URis in a Sonm sooeprable 10 BBH 18 nol recenved by BBH
proce 1o 1200 noon (Eastem sme), the issue price per Unit of the rebevant
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Fund {or any Class thereod, if applicable) shall be the Met Asset Value per Linit
detemmined on the next Dealing Day. In the case of repurchase of Linits or
terminaticn of the Funds in the Trust which are registered in lapan for direct
disnbuson in Japan, the Uets of such Fands dhall be repurchased from
Unitholdirs in cash. Mo repunchase in land may be allowed in such Funds
Exceph &t othrwise prosdded in the relevant Oflesing Memorandum, payment
of the repurchase price will be mads by the Trustes of it appointed agent by
bank transfer generally within wwo (2) Busness Days after the Dealing Day
upch wiech the repurchase nobce 15 received, of deamed o have been
receivid, by BEH, although under certain droumstances, payment may take
up to eight (8) Busness Days after such Dedling Day  Unless skated othenwise
in the relevant Offering Memorandum, the Funds are not subject to
subsiption of repurchase fees; provided, however, 3 distributor appointed in
the jursdiction whene a Fund B dsiibuted may dharge subteription o
repuirchase fees in such amounts a5 agreed with the Manager and the
Trurstes

igl Mew Accounting Prenouncements and Regulatory Updates & Manch
2020, ®e Amanaial Accsunting Standands Boged ("FASE”) istued an
AceounEng Standands Update (TASUT), ASU 2000-04, which provides
optional quidance 1o ease the potential accounting burden assodated with
trangticeeng away from the London interbank Orffered Rate ("LIBOR™) and
ather relenence rates that are expected bo be disontinsed. ASL 202004 is
effecte for certain refensn ce raterelated contrad modifications that coos
during the period March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022, In March
2021, the sdminisirator for LIBOR announced the exension of the publication
af i magonty of the 'USD UBOR semngs o June 30, 2023 In Decemiber 2022,
FASE roaped AU 202 2-06, which indudes smendments (o exdend the
duration of the LIBOR transison relied to Decemiber 31, 2024, after which
entities will no longer be permitted to apply the reference: rate reform refef
Mansgement is continuously evaluating the potential effet a discontinu ason
of LIBOR could have on the Fends' investments and has deterrined that it is
unlikely the ASL'S adopmon will hawe & matend impact on the Funds®
finandal statements

In Jume 2022, the FASE issued ASLI 203203, Fair Valpe Measurement (Topic
B0, which aflects Al entitees that hawe imesiments inn equily securites
rrasunied 31 fair value that sfe dubject to a contrachodl tale restriction. The
amendments m ASU 2022-03 darty that a contractual restricion on the sale
of an equity security is not considered part of the unit of account of the equity
sequnty and, therefore, 15 not considered in measuring the far value. The
amendments Jso redquire addBonal @sdomunes for equaily secunies subject i
confractual sale restrictions that are measuned at fair value in accordance
with Topic 520 The effectve date for the amendments in ASL 2022-03 are
for fiscal years begnning after Decernber 15, 2004 and interim periods within
thepse fiscal years At this Bme, management is evaluating the implications of
these chamges on the finandal satements

1. IRVESTMERT YALUATION ARD FAIR VALUE MEASUREMERTS

{#) Imrvestment Valuation Policies The peice of 4 Fund's umits i based on
the Fund's MAY The NAY of a Fund, o each of its Classes, a5 applicable, is
determmined by dviding the todal value of poetiolio investments and other
Fssets attritutable bo that Fumd or Class, less any liabdities, by the toeal
niuerber of wrers cutstanding of that Fund o Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Dray (a5 dedaribed in the curent Orilering Memorandum of the

Trwst), Fund units are ordinarily valued a5 of the dose of regular trading an
the Mew York Stodk Exchange ("NYSE Jote™) information that bedomes
kncia i the Funds of thee agents after he dme a5 of which NAV has been
caloulared on & partioular day wall nat generally be used o remoactively adiest
the pibce of & sscurity of the MAY deternined earfeer that day. Each Fund

resenves Be fight o change e Bme as of which its NAY is caladated if
the Fund diorses earier

Forr purparses of calaulating NAY, portfol secunbes. ind other 2521 1o
wiich markel quotanons ane readily availible s valued a1 markel value. A
riarkel quatstion is readly aeailsble onlywhen that quatation is a quoted
price (unackustedy in active markets for idenocal investments that the Fund
Can access at the measyrement date, provided that a quotation will not be
readhly availabde if i1 s not rellable. Marker value is generally determined on
thee basis of official dosing prices or the last reported sales prices. The Funds
will normally use pridng data for domestic equity seauities received shortly
after the NY4E Close and do not normdly take into acoount radng,
dearances of setlements §1a1 Lake place after the NYSE Clote. invediments
tor whech macket quotations ane not readily avalable are valued at far valise
a5 determingd in good faith al the Manager o perions acing at Heir
diraction . AL 4 generd pindple, the fair value ol a sequnity or other asset s
e pavce that would be recenved Do Sell an aiset or paki 1o rarsker & |=£H'|Il}'
Im an orderhy transa con bedseen marke [ patiopants 3 the medaunement
cane. The Manager has acopied methods for valiing seoun ies and cllvs
H55ELS N ONCUETE Ran0es wilbere marker quotes ané nod reddily Jvaslable, and
has the responsibility for apphyéing the far valeation methods. The Manager
may walue Fund portfollo secunities for which market quodations are not
reacky vailable and oifver Fund assets utilizing inputs fom pridng senices,
quotation feporting systems, valuation sgents and other thind-party sournces
(rogether, "Pridng Sounces™) A loreign (non-U.5.) edquly security iraded on a
toreign exchangs or on more than one exchangs is bpically valued ising
prigng mfomation from the exchange congdened by PIMCO Lo be the
primary exchange K maket value prdng is used 3 fofeign (ron-LES. ) equity
security wall be valued as of the dote of radng on the Torsign exchange, of
e WY SE Chorse, if thee WY SE Close ocours betore the end of mading on the
foresgn enchange. Domesiic and foreign (non-U1 5 ) fxed income: sequrities,
ron-exchange traded dervatives, and equity options are nomally valyed on
thoe buasis of uotes obiained from brokers and deaters o Pridng Sounces
wusing swch data reffecing the prinopal markets for those seaxties. Prices
ohiained from Fridng Sources may be based an, amang other things,
information provided by market makers or estimates of market values
cheained from yield data relating o imvestments or securities with similar
characteristics. Certain fooed Fncome secunties purdh sed on a delayed
defirvery base ate marked o maret dafy unhl setSament at the forwan
setement date. Bochandge-traded cplions, eoept equity options, futures and
opthons on futares are valised at the setdement pice defermined by the
relevant exchange, quotes obained from 3 gudl aticn PEQOrunG Syskem,
establihia] markel makers of Ficng Sources. Swap agresments afe valued
o the Dass of market-based pioes suppled by Prasng Sounoes of quites
chiained from brokers and dealers A Fund's investments in opsn-end
management investment companies, other than exthange-raded funds
{TEVFs™), are valued at the KEWs of sach investments

It & foreign {roe- LS b eduity seamty’s value has matesidly changed after the
die of the security’s primany enchange or prindpal market but before the
WYSE Close, the securnity may be valued ot fair vialue Dased on progeckines
estabirched Snd approved by the Manager. Foreign (non-U 5 ) equty
cecufines shat do not rade when the NYSE B open ane dso valued at L
walu . With respect 10 loason (Ron-U S ) equty seamities, a Fund may
determine the fair value of investments based on information provided by
Fricing Sources, which may recommend far value or adpstments with
reference to ofher seourities, indices of assets. In consadering whether fai
waluaticn i5 required and in determining fair values, the hanager may, among
other things, consider significant events dwhich may be considered ta indude
changes in the value of U % senuities or secunifies indices) that occur after
the dose of the relevant marked and before the NYSE Close. A Fund may
uitdize madHing tools provided by thind-party vendors to determme Tair values
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of foreign (non-U.5 ) securiBes. For these pupases, unless otherwize
dutermined by the Manager, any movernent in the applicable reference index
of instrument (" zero trigger”) between the earfier dose of the applicable
Torign markel and the NYSE Clote may be desmed B0 be 3 Sgquihicant event,
promptng the application of the prang rmods (efectvely netaling in dasy
fair valustions). Foreign exchandged may permil rading in toreign fon-US )
equily secunties on days when the Tnast is not open for business, whidh may
result i @ Fund's postholeo imestments being aftectisd when Unitholders are
unabde b by o el unins

Lenior secured floating rate loans for which an acive secondary market edste
to arekable degree will be valued at the mean of the last available bidfask
piices in the market for such loans, as provided by a Pricing Sendce, Senicr
secufed Baating rate loans for which an active secondary market doss nol
exisl [0 2 refiable degree will be valued af far value, which is intended to
approcimate markel value I valuing a senior secured Boating rate loan at
fair vadye, the factors considered rray inchade, but are not limted bo, the
Todlowang: {4} the credinaortheness of the bomawer and ary intermedate
prartacepants, (b th teeres of the boan, {c) recent pRoes in e marcet for
sirralae |oans, if any. and (d) recent prices i the makel for instrumen s of
similar quality, rate, period until nextintenest rate reset and maturity

Irvesements walued in curendcies other than the functional currency

o a Fund ane converted to the functional currendy weing exchange rates
obtained from Pridng Sourdes. As a retull, the value of such imvestments, and
In bum, the NAY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value
of cummencies in refation &0 the funcionsl oumemsy. The value of investments
iraced in I'-:n‘n:@'u Mk of deraiminated m o enes athel than

the mncticnal currency may be sifected sgnificansy on 3 day that the Trest s
not open for business. As a resul, to the extent that a Fund holds foreign
{mon-U 5 ) imvestments, tevalee of hose investments may dhange at Gmes
when you canniot puechase, redeem o exchamge wels and the value of aech
Trvestments will be reflecied in thie Fund's next cabalaed KAy

Fair walation may require subjective deteminations about e value of 2
security. While the Trust’s polides and procedures ane intended to resultin a
cabulavon of 2 Fund's NAY that Ly refects secunty walues 45 of the time of
bcineg, Ehe Trust cannol errsude that i values detemmened by e Manager
oF pef it acting at e direchon would acourately fefient the prce that

3 Fund could cbitain for 3 sequity if itwere to dispose of that sequrity a5 of
the teme of pricing (for instamce, in a forced of detressed sake), The prices
wsed by @ Fund may differ froem the value thatwould be realized if the
SECuilies wele sokd

k] Fair Value Hisrarchy P 5 GAAP detonbes fair vidue &5 the pnoe i

A Fumnd wionild recende 1o Sell a0 S5SeTor pary 10 ramsier 3 liabehity in an ondierdy
transaction betwesn market paiapants A1 the mesturement date it
establishes a farvalue hierardy that prioritizes inputs to valuation methods
and requires disdosure of the fair value hierardry, separately for each major
categony of assets and Batiities, that seqregates faw value measurements into
beswels {Lewed 1, 2, 0r3) The inputs or methodoloqy used for valuing seqrities
are not necessarily an indication of the risks assodated with investing in thoss
sequnfties Levels 1, 3, and 3 of the fair value hieranchy are defined as follows:

® Leved 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets or exchanges for
identical assets and liabilities

& Level J—Significant other obeenable inputs, whach may Indude, tut are
mot limeied 00, qm,’-ll_*l',l Prees fiw samilar assets or Bal :I'if-,'i. in marke1s that are
acihve, quoted prices for identacal or similar assets or Babalifes in markets that
are not F0tve, inputs otver than quoded prices that are obsenvable for the
assels or Habilites Guch as interest rates, yield curves, volatiliies, prepayme nt

ipeads, |08 severities, credit ks and default ratesh or other market
corrobdeated inputs

= Level 3—Significant unobservable inputs based on the best informaton
géailatie in the droamstances, o the extent obsereable inputs are not
availabie, which may indude ssumptions made by the Manager or persons
Acting at their direction that ane uged in determining the fair value of
imoestmente

Assels or Habdines CAReg0n zed a5 Leviel 2 or 3 a5 of period end have been
ranstemed between Levels 2 and 3 since the prios penod due 10 chénges in
the erieghosd uili2ed in valung the imastments. Transfiers from Levl 2 to Level
3 afe & result ol a change, m e noomal course of business, froem the use of
waluaticn methiods used by Pricing Sounces (Level 2) to the use of 3 Broker
Quote orvatuation technique which wiilizes significant unobservable inguis
due to an sbsence of curment o reliable mark et-hased data (Leve 3)

Transfers from Lewel 3 10 Leved 2 are a result of the avaslability of curment and
reliable market-based dats prowided by Fricing Scarces or other valuation
techmbcues wihich utilize signaficent obsenabie Inputs

In acccedance with the requirements of LS, GAAF, the amounts of ransters
im and cut of Level 3, if material, are dsdoeed in the MNates 1o Schedule of
Ivestmen s for each respective Fund

Fer fair valu atiors using signaficant unobsenable inputs, U 5 GAAF requeres
to dischoss transhers into and cut of Lewsl 3 of the fair value hierandry and
purchases and issues of Level 3 assets and liabilities duning the period
Adudtonally, U5, GAAP requines quantitaive infoemation regarding the
agnifscant unobaenyable inputs used in the determinaion of Tar vaiue of
Aty or Rabilites categonzed 25 Lewel 3 in the Tar value hisrardny. In
accordance with the requirements of US GAMP, 3 fair value hierardhy, and if
matenial, dedalls of significant uncbsenable inputs, have been induded in the
Hites. 1 Schiecide of Invesaments for each respective Fund

el Valuation Technégues and the Fair Value Hierarchy

Lewvel 1, Level 2 and Level 3 rading assets and trading liabilities, at

fair value The vauation meshods (or "techniques™) and significant inputs
used in determining the faie values of portfiolio sequnities or other assets and
liatufities categanded &5 Lived 1, Level 2 and Lewel 3 of the Tair value hissardy
a5 Bolhowrs:

Fimed income senunes II1\.'|l:lj-'K} corporate, convertible and munidpal bonds
and nokes, L5, government spendes, US. measury obligations, sovengn
Iaues, bank loans, convertible prefemed seouities and pon-U1 5. bonds ane
nomally valued on the basis of guotes obtaned fiom brokers and dealers or
Fricing Sources that wse broker-dealer quotations, reported trades or
waluation estimates from their internal pricing modets. The Pricing Sources’
Irvbermad mpdkds wse inpuits that are obrsenvable such as issuer detals, interest
ranes, yield curves, prépayment speeds, aedit ddesfpreads, default rates and
quoted prices for similar asset Searites that use dmelar valuation
techniques and inpats as desaibed above e categonized as Level 2 of the
fair vaue herarchy

e Endome seouities pundhased on a delaped-deiveny basis or a5 a
repundhase commitment in 3 sale-buyback ransaction ate marked to market
daily un®l setlement at the fonward settlement date and are categorized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Maortgage-related and asset-backed seamties are usualy issusd a5 teparate
trandhes, of dasses, of securites within dach deal Thete teaxities are s
nommally vialued by Priong Scurces that use broker-deder quotatons,

Fispaor (e (Fackes of \waluaton eshmates frcen their internal perlicing rcdels. The
o g ecdels 1oF Ehise Secunties usally consider trandhe-level atmbules,
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current matket data, estimated cash flows and marketbased yield spreads for
each Franche, and incorporate deal colliterdl perficemandce, as avail able
Wortgage-related and asset-backed saquriies that use similar valuation
techinsques and inputs 4% deseribied above ane cateomdied 35 Livel 2 of the
lair value feetanchy

Commen stocks, ETFs, exchange-traded nofes and fingndd dervative
instnuments, sudh 35 fuliges CoNECE, FGRES A wWhaETants, of opions on
futees that are iraded on a national securities enchinge, are stated at the
Lask reported sale or setbement price on the day of valuation To the extent
thesé seqmrities are acfively traded and valuafion adjustments are nof appiied,
they are @ategonized as Level 1 of the far value hierandhy

Frvessmmmens walued (denomunated) in curnences cther than the landhonal
currency of & Fund are conerted bo the functional aurenty uting sohange
rates {ounmency spot and forwand rates) obtained from Pridng Sources. As &
resylt, the MAV of 3 Fund's units may be affected by changes in the vaiye of
aumrencies in relation wo the funcional CUrEncy. The value of securities waded
n f",‘fﬁg‘l markets of denceninated in currences other tan he fundimnal
curmency may be affected sgnificanty on a day that the Trust is not open for
buminess. Valuation adjustments may be applied to cerfain seurities that are
sohely raded on a foresgn exchange to account for the market movement
bebaeen the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Close. These seawities
are valued using Pridng Sounces that condder the comelation of the trading
patterns o the foreign sedurity to the intraday rading in the U5 markets for
imvestments. Secunities using these vabsation adustments are Glegorized a5
Lewed 2 of the fair value hierardy. Prifermed securites snd other equities
trached o ndctnig markets of valued by reterence 8o wmilar insiruments ant
alwo categodied &% Levell 2 of the Tar walue hierandyy

Equity-inked seqsites are valued by referencing the last reported sale o
settement price of the linked referenced equity on e day of valuatdon
Foreign eochange adustments are apglied 1o e last reponed price to
eorvet Bhe linked equitys trading aurrendy 1o the @nirac's settling curnency
These imeestments are categarized as Level 2 of the $3r value hierarchy

IrrvEsS RIS an ecpstered ogen-end imees Irment companies (ofer than ETFS)
il B el Eunsiedd o thet MANS of sudh imvestments and e Cibegonitid
a5 Level 1 of the fair value herardhy. Investments in pnregrstered open-end
Irvesiment companies will be caloulsted based upon the NaVs of such
Irvesaments and are considered Level 1 provided that the MAVS are
obsenvable, caloulated daily and are the vaue 3t which both purchases and
sales will be conduched

Vauation adjustments may be applisd 1o certain exchange raded futunes and
ofitions 5o acoount Tor madoel movernent between thie entange setibément
and the WYSE dose These seapities aé valued using quobes abtained from &
quitaticn reporting system, established market makers of Pidng Sournes
Finandial derivatives using these valuation adustments are categonzed
Level 2 of the fair value hierardiy

Equity exchange-traded options and over the counter finandal derivative
instnuements, such 35 forwand foreign aurrency confracts and oplions coniracts,
denve ther value from underying asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
o BIpES of & ooirben Ao of thiste factoes. These OoNiRaas & nommaly
walued of 1he bads of quotes dbtained from & qualation teporting Systénm,
established market rakers of Pridng Sounces (normally detemmned a5 of the
HYSE Chose). Depending on the product and the termm of the tansacion,
finamcial depvative instruments can be valued by Fridng Sources using 3
series of techmigues, induding simulaticon pridng models. The pricing models
wse Epits that are obdenved fom Bty quoted markets sudh a5 quated
piices, isswer details, indices, bidfask spreads, interestrates, implied
wolatilites, vield curves, diidends and exchange rates. Finandal desivative

irsEnaments that use similar valuation tednigues and inputs a5 desaibed
ahiwe are categorized a5 Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Centrally deared svags snd oeef e counter Svaps dérive thar valie Trom
uncerhying drssel prives, indices, reference rates, and other mputs of 4
combingtion of these factors. They afe valued uding & braker-dealer bid
qutation of on market-hased prices provided by Frging Sounges (nomaly
determened a5 of the NYSE Chose). Centrally deared swvaps and over the
counter sMaps can be valwed by Fridng Sources using & series of tedhnigues,
induding simulation pricing models The pricing models may use inpats that
ae obeenved from actively quoted markets sudh as the overnight index swap
rate, LIBOR forward rate, interest rates, yield curves and aedit spreads. These
SeCHiBEs are categon 2ed a5 Level 2 af the 1air value hesrarchy

When a fair valuation method s applied by the Manager that uses signficant
wnckseryable INPAITS, veEsSEmenis il I |:|I1-.'P|] t‘.‘:l'd l‘."ll?ﬂ':[.-\:l that

the Manager of persons a0ting a1 their direction believe reflects fair value and
e categonzed a5 Lewel 3 of the falr value hierardny

Frioeoy pricing procedures set the base price of a fieed income sequrity and
submeqeenty adjust the pice proportionaly to market value changes of a pre-
determined sequrity deemed to be comparable in deration, generalbya U4
Tredtary of Sowenéign note barsed on country of ssiance The base piice may
e & broker-dealer quate, Fansaction pice, of an mbemal value as defmed by
analyss of market data. The base price of the Seduity may be retet on a
perindic buasis based on the palabiliy of market data and procedures
Epprcved by thee Waluathon Creraght Cornimaites. Signalicant changes in the
wnobservabie inputs of the ey [raang process (S base price) woubd s
in et and propoetional dhanges in the e vale of the seasity. These
secunibes are categosized as Level 3 of the fair value herandchy

I dhindgarty evaluaned vendor pricng 15 nol availabie or rot deemed 10 be
Indicative of fair value, the Manager inay elect 1o obtsin Broker

Cunotes directly from the broker-dealer or pasted-through Broker Quote from
a Hirdparty vendor. in the ment that far value is based upon a snge
sourced Broker Duote, these securities are categoned as Level 2 of ;e fair
walue hierardhy. Broker Cuotes ane typically reoenved from estabhished marke
pariagants. Althoudgh ndependently receraed, e Minager does nal hive
the transparency to view the undertying inputs which support the market
quotation, Significant changes in the Broker Quote would have direct and
proporsonsl changes in the fairvalue of the saourity

Reference instrument valration estimates fair value by wtiidng the oomelation
of the sequrity to one o more broad-bated sequites, market indices, andfor
other finand al instruments, whose pridng information is readily awalable
Unotsereable inputs may indude hose used in-sgosithm fammulas based on
perceitage chandge in the rebarence instuments andiod weights of each
referende indtrument Significant changesin the uncbiervablée inputs would
resullt i direct and propoetional changes in the fair value of the seauity
These sequnties are categorized & Level 2 of the fair vaiue hierarchy

Common stock equivalent valsation estimates fair value by apphing an equity
adis ment bated on obtervabde comparable companies” equity value
wariances Significant changes in the unobservable inputs would resut in
direct and proportional dhamges in the Tar value of the ety These
OIS afe Catibginibed 35 Livel 2 of the fair valie beersichy

The Giscounted Cash Flow model is based on fulure cash flows generated by
the inrvesament and may be normatized based on expected investment
performance. Future Canh flows are dacounted 1o presentvaise Usng an
appropnate rate of renen, Dgecaly calbrated o the in itia fransaction date
and adjusted bated on Capital Asset Pridng Model andir other market-
bazed inputs. Significant changes in the unobsarvable inputs would result in
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diredt and proporfional changes in the fair value of the security. These
securnfties are calegorized as Lewel 3 of the fair value hieranchy

Thie Compargtle Cornpunies model 1s based on appicaton of valuabon
riuitiples from publidy raded comparable companies oo the fnancials of the
subgect company. Adjustments may be made b the markel-démed valuwation
mulfiples based on dfferences between the comparabie compantes and the
subpect company. Significant dhanges in the unobservabie inputs would result
I direct and proporional changes in e fairvalue of the seourity These
securilies are categorized as Level 3 of the far value hieranchy

The Comparable Transactions model & based on appictfion of valuation
rruliplied Tromm otservable Fanaaanns oompaable o e seaanty of
oornpady Adustments may be msde 1o the impleed comparsble ransacion
rruftiples bated upon difesences between the obeened ransactions and the
sybgect company o secunity. Significant changes in the unobsendable inparts
wioubd result in drect and proporional changes in the fair value of the
seaurity. These securites are categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierardhy

Ehot-term debt instruments (such as commer dal paper) having a remaining
maturity of &0 days or less may be valued at amorSzed ot o long as e
amietized cost value of such short-term debs instruments is approcimanedy the
samie a5 the fair valoe of S insrument a5 detemmined without e e of
amortized oot valuation, These secunitied are catbgoded a8 Level 2 of Lined
3 of the fair value hieranchy dependng on the sounce of the base price

4, SECURITIES AHD OTHER INVESTMENTS

{&) Deloyed-Delivery Trargastions Certain Funds may purchase or sel
secuiities on 3 delaped-delevery basis. These Faniaceons imvobve a
cornmiiment by 2 Rind 1o purchade o SHl securites Sor 3 predetenmined prce
of yield, with payment and defivery tabing place beyond the customary
seftlement penind. When delayed-delivery rarsactaons are cutstanding,

a Fundwaill designiate or receive 24 collateral liquid aséets m a0 amounl
suffident bo meed the purchase price of respective chiigations. When
purchasing & w=anty on & delived-delivery bats, 4 Fund assurmies the rights
and risks of cwnership of S seosity, indudng the s of price and yield
fluctuations, and takes apch flachsations into aooount when detemmining its
Hav. A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delayed-delivery transaction
afer il s entered inta, which may resudtin a realized gain or [oss. When

& Fund has seld 3 sequrity on & delayed-celivery basis, thie Fund does not
partidpate in fulge gains and | osses with respet to Be sequrity

{b) Inflationd ndexed Bende Certain Funds may invest in inflation-indeced
Boeds Inflaton-Andexed bonds are fooed incomme sedurities whde paind pal
walug 5 pefiadcally sfjusted by the rate of inflabion. The inbéreit rate on

These bonds is generally fooed Al isaance 318 rale [ower than hpical bonds
Cwer the life of an inflation-indexed bond, however, interestwill be paid
based on 3 prndpal value, which is adusted for infation. Any increase o
decrease in the prindpal smount of an inflation-indexed bond will Be induded
a5 interest income on the Statements of Operations, even thoudgh inwvestors do
not receive their prindpal un@ matnty. Repayment of the origing bond
principal wpon maturity (a5 adjusted for inflation) is guaranteed in the case of
U5 TIPS For bands that do nob provide a similar guarantes, the adusted
pandpal vale af the bond repad 3t matunty may be Ly than the ongnal
peindpal

el Loan Participa tions, Assignments and Originations Certain Funcs may
irnvest in direct debt instruments which are interests in amounts cwed to
lenders ar lending syndicates by oorporate, governmental, of other bomowers
A Funed’s investments in foans may be in the fiorm of partidpations in loans o
assignments of all or a porticn of loans from thind parties or imvesiments in or
ofginations of laans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by & bank of

other finand al instituton (e “lender™) that acts a5 agent for a1 holders. The
agent administers the terms of the loan, as specified in the loan agreement

A Fund may invest in multiple series or randhes of 2 loan, which may hawe
warylng terme and carry different Jssocated ks, When a Fund purdhases
asgEeren from lenders itacquines dinect nohts against the borowers of the
loans. Thiese loans may indude pariapations i brdds lans, which ane |oans
taken out by borrowers for 3 short period (ypically less than one yea)
pending arangement of moge permanent finandng through, for example, e
issuance of bonds, frequently high vield bords issued for the porpose of
SOUESRONS

The bypes of loans and related imestments inwhich the Funds may invest
indude, among others, senior loans, subordinated loans (nduding second
lief loanes, B-Mobes and mezramine koans), whole ians, commeraal real
estate and other comenerdial loans and stroctured koans. A Fund may
ariginate |oans of aoquire direct interests in loans thaough prirmary kan
distribwtions andfor in privale ransactions. In the case of subgedinated loans,
e My D&‘:!I_Illfl’.al"lt indebibedness ranking ahead of the bomrower’s
oigancn b the holdes of swch & loan, ndipdng eh e svent of he
borower's insobency. Mezzanine Joans ae typically secured by a pledoe of
an equity interestin the moetgage bomower that owns the real estate rather
than an interest in a morigage

Ivestrmends in loans ray indude untunded loan commetments, whidh ane
contractual obdgations for funding. Unfunded loan commitments may indude
revolving cedi fadlites, which may cbligate 3 Fund to sepply additional cash
10 the borrower on demand . Unfurded [oan commetments represent 4 fulxe
ciliganion in hal, even though & percentage of me commiiled amount may
iR be ustized by the boeroweer When invisting in 8 Boan pactid pation,

a Fundd has the right to receive payments of principal, inferast and any fees fo
wihich it is entitled only from the lender selling the loan agreement and anly
upce recept of payments by the |ender from e borrower. A Fund may
recede 3 commitment fee based on the undrawn porion of the underhying
line of gedit portion of 3 loan. In certain draumstances, a Fund may recsve a
penialty fee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomower Fees eamed or
paid are recorded 35 3 component of inberest income of interest expense,
reapicivedy, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded |aan corrmitments
e pefecied o 2 habikty on the Statements of Astes and Lisbdines

I Morigage-Related and Diker Asse1-8 ok ed Securities Leftan Funds may
ieteest in mortgane-refated and other asset-badeed Seourities that diecty o
Indirecty represent a partidpatean in, or ane seawed by and payable from,
laans on res] property. Mortgage-related securities are qreated from pools of
residential or cormendal mortgage loans, induding morlgage loans made by
Savings and hosn insututions, morigage bankers, commendal banks and
clfvers. These securites proidee 3 monthly panyment which congsis of both
inilefiest amd pnRapal . Indenest may be detemnined by foed of sdustable rabes
The rate of prepaymenls on underhying morgages will shect the pice and
wokatility of & morigage-related seqwity. and may have the effect of
sheatening or extendng the effective duration of the seourity relative 1o what
Wit antaipated atthe Gme of purdaase, The timedy payment of prinopal and
Imterest of certain mortgage-rel sted ssanities is quaranieed with the full fith
and credit of the U4 Govenment Pools aeated and quarantesd by non-
govermmental issuers, induding govemment-sponsared corporations, may be
spported by various forms of insurance of uarantees, but there can beno
asaprance thal private intuners of guarantons can meet their obligaticers wnder
the insisranoe polioes of quasantes arangements. Many of e nsks of
irmeesting in mongage-rela ted secuities secared by commerda morgage
Ians reteat the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
earkets, the staling of 1enants o make legte payments, gnd the abiliry wa
Eroperty 10 JUACT and retan tendnts. Thise SecuniBes may be e liquid 3nd
Fivary Exiulal greater price volanling than ather types of mortgage-refated of
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other asset-badoed securities. Other asset-baded seaunities ane ceated fom
many types of assets, induding but not Emited to, auto koans, accounts
receivable, such & qedit cand receivables and hospital acoount receivables,
hceme ecuely long, student boams, boat [aans, mobile Rome loans,
redréatcnal vehicke loans, manutscired housng boans, sincralt leases,
cornpuster |esies and syndicated bank loans. The Fund my invest in any |ewel
of the capital stucture of an issuer of morigage-badked or asset-backed
sequenies, induding the equity o “iirst lass” randhe

i) Collateralized Mortgage Obligatiens ("CMOs") are debit obligations of a
legal entity that are collateralized by whole morigage loars or private
g bonds and deided into dasses CMIOS are struchared into multple
clasges, odvem retlemed 1o 45 "ranchis”, with eadh dass bearing 4 dfferent
stated manunty and enfitled to a diflerent schedube 1of paymments of pnopal
and interest, induding prepayments. CMOs may be less liquid and may exhilit
greater price volatility than other fypes of morigage-reated or aset-badoed
SEOEIES

i Stripped Morigege-Backed Securities ("5MES") are dervative mult-dass
Frcengage Seourites. SMES are wsually stuctused with faeo dasses that recsve
ditlerent proportions of the misrest and prindpal deiributions on a pool of
mracatgage alsers. An SMIES will have one dats that wal recenve Jll of the
interest fthe interest-only or K dass), while the other dass will recedve e
entire prindpal (the prindpat-only or “PO" dass). Payments received for 05
are indhuded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Because no
prindpal will be received at the maturity of an 10, adusiments are made to
the cost of the security on a monthly basis ol matity. These adustments
are includad in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Payments
received for POs are treated as reductions to the cost and par value of the
Seduniles

{gl Collateralized Dedt Obligations ("< (57} induds Collaterdized Bond
Oblegations ("CBOs™), Collaterakized Loan Cbligagons ("CL0s ™) amd other
similarty sbiuctured securifes. CBOs and CL0s are types of asset-backed
sequmilties A CBO s a st which is backed by a diversified podl of high risk,
beliowr Emeestment grade fixed income securities, A CLO is 2 tnast typically
cofiateralized by a pood of kans, which may indude, among others, domestic
and foreign Serior secured kans, seniof unsecuned loans, and wbordnace
corparate Baans, indudng loans that ray be raned below irvestrment grade or
equavalent unrated loans, The rides of an imvestment in & COO depend Lagely
ot type of the collateral seounies and the dass of the COO in whidh

3 Fund invesks In acd ton o the normal nisks assodated with ficed ingoms
secunties dooussed elsewhene in this report and the Funds’ Offering
Mesnodandum (& Q. prepaymenl sk, credt risk, | JL':JIW fsk, markernsk,
stnpckural risk, legal sk and interest rate fisk dwhich may be exacerbated if
the interest rate pavable on 3 strctured finandng changes based on
miitiples of changes in inferest rates of inversely to changes in nberest
ratedh), CBO, CLOA, and other CDO04 cary additional risks induding, bul nol
firnited 8o, ) the possibiity that dsmibutiors Fom collateral securides will nat
b adequate 1o make interest of other payrments, (i) te quality of the
collateral may dedine in value or default, fii) the ik that a Fund may invest
I CBOS, CLOS, or other CROs that are subordinate 1o other dasses, and (W)
the: compiex sraciune of te securily may not be fuly undersinod at the e
of ifrvanrmeenil and Fay peoduci o Sputes with the issuer of uhdpecied
irvesament resilis

fhl Payment bn-Hind Securities Cenain Funds may smestin payment in-kand
securities [T FIKe™) Piks may give the issuer the opSon at each intenest
payrnent date of making infterest payments in either cash andfor additonal
debd securities. Those addtional debt securines U'A'J-.ﬂljl hiave the Lame tEms,
nchpding mananty danes snd mtenet rates, and Fsoaaned naks i the
ofgingl bonds. The daly masket quotations of the ceiginal bonds muny indisde
the acmued interest {refemred txas @ “dirty price™) and require a pro rata

adiwstment from the unreaized apprediation or depredation on invesiments
lo inberest recedvable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilifies

) Restricted Securities Certaen Funds may Bold mvestments that ane sy
to begal or confrachaal resfrictions on resale. These seqrities may be sold
peoviatety, but may be requered B0 be registersd or exempled from such
regatranon before being soid 1o the public. Frivate placement sequrities are
generally considered to be resiicled. Disposd of restriciad investments may
Imechee ime-Consurming negotiation: and expenses, and prompt sale at an
accepiable price may be difficult to achieve. Resticted investments hebd by
the Funds at October 31, 2022, a5 applicable, are dedosedin the Nofes to
Schicule of Invesirments

i Svrsiwrad Netes Certain Funds may rvest in stuchared notes and other
related instuments, which are prvately negafiated debit abligations in which
the prndpal and of interest 5 defermined by reference 10 the performance of
a benchmark: azsset, markef of interest rate (a0 “embedded ngex”), SECh a5
sebected sequnties, an index of securities oF speafied merest rates, of the
differential performance of te 255ets or markess, such a8 indexes reflacting
bonds. Stmuctured instruments may be issued by coporations, indudng
banks, 3 well 25 by governmental gencies. The tenms of such struciured
imstremends normally provide hat their prindpal andor interest payments are
1t e pcfusted upwwards of downrmand (bat ordinaily not below 2ea) to
riffect changés in the embedded index while the stuctured instoments are
cutstanding As a result, the interest andfor prindpal payments that may be
rrade on a srucired product may varywidely, dependng on 3 varkty of
tactons, mdudng the wiatding of the errbedded Index and the effect of
changes an the ernbedded index on prindpal andis nieesl pnments

i U5, Governasent Agencies or Gawemsseni-Sporssred Enterprises

Certam Randk may imeest in secuniiies of US. Govemment agenaes of
girerTITen t-ipontored enteprises U5 Government secunifies ane
abligations of and, in certamn cases, quarantesd by, the U5 Govemment, it
agencdes of instumentalities Some UL, Govemment secunties, such as
Trigsury bals, nobes snd bonds, and secunimes Quaraniesd by the Govemmen!
Ramona Mortgage Assocancn (TGNMA” o "Gnme Mae”), e wipporied
Iy the: Tusl fath and credit of the U5, Governmens; others, wuch a3 those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
bomow from the U S, Deparement of the Treasury (the "US Treasuny™); and
others, such as those of the Federal National Morigage Assodation ("FNMA”
or “Fanmie W), are supporied by the disoredonary authority of the US
Govemment 1o purchase the agency’s obligations. L5 Gowvernment Securities
may indude 2ero coupon secunities, which do not distribute interest on a
current basis and tend to be subjed 1o a greater ek than interest-paying
Secugines of sirilar oot

Geneimiment-felated quaranteds § &, nol backed by the full fath and eredt of
the k5. Gowvernment) indude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Comporagon ("FRLMCT of "Feddie Mac™). FNMA B 3 govemment-sponsored
corporation, FRMA purchases conventional §f &, not insured or gu aranieed by
ay ovemnment agency) eesidential mongages from a list of appeoved
seflersieendicers which indude state and federally chartered <avings and loan
assodations, mutual sadngs banks, commendal banks and qedit unions and
miortgage bankers Pass-throwgh secunities ssued by FNMA are guaranieed a5
Lo iy payment of princpad and sntienest ty FRAMA, But are not badoed by
the full faith and credit of the U5 Government. FHLMC issues Partiapation
Cestificates {TPCS™), which ane pads-through searities, sach repretenting an
undvided interest in a podl of residential mortgages. FHUMIC guarantees the
timely payment of interest and wlmate ollecticn of prirdpa. but PCS a%e not
backed by te full faith and credi of the US. Govemment

In Jumee 2019, FHMA and FHLMEC started issuing Uniform Morigage-Backed
Sequrities (TUMES”) in place of their cument offerings of TRA-eligile
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securities (the ~Single Seqmity iniliathe™), The Single Seaunty initiative seeks
to support the overall liquidity of the TBA market and aligns the
charactenistics of FNMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Sty il e iy b on the markel Tor TBA and other mongage
Bracked Secenties ae UnCsTAIN

foil-timing srategies can be wsed where 3 Fund seeks to extend the
expiration or mandity of & position, such a5 a TBA senwity on an underhing
asset, by dosing cut the position befiore expiration and opening a new
prsition with respect to substantially the same underlying asset with a later
exparation date THA securities purchazed or sold are reflected on the
Statements of Assets and Liabdlities as an asset of liability, respectively

Il Whendssued Transactions Certan Funds may purchase of sl seowities
on 3 when-issued basis. These ransactions are made condiionally because a
security, athough autharized, has not yet been issued in the market
Tramsactions to punchase of sefl sacumties on 3 when 4ssued basis mmbe

a comemitment by a Fund to purchase of sell these seamities for 3
predesemened price of deld, with payment and desivery Laking place beyond
T austomany settkement period. & Rund Py sl when-asaged seaunties
before they ane delivered, which may resultin 4 reabzed Gain of loss

{m] Barik Dbligations Eank ::J:Ilqanl:nrrsnn witibche 3 Fund may invest indude
certifcates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and Soed lme deposils
Certificates of deposit ane negalisble certificares issued against funds
depotited in 4 cormmerdal bank for 2 defite pariod of ime and eaming a
spedfied requm . Bankers’ aoCeplances ane negoiabie dratts o bills of
exnchange, nonmully drawn by 30 IMpoeter of Exporter i pay for spedfic
rrerchandeie, which ane "aooepied” by a bank, meanma, in «fed, teat the
bank unconditionally agrees w pay the faoe valiee of the instrument on
maturity Fixed fime deposits are bank obligations payable at a stated
maturty date and bearing inferest at 3 fowed rate. Foed Gme deposits may be
withdrasn on demand by the investor, but may De subject to earky
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market condiions and the
remaining matunty of the cbiigation

5.EORROWINGS AND OTHER FIRAHCING TRARSACTIONS

The bollcwang disdodures oontasn informaton on the Fends' sbilitg b bend of
Erceminy cash of seauifes 1o the extent permitted under the Offering
Memcrandum, which may be viewed a borowing o financing transactions
by the Funds. The location of ese instaments is gesaribed below. Fora
detsbed desapon of gredk and counterparty ik:s thar can be associated
walh ECemossinge and other f"'l.ill'vt-'hj [ramsactuons, please see Mote 7,
Prindpal and Other Risks

{n] Aeprchese Agresments Certain Funds mdy engage m repurdisie
agreefmenls. Linder the terr of 2 hypicH reguichirte Sgreement,

3 Funed purchases an underying debt obligation (oollateral) subject o an
obigaton of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund to resell, the obligation at
an agreed-upon price and ime. I an Open Mausity repurdhase agresment,
thede &5 o pre-geterrmined repurdnase date and the agreement can b
terminated by the Fund or counterparty at amy Sme The market value of the
coflateral must be equa bo of exgeed the total amount of the repurchase
obdgations, induding interest. Repurchase agreements, induding acoued
intereat, ane induded on the Staements of Astets and Liabilnes Intenest
eamed B recorded as a comganent of interest income on the Stanements of
Operations. In penads of nceated demand for collateral, a Fund mdy pay 3
fee for receipt of collaterdl, whach may result in inferest expense to the Fund

ib] Reverze Aepurchaze Agreements Certain Funds may enter into reverse
repurchase agreements In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund delivers a
sequrityin exchange for cash to @ fnandal institution, the counterparty, with
A snuliansaus agreement 10 epundhate the same of subdtantaly the same

securify At an agreed upon price and date. In a0 Open maturity reverse
repunchase agreement, there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the
agreement can be terminated bey the Fund or counterparty at any time

A Fund i4 entiled bo receive prindpa and intenes! payments, if sy, made on
the Secunty delvened to the counterparty dumndg the term of the agreemient
Cash recenved in eochandge for secunties delvered plus aconied interast
payments to be made by @ Fund to counterpartes. are reflected as a llabilsy
on the Statements of Assets and Labdities Interest paments made by a fund
[0 CounBerparties are recorded 3 3 component of interest expense on the
Staterments of Operanons. in penods of increated demand for the Sedunty,

a Fund may receie 3 fiee for use of the sequrity by the counterparty, which
may resultin imberest income to a Fund. A Fund will segregate assets
determined 1o be liquid by PRVCO or will athensise cover ils oiligations
LR rimarte repurchase Sgresmenis

Idl Sale-Buybacks Certain Funds My entes inkg I'-'i-ll'-liﬂ'l'] ranianons
refemed 1o a5 “salke-tuybacks’. A sale-buvbadk financng Fansadion condsts
of 3 sabe of 3 security bya Fundio & fimancial institusion, the CON ATy,
with a smultaneous agreement o repurchase the same o substantaly the
same sensify at an agreed-upon price and date A Fund is not entifed to
receie princpal and interest payments, if any, made on the security sold to
the counterparty duning te term of the agreement. The agreed-upon
proceads for sequrities to be repunchased by 3 Fund ae reflected a5 3 iability
on the Statements of Assefs and Liabiities A Fund wall recognize net indme
reprasentad by the price dfferenBal bebwesn the price received for the
transfiemed QN Ty and the ﬂ‘,‘r’?f‘ﬁ-l.l‘D-'Jl'l repurchase price, Thisis <|:mrrml:.-
refemid 10 45 the ‘price drop”. A price drop consises of () the fl‘]f':-’_i‘ll':é NRETESL
andd il atiomary income aduaments, if any, & Fundwould have otheswnse
received had the security not been sold and (i) the negotiated finandng tenms
petween 3 Fund and counterparty Foregone interest and infladonary income
adiustments, if ary, are recorded as components of enterest income on the
Statements of Operations. interest payments based upon negotiated finandng
terrs made by & Fund to counterparties are reconded 2% a component of
Imterest epense on the Statements of Operations. In peniodk of ncreased
dermand for the seaxity, 2 Fund may receive 3 fee for use of the sequrity by
e countenparty, which may result in interest inoome 0o a Fund. A Fund wall
SR dyers determined to be liguid by PIMCO of will ofierite oover it
aibligaticng snder sale-turyback ransactions

i Short Seles Certain Funds may enter into dhoet sales transactions. Short
sales are transactions in which the Fund sells 3 security that it may not cen

A Fund may make short sabes of securities to () offset potential dedines in
long postions in grmilar secunties, (i) b increase the flegbility of the Fund,
(i) for imeesemeent retuen, v) a5 part of a sk arkivage srategy, and &) 3
part of its ovirall poetiole management Sirategies iniaving the ue of
derivate inSTumEnts. When 4 Rund engages in a Short sale, it may bomow
thi Sacunty sold short and deliver it 1o the countemparty. The Fund will
ordinaridy have o pay 3 fee or premium 1o boemow 3 sequnity and be obiigated
to repay thedender of the security any dvidend of intesest thal acoues on the
security during the period of the loan . Seaxities sold kn short sake Tansactons
and the dividend o interest payable on such secunties, if any. are reflected as
payable for short sales on the Statements of Assets and Lisbilifes. Short sales
expose fhe Fund to the risk that it wil be required to cover its thort position
at a tmewhen the security or other ascet has appredated in value, s
riesubting in bodses o the Fund. A shot saleis "against the oo™ if

the Fund hold in it portholio o has the rght to acquire the Ssurity sold
thiot, or seauities idenfical 1o the security sobd $hor, a1 no sdditional cost

A Fundwill be subject 1o addtional risks 1o the extent that it engages in shir
sales that are nol ~agamst te box™ A Fund's [oss on 3 shoft sale could
theoretically be urlimited in Cases whene the Fund is unatie, for whatewer
reason, to dose out its short position
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fe) Liren of Cradit FIMKCO Bermuda Bark Loan Fund (M) entered into 3 364-
dij' SENR URSE0ared r-.;-rd'.'a'.; aredil A eEmEnl with thie Bank of Tli:ﬁil'
Witsulisha UFL, Lvd O MUFG™) and ather commmencial banks 10 be utilized to
tefpdany purpased 1o fund Undtolder redemptions of for other shorl-team
Ioquckty purposes. MURG senves a5 both 3 bank and 35 an agent for other
banks that are parties 1o the agreement. PIMCO Bemuda Bank Loan Fund
{M) pays finandng charges based an 2 combination of S0FR-based variable
plis a credht spread. The Fund also pays a fee of 030% per annum on e
unused commitment amounts. The agreement was renewed on Augest 19,
2022 and expires on Auguit 18, 2023 unlets extended of renewed There s a
maimuem available commitment amount for PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (M) equeal 10 $15,500,000, Prior 1o August 149, 2022, the maximum
avalgole comimatment amount for thee Fund was 545,000,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0.275% per annum on e urused commilment amounts.
Commitment, uptront and interest fees of §137,379 pad by AIMCO Berruda
Bank Loan Fund (M) &re indieded in intenest expense in the Statements of
Operations

[hming the pericd, there were no borrowings on tis ine of cedit

. FIRAHCIAL DERIVATIVE IRSTRUMENTS

The tollcwing discesures oontan information on how andwhy the Funds use
financal derivative instruments and how finandal dentvaltive insruments
affect e Funds’ inandal posison, results of operagons and cash fows. The
location and far vaue smounts of thess insTuments on the Statements of
Asseis and Luatalites and the net reabzed gain (Joss) and net change in
unrealized apprecation (depredation) on the Statements of Operations, each
cateqoeized by type of fnancidl dervative confract and related risk exposure,
are incudied in 2 table in the Notes 1o Schedule of Inestments. The finandal
difirvalive instruments cutstanding & of penicd end and The amounts of net
realized gain Jods) and net dhange in unrealized agpredation (depredation)
on finandal derivative instruments during the perod, & dsdosed in the
Haites to Schedule of Investments, sene &5 indicators of the volumse of
financ gerrvainve aavity for the Funck

ia) Forweard Foresgn Gurrency Contracts Cesfain Funds may engage in
forwiard foreign oumrency contracts in connection with sefling planned
purchaies of sales of secufites, b hedge the cusrency eposre ssodated
with soeme oF Al of & Fund's securities of a5 part of an investment strategy’ A
forweard foreign cumency contradt is an agreement between two parties 10 buy
and sell & currency at 3 set peice on a future date. The market value of a
foewiard forelgn urendy Ooned flisctuates with changes in horengh curmency
exchangs rates. Fonwand f'ﬂl'.'-';"l QUERCY Contracts are mirkied 1o mak el
daily, and the change in value 15 reconded by 3 Fund & an uneealized gan of
logs. Realized gains or hosses are equal o the dfference between te value of
the contractat the fime it was opened and the valee a1 the fime it was dosed
and are regorded upon deliveny of receipt of the cumendy. These confracts
iy ireeche market nsk in exgess of the unrealized gan of s reflected on
the Statements of Assets and Lisblities. In addition, 3 Fund could be exposed
1o rick: it thie counterpartes ane unable to mest the ternms of the contracts or if
the vaiue of the curency changes unfavorably to the imcional cumendy. To
rimgane aach nisk, crsh of Securites may be exdhanged & collaterd purasant
1o Bt Remns f (e undieriying Con acts

Cetaln Funds, having a hedged Class, may also enter into forwand foresgn
CuTeny contracts designed to offset the effect of hedging &t the Fund bevel in
orger to legee the hedged Class with an expdsure to oamencies other than the
functiona cemency. There can be no guarantes that these Class spedfic
foeward foreign aamency contracts will be successul

k] Futurss Contracts Certain Funds may enter into futunes contracts. A
fuldes CONDRRCT & A0 Sgreemunl b0 buy or dl 3 sequnty of ofier assel Br 3

sel price on 3 future date and is raded on an exchange. A Fund may e
fubures contracts b manage its exposure o the saqunities markets or o
mowvements in interest rates and mency values. The primary risks assodated
wath thee i o fananes coniracts ane the imperiec comiation betaeen thi
change m mate? value of the secunines heid by a Rend and the prioes of
Tusures contracts and the posatality of a0 illiquid market Fubanes coniracs
e valieed hased upon thesr quoted dally seiifement peices. Uipon entering
o @ fusures corract, @ Fund is required 1o deposit with its futures broker an
aemcunt of cash, 15 Govemment and Agency Obligations, or selec soversgn
b, in accordance with B instial P CRN PR IPEments of thie brokes of
exchange. Futures confracts are marked to market daily and based on such
mawements in 1he price of the contrads, an appeopriate payable or recervabde
for the change in value may be posted of collected by the Fund ("Futures
Variason Margn ™) Futures Variation Margns, if any, ane ditdlosed withan
centrally deared fnandal desivative mstruments on the Satements of Assety
and Liabelities. Gans or kadses are recognized but nol considensd reslized until
the contracts expire or dosé Fulures contracks imohee, 10 varying degrees,
risk of boss in excess of the Futures Venation Margs induded within
exchang: waded of centrally deared fnanoal demvatve nsmaments on the
Sranements of Asters dnd Listdives

Il Options Contracts Certain Funds may write or purchase options to
erihance feturns of 1o hedge an existing poditon or future imesment. Certan
R may werite call and put apions on seunties and Snanaal demrdatve
irsEraments they own o i wiech they mayinvest Writing put options tends
o mnoresse a Fund's expoture 1o the UI'I-H|'|-'I‘1I,'| I SARATENT '-I'err-g call
COEONS tends [0 dedease J Fund s expodure 0 Me undeing inst ment
Wi 3 Fundwntes o call of put, an amount equdl 10 the poemiom fecissd i
reqorged and subsequenty marked to market to reflect the qament value of
thee option writlen, These amounts are imchuded on e Statements of Assets
and Ustalties. Fremivms recedved from writing opons which expire are
treated & realized gans. Premeums received from whling opions whidh are
emrdsed of dosed are added to the procesds o ofset against amaunts pad
on the undertying futores, swap, seqanty of qumendy Iransaction 1o determine
the realized gain of loss, Cestain options may be wiitten with premiums o be
devermaned on & hubare dane. The premiuames for these options are based upan
ienpdied wedatility parameters ot spedfied terms. A Fund a5 awriter of an
apEon hat 1o control cwer whedher the underhing mdrument may be soid
(el ™) or purchased (Cput”) and a5 & et bears the marketrisk of an
wnfaeorable change in the peice of the instrumens enderying the written
cpon There is the risk 3 Fund may not be able to enter into 3 dosing
trasaction because of an illquid market

Certain Rands may Jso pordhase put and call opSons. Purchasing call opsons
tendks fo inease 3 Fund's exposure 1o the underhying enstnument. Purdhasing
[l opticns tends 1o decredse & Fund's exposine 1o e uwderhing instousment
A Fund pard 3 prarium which is induded as an Fssed on the Statements of
Assets and Labilities amd sultsequently marked to markel o refect e
current value of the option. Premiums paid for pusdhasing options which
exphre e freated a5 realized bosses. Cerain options iy be purchased with
premuns o be determined on 3 futare date. The premiums for these optins
e baced upon implied volatity pararmueers af ipecified temns Thi sk
assodated with purchasing put and call options ks limited to the premium
paid. Premiums paid for purchasing oplions which are exerdsed or dosed are
added o the amounts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underying
imeestmen transection to determine the realized gain or loss when the
undeflying Iransaction is edeuted

Credit Default Swaptions Certan Funds maywiite or punchaze credet defaudt
Wvaptions. 1o hedge expogune 1o e aredtndk of an invesiment without
making a commitment to the Enderhing imstrument. A qedit defauft swaption
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s an opticn B0 sell or by credit protection to 3 spedfic reference by entering
ik a pre-defined awap agreement by sorme spedBed date in the future

Fersign Currency Optiens Certan Rind mady wnte of purchase forédgn
curmency options to be used 35 ashort o long hedge against posable
war atons in foreign exchange rates or to gain exposure bo foreign cumendes

Inflatior-Cappad Options Certain Funds may write or purchabe inflagon-
capped options 1 enhance resums of for hedging opoormunities. The pumxose
of purchasing inflation-capped options is 1o protect & Fund from indaton
efosion abowe A Certain rate on 4 given notional eposure. A foor can be
e 0 gpve dowwmaide protecsion B investrents in inflaton-inked products

Invtarest Rate Swaptions Cirtasn Fumds may write o punchase intensst rate
swaptions which are GpHons 10 enter in1o a pré-delned swap sgeement of
1o shorten, extend, cancsl or othensise modty an exishing swap agreemsnl,
by some spedfied date in the futre. The writer of the swaption becomes the
CouUnRErparty bo the swap if Thee Dusyer emercises. The enberest rate Swapbon
Wﬂ.&nrm! ﬁf‘r’w‘ht‘ﬂ! & the bigger of the swaption wall bea fedTate
receiver of 3 fixed-rate payer upon exsrdse

Dptiors on Exchange: Traded Futures Contracts Certain Funds rday wile of
purdhase options o exdhandge-raded fununes conaracs (" Fulures Ophon ™) ta
hiedge an exsling position o fulure investment, K speculative purposes of 1o
FRANGgE expasiine 1o rerket movements. A Futuses Opton 13 an opticn
contract in which the underying instrumentis 3 sngle futures contract

Opriors on Securitles Certan Funds may wiite o purchase options on
SECUARIES. 10 enfanoe retms of 1o hedge an ediing position of fulune
IFTVRARTENT AT GREIN O 3 SECRTY uks 3 Spedfied sequity 5 the wdirhing
Instnurment for the oplion oonirea

i) Swisp Agreements Certzin funds may investin swap sgresments. Swap
agresments are bilsterally negotiated agreements bedaeen 3 Fund and a
counterparty bo exchange of seap imvestment cash Bows, assels, foreign
currendes or marketdinked retams at spedfied, future intervals. Swap
agreements may be privately negotiated in the OTC market of may be deared
thecaigh 4 thind-party, kiien a5 & central counberpadty of dervativies deanng
onganerason ("centrally deaned Saaps ™) A Fund may enter inlo assel, aedin
default, ooss-umenoy. interest rate; tota retumn, variance and other formes of
Siap agreements to manage its exposure to aredt, currendy, interest rate,
commodity, equity and inflatan sk in connection with these agresments,
SecEties of Cash may be bdentfied a5 collateral or margin in aocondance with
the termes of the retpective wwvap agresments 1o prisade assets of walue and
recourse in the event of dedault or banknaptopirescdency

Centrally cedied 9wins e marked to markel daky bated upon vabuasons s
deterrrenid from e undédang contract of in socordance with the
recpuinemeents of e ceniral counterpar by of defivatees dearing organization
Changes in market value, i any, are reflected 35 3 component of net change
in urwealized appreciation eprediation) on the Statements of Operations
[raily changes in waliaahon of centrally deaned avape ("dwap Vanation

Margn “), if any, are dedosedwithin centrally deared finandd derirative
instruments on the Statements of Assets and LiabiliSes. OTC swap pagments
received or paid at the beginning of the measurement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilides and represent premiumms paid or
fistenvid UPOR ERtenG A0 the Svap agrement 1o Compensate fof
ditferénces between the dated terme of the swad agreement and prevailing
market cond ions (redt ipreads, arrendy exchange rates, inberest rates, and
ater redevant facnors) Upfront premisms received dpald) are inidaly recorded
a5 hatodes (asses) and sulbsequently marked 1o market 1o refledt the umem
walug of the swap. These l,-pflml:p‘.'-':ﬁ'uun'ﬁ e reconded 2 redhzed gans of
bt on the S1atements of OpErations upon TErminatcn o maturity of te
swiap. A Bguidation payment received of made at Se temination of the avap

is recorded a3 redized gain or koss on the Slatements of Operations. Met
periodic payments received or paid by 3 Fund are induded a5 part of realized
gains or losses on the Stabements of Operations

For purparses of applying otaen of 3 Fund's imesiment posides and

s BNy, Swap sgneaments, Bbe olfe derivalios shdrummen 5, iy be
waliped by 3 Fund at market value, notional vale or full exposure value. In the
case of 3 creddit default swap, in apphing certain of the Fund's imvestment

P 10w i resmonons, me Fundwil vaue me oedt defsult PNED AT
rofonal value or its full expossre value ( 2, the sum of the notionl amount
for the confrad plus the market value), but may value the credt default swap
at market value for purposes of apphing certain of the fund's other
imeestment podicies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value gedit
el ault s aprs a1 Wl exposure value e purposes of the Fund’s credit quality
uicelines. (if any) because wuch value in genera better refleces the Fund's
actual economic dxposune dunng the term of the dedit default swap
agreemment. A5 & result, & Fund may, at dmes, have nolona exposure 10 .an
aset dass (pefore netting) that Is greater of lesser than the stated limitor
FesRmman noded in the Fund's ':'f‘!l.‘llﬁg Memorandum I s context, Doth
the nctional smount and e makel value may be poRive of negative
dependng on whether the Fund is selling or buying protection through the
qedit default swap The manner in which certain sequnities of other
insEnements ane valued by e Fund for parposes of appiving investment
podicies and resinctions may ditfer from the mamer i which those
imeestments ane waued by other types of imvesbors. Entering into a7 ap
agreements imeotves, 10 vaning degrees, elements of inferest, aredit, market
and documentation risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the
Staserments of Asters and Listeities. Sudh rigks imeobve thie pasability tat
s wall be po Bguid market hor these agreements, hal the counleparty to
ther agrsesrrni s may defaull on it abligaton to perform of diagres as to the
meaning of confraciual teems in the agresments and that there may be
wniaearable changes in interest rates of the valipes of e asset upon which
Thoe: g 65 Dasesd

A Funeds madmum risk of boss from counterparty credit risk is the dscounted
net walue of the cash flosws to be recerved from the conterparty over the
confract’s remaning li, o the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
e ungated by haang & master nettng arangemint bedween a Fund and
e commBedpuar by aned by the pesting of collateral io @ Fund to cowver a Fund'™s
exposre (o the counterpatty

Tio thee extent a Fund has a policy tolimit the net amount osed b or 1o be
received from a single counferparty unider exsting ssap agreements, sudh
fimitation ondy applies bo counterparties 1o OTC swaps and does not agply to
Centrally deaned Svaps whene e counterparty 15 4 ceniral counterpesty of
derivathves dearing oeganizatisn

Credit Default Swap Agresments Certain Funds ey enter into credin default
SAps on Ofporate, loan, soversgn, LS munidpal of U5 Treasury ssues o
provide 3 meadire of protection againd defaults of the isasers e, toreduce
risk where 3 Fund gwns of has exposiare i the referenced Qbligation) of 10
Lake & BChve long or short posit on with respect 1o e lkelbood of a
partoular isaser's default Credi default swig Agresments ifvohve one party
making a stream of payments (refered bo as the buyer of protection) to
ancther party (the selier of profeciion) in exchange for the right 1o receive a
spedfied retwm in the event hat the referenced ensity, obligation or indez,
spedfied in the swap agreement, undergoss a Certain redl event As 3 saller
of protection on credit default swap sgresments, a Fund wil generally receive
friorn the buyer of protection a foed rate-of incme Swoughout the term of the
awap prowided that there is no dedil avent As the saller, 3 Fund would
éTietlvdj' A0 leverage 1o it portiodio because, in addtion 10115 total net
s, the Fund wiould Be subyect [0 inywesmen| exposne on the noticnal
armunt of the swap
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If a Fund is a <eller of protectin and a aredit event ooours, as defined undar
the terms of that particular swap agreement, a Fund will either (i) pay 1o the
bupyer of profection an amount equad to the notional amount of the swap and
take delbviery of the referenced oblination, ather deliverable obligatices o
underheng seqanties compasng the referenced index of (B) pay 4 net
seftlement armaunt in e fomm of cash o secuities equal pa the notmal
amount of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced obligation oo
undertying senuanties compeising the referenced index. If & Fund i a buyer of
protecEon and 3 credit event oooss, 35 defined under the e of that
prartacular Swap greement, a Fundwall erther (1) redenve from e sller of
prafecton an amount equal b he notional amount of the awap and deliver
the referenced cbligation, other deliverable obfigaSons or undarhing
sequnities comprising the referenced inde o (i) recetve a net settiement
amount in e fomn of cath or searitied equal 1o the national amount of the
wwvap bess the necovery walue of the reterenced obligaticn ar underying
securities comprising the referanced index Redovery values are estimated by
market makers considering either industny standard redovery rates of enfity
speafic fa0ors and considerasions untl & dect even oomers. If @ credit event
i oooumed, the ecteny value is determined by 4 fadilitated auction
wheteler a rrenimum nuirber of dlowable broker bds, together with 3
spedified valuation method, are used to caloate the setlement value. The
ability b deliver ather obligations may result in a cheapest-o-deliver opdon
{the baryer of profection's nght i dhoose the defiverable obligation with the
lowrestvalue following a cedit event)

Credit default vap agreements on aredit indwes imobee tne party making a
stream of payments to another partyin exchange for the nght 10 receive a
specfied return in the event of awnite-down, pincpal shoreiall, interest
sheenttall or defaultof 2 or partof the referenced ensitiey Comprising the
creditindex. A creditindex is 2 basket of cedit mEmnaTERS OF Expotunes
designed o be representative of some part of te gedit market a5 2 whls
These indices are made up of reference gedts that are judged by a poll of
deaers 1o ke the most lquid engties in the aedit default swap market based
on the sector of the index. Components of the Indices mayindude, bt are
not linwted bo, imeestment grade securities, high yield sequrities, assel-badbed
sequnlties, emerging markets, and'or vanous ceditratings within eadh secior
Credt indices are raded using oredit default swaps with standardized tems
Ircfuding & fied 4pread and standand maturity danes. An index credt defadt
swiap reterendes all the names in the mdex, and (f thene is a detault, the credi
evenl 5 seitled based on thatname's weighl in he index. The compositon of
the indices changes perindically, wsualy every to moaths, and for most
indices, each name has & equal weightin the index A Fund may use aredit
debault swaps on credit indices 10 hesige 2 poetfolio of cred defaudt swaps or
Do, which 15 less opentaae than 1Twauld be 10 buy mamy credit delal
swaps ip achieve 3 similar effedt, Credit default swaps onindices are
Imstrumenits for probecting emestors awning bonds against default, and
traders use them 1o specate on changes in aedt quality

Implied cradit spreads, represenibed in absolute terms, wilizzd in determining
the markel value of credit defaull avap agresments on corporate, foan,
sowereagn, US munidpal of U5 Treasury issues a5 of pencd end, if any, ane
disdosed in the Mobes 1o Schedule of Irvestrents. They Senve 35 an indicaid
of the ourrent status of paymentiperdormance nd and represent the likelibood
oF ik of default for thee referenced endty. The implied dedit 4pread of 2
partioular referenced enfity refects the cost of buying'seling protection and
may indude updront payments required to be made 1o enter info the
agreement Wider aredit spreads represent 3 deterioration of the referenced
entity’s credit soundness and a greater likelibood or risk of default or other
credit event ooourring as dafined wnder the terms of the ageement For credi
defzult swap agreements on asset-backed securifes and aedit indices, the
quoted market prices and resulting values senve 35 the indicator of the qument
sratus of 1he panrenterfoemance rek. indedsing market valued, in Atsolule

terme when compared to the noBonal amount of the swap, repressnt 3
deterioration of the referenced enlity’s aed! soundnéss and a greater
I&elibvood or risk of default or other qedt event ocouming a5 defined under
thees berrees o thie agresment

The msfum patental amount of future payments (undiscouried) that

& Fund 3 a seller of protecton could be required to mabe under @ qedt
defaut 9w 3p agreement equals the notional amount of the agresment
Motionat ameunts of each indivicus! credit GEtalL swap agreement
uistanding & of period end for which a Fund is the seller of protecion ane
disdosed i the Notes to Schedide of Investments. These potential amounts
wipld be partidly offset by any recovery values of the respective referenced
gbligations, upfront payments received upon embesing into the agreement, or
Pt amcunts necened fromm the Setement of biry protection anedit detaull
awap agresments entered into by a Fund for the same relerenoed entity of
enlifies

Imarest Rate Swap Agresmerts Certain Funds are subject 10 inferest rate
visk exposure in the normald course of pursuing Bheir investment objecives
The value of the fixed rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease if interest
rates rise. To help hedge against this risk and to maintain its abdity to
Qenerane icame 3t privaling msret fates, 3 Fund my enter into indemesl
rane Swap agreemnents. ntenes fabe wydp agreements invohve the eothandge
by 4 Fund with another party fof: their respective Commelment [0 pay of
reoende inferest on the notlonal amount of prindpal. Cervain forms of inferest
Fabe Swap greements may indide (i) imterest rate Caps, under which, in
FRRUM SO0 3 peemmiumm, one Py agreds 10 make payments oo the ather 1o the
exfent that interest rates exceed 3 spedfied rate, or “cap”®, §i) interest rate
floors, under which, in retum for a premium, one party agrees to make
payments bo the other 1o the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
rabe, of “fioor™, (i) interest rate collars, under which a party szlls 3 cap and
purchases & floor of vice Wersa in 3n attempl 1o protedt itsel agairt interet
rate mowements soceed ng goen minimum o madmom lewels, (v) callabie
interest rabe wvaps, under which the buyer pays an uplront fee in
conshderasion for the ﬂl;hl L] l.‘\\':l'i',' termirate the svap Tansacion in whok,
Al 2erg 0ost and At & predetermuined date and tene paor o the matinty e,
() spreadiacks, which allow S inlerest rabe Svad whar o lack in the
torwand cittenential (oF spnead) betaeen the infenest rale swap rate nd a
spedified benchmark, oo () basis swaps, under which weo parties can
exchange vanable interest rates based on different segments of money
ke

Total Return Swap Agresmenss Certan Funds may enter into total refum
awap agreements bo gan o miSgate exposure o the undethying reference
Tiotal FRIUFn S 30 Beements ke commatments where Sngle of muliple
cash Sows are evchanged based on the prce of an wnderhing reference auget
and on a Sxed o vanatle interest rate Total refum Swap Agreements may
i COMMiTMENES 10 pay intenest in exthange for a marketinked relum
One coungerparty pays out the tobdl refum of 3 spedfic underhing reference
anssel, which may include 3 single security, & basket of sequiities, of an index,
and i nefum receives 8 xed of wan able rate. AL e matunty date, a netcash
fiowd it eechanged where the total rebon & equivalent 1o the return of the
undeehying reference asset less a finandng rate, if any. As a recever, a

Fund would recetve payments based an amy posidve tolal return and would
ow e payments in the event of a negative (otal reiem, As the payer, a

Furid wioidd owee paytrents on amy posithve tatal return, and would recens
payments i the event of a net pegatve 1olal refum

7. PRINCIFAL AHD OTHER RISKS

o Prircipal Risks I Me nommdl course of business, te Funds (or Aoquened
Funds), If appdcabie) trade Bnandal instnements and enter into finand al
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transactions where ritk of potential koss exists due to such things a8 dhanges
in the market (market risk) or failure or inability of the other party o a
transaction bo perform (oedt and counterparty risk). See below for 3 detaded
descripiion of select peindgal fks

Fand of Fundde Fisk T the éxfient that certain Funds inesdt subdtantaly 8 of
their respective 3515 in Acquired Fund(s), the risks assodated with invessing
In hese Funds will be dosely redated to the risks assoaated with the Serunlies
and other investiments held by the Acquired Fundisy. The abilicy of the Funds
to achiese their respective irvestment objectives may depend upon the abslity
of the Acguired Fund(s) bo achieve their respective imvestiment objectives
There can be no assurange that the invesment objective of any Acguired
Fumd{s) will be achieved The NAV of an Acquiring Fundwill fluctuate in
respancse W changes in the meapecine MAY of the Acquaned Furdis) in whech il
irmests

In the nommal course of Euseness, Aoguired Fund(s) rade fnandal instrements
and enter inbo financial ransactions where rsk of potential loss exists due 0
changes i the mackel (market nsk), o Falure of inadeliy of the alives party &
a ransaction 1o perform {edt and counterparty risk)

Markei Risks A Fund®s mwesiments in inandal derneatne insraments and
affer finandal instruments expote the Fund tovakous fisks wach a4, butnot
liemited %o, interest rate, foreign duon-L0S ) curvency, equity and commod ity
fisks

Inbesest wate rigk 4 the risk that fced income securises and other insuments
beld by a Fund may dedine in walue because of an indeate in interestrates. §
nioeminal imberest rates rise, the value of certan fed income sequnties held by
A Fund would liely decredse A nomanal intered rate can be desonbed ot the
sum of & neal witertsl rate and an expecied inflaton rate, inbérest rae
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money il
thess dhamges ane aot anlidpated by Fund management. A Fund may nat be
able to hedge agamn st changes in inlerest rates of may chogse not to oo 50 for
sk of o er reatons. In addition, any hedges, may Aol work J5 intended

Diur afon is 2 measure used to determine the sensithaty of a secunty's price to
changes in imterest rates tat ncorponates a sequrity’s vield, coupon, final
maturity and call features, among other characienistics. Convesity is an
acdtional measure used o understand a secunly's of Fund's interest rane
sefitivity that measures the rate of change of dwation in resporse o
changes in milered! rates Fooed income secunities wath longer durations fend
1o be more sensitive b0 dhandges in interest rates, wa ally making them mone
wolatle than seqsnties with shofer durstions. A wide vanety of factors can
CFSE INTERES ranes of yehds of US Treasury Seouries (o el ds of oxher
Types o Do) 1o Fise (g, Cendral bank rrometary polices, inflation rabes,
genera economic condifions, etc ). This is espedally ue under current
cond@ons because interest rates and bond yields are near historically low
lessals, Thigs, the Funds currently face a heightened bevel of sk assodated
walh mrang inbensst rates andior bond yields. This coudd be driven by a vanety
of factars, induding but not Emited to central bank monetary polides,
changng inflation or real growth rates, generd economic conditions,
Ingreasing bond issuances or reduced market demand for |ow yielding
Irvethrnents. Further, while U5 bond markets hive Steadly grown over the
past three decades, dialer “markiet making™ abey has remained relately
stagnant. Given the importance of inermedary “markel making™ in ceating
& robust and active market, fixed income secunities are qurrently

fagng increased wolatiling and liquidty risks. All of these factors, collectivesy
andior indvadually, coubd cause 3 Fund 1o lose value. 8 the Fund last enough
wafue, the Fand could face increased Unitholder redempitions, which could
further impair its perfoemance. Abso, the Fund may be adversely affected
when a large Unitholder purchases or redeems Large amounts of units, which
can oooer at any Gme and may impact the Fund in the same manner a5 a high

wolume of redemption requests. Lange Linitholder Iransactions may impact
the Fund's liquidity and net asset value Sudh ransadions may dso inedse
the Fund's fransaction costs or obhenwise cawse the Fund to perform
difterently than interded Mofedwer, the Fund is whgect to the rsk that
ctier Unithodders may make smvestment dedisions based an the chaces of A
large Unatholder

P the extent that certain Funds mury irvest in secutiSes sndinstruments fat
e eConomecally med to Russla, the Funds e Sul‘g?—"- bovanous niks wdh &,
[t not Emited 1o polifical, economic, legal, markes and qumendy fisks. The
risks indhude uncertain pofitical and economic pofiges, shorl-term market
wolatilitg, poor accoynting standards, cormuption and aime, an inadequate
requlatony system, and unpredictable tacation, vestments in Russia ae
particulary subyect to Me fisk that further eoonomic Sanctions may be
irnposed by the United States andior ather countries. Such sanctions, which
iy Bmpact companies in many sedtors, induding energy, finandal sendces
and defense, among ahers, may negaively mpac a Fend's performance
andior atelty (o achieve (iS5 investment objectve. The Russian seaumties
FaEL, 45 compaeed 1 LS markels, has ugmﬁ cant prace volatliny, less
Inquichey, & senller rmaeker CapiRakzanon and & smaler number of raded
secyrites. Adverse cumency exchange rates are a nsk and there may be a lad
of avadabie curency hedging instruments. nvestments in Russia may be
subgect to the risk of nadonalzation o expropn agon of assets. Ol natural
gas, metals, and imber acoount for a sgreficant portion of Russia™s exports,
leaving the country valnerabie bo swindgs in world pices

A Fund may have SJ-\]'IIE{JJ‘-[EIDIIH.I'E 1o i Snets in e Uinited Kingdom. The
United Eingdorn 5 wathidrawal fromm the European Unson may impact Fund
fetums This deosion may cawse substantial wolanlity in horeign exchange:
markets, lead bo weadkmess in the exchange rate of the Briish pound, resultin
a systaned period of marketuncertanty, and destabdize some or all of e
otfwr European Unica member countries andfor the Eurozons

Fereign (nof-U.5 ) securities in this report ane diassified by the country of
imcorporation of 3 holding. In certain instances, a seaurity's country of
incorporation may be different from ite oountry of economic exposure

I & Fund sfaksts directly in fofeion (pon-U5 ) durfemaes of in seosities. that
(ke w, snd recenie fevenies in, Tareign (Ron-U5.) aumendes, o in fnanda
derivaie instruments thal provide exposure to fareign (non-L S ) asrrendes,
Ftwll be sabject 10 the risk that those qumencies will dedline in value relatve
1o e Darse QuiTendy of the Fund, o, in the case of hedging positions, that
the Fund's bate currency wall dedine in walue relative 1o the arrendy being
hedged Currency rates in foresgn countries may fluctuate significantly cver
shoet periods of time for 2 number of reasons, induding changes in interast
rates, mtenanton (of the faslene 10 interaene) by LS. of Tobégn govermiments,
ceniral banks of supeananonsd entities such a5 the intermational Monetany
Fund, or by thee impeiition of arrency contrals of ather palitical developments
in the United Sates or abroad. As arewlt, a Fund's irnestments in foreign
Currency-genominated seourities may recuce the Fund's returms

The market values of equities, such as common stodks and prefered secunties
o equity related investments such as futures and options, have historically
risen aned fallen in periodic opdes and may dedine due o general market
condifions which are nof spedfically related o 2 parfioular company, wdh &
rieal oF peroéved sdverie economec conditions, chandges in the gensral
aulock Tof corparate eamings, dhanges in intenest of curfendy rates, public
health emengendes, sdh a5 the spread of infectious lness of dsease, o
athverse mvesior senliment generally. They may alse dedine due 1o faciors
which aifect 3 partauba indusing OF industries, sudh a5 |abor ShoFtages of
inredsed production costs and compeditve condiBons within an indusiny
Different tyfees of equity Secuilies may read dfferently to thewe
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developments Equity securities and equily rd.ated invesiments generally have
greater market price volatility than fized income seamiBes

Thiie Fusnidts mdy IFvest in Oiflisn InSTuments Bat rely in some Thshion upon
LIBOR LIBCR 5 an Sverage mntenesl rate, determanid by the ICE Benchmark
Admenistration, that banks dhanges ane anothef for the wte of shor -tem
momey. The United Kingaom's Finandal Conduct Authonity, which reguiates
LEBCIR, has announced plans to ulfimately phase out ®he use of LIBOR. There
remains uncertainty regarding future utlization of UBOR and the nature of
any replacement rate (e g, te Secured Overnight Finandng Rate, whidh is
intended bo replace LS. dollar LIBOR and meadures the cost of ovemight
bcemowvings throwch regurchase agreement transacions oollateralized with
WS Treatury securities) Ay pobential effects of e randtion sway fom
LIEOR: o & Fund of o ceftamn instruments in which a Fund invests can be
ditcuit 1o ascenain, and they may vary depending on avanety of factons. The
tranditicn may also redultin a reduction in the valwe of certain insfruments
Field by a Fumd or 3 reciscion in the effectiveness of related Fund ransactions
such a hecges. Ay such effects of the wansition away from LIBOR, a5 wel
a5 otfver undoreseen effecs, could rewultin lesses ta & Fund

Beginning in January 2020, global fnandal markets haw experienced and
may condinue bo experience significant volatility resul Bng from the spread of a
nowel coronavrus known as COVID-19 The cutbreat of COVID-19 has
resulbed in travel and border resticions, quarantines, supply chain
disupticins, bower consumes demand and general market undértainty. The
global economy, the economees. of certain nations and indvidud isgeers have
b and miay continue o be adversely affected by COVID-19, partiodarly in
Ingjhé l!lf'a'h:ll'l[-:fmﬁr-:(ﬂ“ﬁ't&'-'ﬂ'ééll E0OnOTeES and Sinanaial markets, ol of
which muy negatvely impa the Funds' perfoemance. in addition, COVID=19
and govemmenial responses to COVID-19 may negatively impact the
capabiliges of the Funds’ senvice providers and dsrupt the Funds” operatons

Credit and Counterparty Risks A Fund will be egosed to creditnsk o
partses with whom it trades and will ako bear the risk of settement default
A Fumd minimizes concentr agons of aredi risk Ery undenaking a0 Sacmons
wilh & |ange nueber of Cus iomers snd counberpal es on recognized and
FEputalle exchanges, where spplicable OTC denvatn rarsactions
subgect tp the risk that a counterparty bo the transacion will nol fulfill i
contractual cbligations to the ofher party, as many of the protections affceded
t centrally deared denvative ransactions might nat be avalable for OTC
derwative transactions. For derivatives raded on an exchange or through 3
central counberparty, aredit mek resides with the ceditsorthiness of

the Fund's dearing becker, o the dearinghouse itsedf, rather than with a
counderparty in an OTC derivafive ramsaction. Changes in regulation refating
10 @ Fusd's e of derrvatives and relabed instruments could patentialy lint
of Enfuct the Fund's ability 80 inest in derfvatives, bmit te Fund's alality to
efnploy Certan srabedpet that wie demvates andior adversely afisct fievalue
or perfoemance of derivatives and the Fund & Fund could lose money if the
Issuer or guaranior of 3 fied income security, of the counterparty io a
fimancist derivative instnments coniract, repurchase agreement o & loan of
poetfolio secunities, is unale of Lenwilling b make Bmely principal andior
interest payments, of to othenwise honor its obligations. Securities and
finandal derivative instruments are subject to varying degress of aedit risk,
which may be reflected in ceditrating

Sarnilar o credit itk & Fund may be expoded Bo Copnterpanty nak, of The nsk
that an mslilution of ot enttywith which a Fund has unsettied of open
transactions will defaule. FAMCO, a4 the Manager, minami e courlerparty
risks v the Funds thiowgh 4 nsmber of ways. Frice 0 entenng into
transactions with & mew countenparty, the FIMCO Coumeanparty Risk
Comenittes conddicts an extensive dedi review of axth e TR R L TEY
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermoee, pursuant to the berms. of
the underlying contract, to the extent that unpaid amounts owed to 3 Fund

exgeed 2 predetemmined threshold, such counterparty shall advance collateral
to a Fund in the $om of cash or seamities equal n value to the unpaid
amount awed 1o 3 Fund. A Furd may invest such coflateral in secunities o
ciliver nsarurrents and will tygecally pary inlerest i the CounIeiparey on e
ool aberal recerved N the unpaid amaant owed 10 2 Fund subdedquently
decreates, & Fund would be required Do retum 1o Se oounbérparty 38 o 3
porticn of the collateral previowsdy advanced PIMCO's attempts 1o minimize
counterparty sk may, howeser, be unsuccessil

Al transactions in listed seqmiSes are setfledpaid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties. The sk of default is considered minimal, a5 defvery
of securibies sold is only made once 3 Fund has received payment Payment i
made on 3 purchase once the sequrities have been delivered by the
counterpaity. The trade wall fad if either party bds 1o meet its obingaton

i Oibar Riskx in general, each Fund may be subject to additional risks,
indudng, but not limited Bo, risks related to govemment regdation and
intenvenBion in fnandal markets, operational risks, ddes asodated with
finandal, economic and global market dismuptions, and ofbersecunty risks
Plegae reter to each Fund's offen g documents for & more detaled
desaiption of the ks of imvestng i the Fund

Market Disruptions Rk The funds are subject 1o ivestment and
operational fisks dodated with finandd, econcenic and other global madet
dewelopments and disruptions, indeding theee ansing from war, lernorsm,
rrarket manipulation, govermiment interventions, defaults and shubdowms,
poliical changes or diplomatic developments, public health emengendes
(anch a5 the spread of indeCous diseases, pandemcs and epidemics) and
naturalenndronmental deasters, which can Jl negatividy IMpact e SeamiBe
riadogts, intenett fabes, aucons, secondary radng, ranndgs, cedt nsk,
inflaton, deflation and other factors relating to the Fund's investments of the
Manager's pperations and cause 3 Fund to lose value These events may have
adverse longrterm effedts on the LS. andworld economies and markets
generally. These events can aiso impalr the technobogy and other operational
wysterms wpon which a Fund's senvice providers, induding PIMCO as the
Funds” imvestment adviser, rely, and could otheewize disrupt a Fund's service
providers' abdity to fulfill their obfigations 1o the relevant Fund. For examgle,
the speesd of an mfechons respiratony ilneds coursed by anovel sirain o
coronadrs (eroan 35 COVID-19) hus cauted wolatility, severe rarket
dislacasions and ligudity oonslrsints in many markeds and may adversely
affecta Fnd's investments and aperations

Geverrmant Intervantion in Finencial Markets Fedenal, state, and other
gvermements, their requiatony agendes, or self-regul abory organizations may
lake actions that affect the requlation of the instrements in which a Fund
Irvoests, oo the st of such Enstruments, inwiys that ane unfoneseesbie
LegrBataon of fegulation may ol s change thi way i which & Furd insf is
regulated Such legiskation of ragulation could liret o predude a Fund's
ability to achieve its irestment objectve Furth ermaore, valatile finandal
aes Can expose 3 Fund o greater market and |iqueditg nisk and potendal
diffbaulty in valuing portfolic knsmuments held by the Fund The value of 3
Funds heoidings i5 also generally subject to the risk of future lacal, national, or
gobal economic disturbunces based on unknown weaknesses in the markets
inwhich a Fured invests. i addition, it is not certain that the U S Govemnment
will intenvene in response to a future market dsurbane and the effect of any
sudh Ruture intencention canmod be predicted. Inis difioult for issuers o
prepare fof the impact of future financal downturns, although companies Gn
seek o identity and manage hulsfe uncertainties thedugh rigk management
programs

Ragulatory Fiek Fnanddl entilies, such as rvestment companies and
imeestment advisers, are generally subject to extencive government regulation

Byl Fagoe | Dowber 1, 2062 e
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and intenvention. Govemment regulation andfor mitervention may change the
way a Fund is regulated, affect the expenses inoumed directly by a Fund and
the value of its investments, and limit and'or predude 3 Fund's akility to
Achse I ifrvisirnent abjectiee. Governrent regulason ey change
Irequently and may have SgniScant advers oon Sequeftes. Moreower,
goemmient fegulation may have unprediclable and unantended effects

Operational Risk A investment in 2 Fund like any fund, can invibae
operadional niks ising from factars wich as processng erors, homan emons,
inadequate or failed internal or extemal procesees, faliures in systems and
technobogy, dhanges in personnel and ermors caused by third-party sendce
picmbddiers. The aoourrence of Sy of tisse Talures, emors or breaches could
fiesult n & Boss of information, requlatoy scrafieny, reputational darmage o
ather events, amy of which could have  material adwerse eflecon 3 Fund
While 2 Fund seeks fo minimiize sudh events throwgh controks and oversight,
theesre ey 540l be fallures that could cause losses o the fund

Cyber Securiey Fisk As the use of technology has become more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds hawe become potenBally more wistepiible
1o eperationdl snd infoemataon Le0ity ks resuling from beeachis in oyter
Secuftly. A breach in oyt Secuniy felirs 1o both intenbonal and
unintentbonal cyber events tatmay, among ather Bengs, cause a Fund to
lersie puriypiri e Lary i iration, suler data conupon andior destrudtion oF |ode
operasonal capadty, resdtin the unauthonzed release or other misuse of
confidential anforrmation, of othensise diaupt noemal business operatons
Cyboer sequriy failures or breaches may result in finandal losses 1o 2 Fund and
its Unstholiders. These failures or breaches may also result in disrupfons to
business operations, potentially resulting in finandal losses; interference with
a Fund’s ability to calculate Bs net assat value, process Unitholder
transactions of othenwise Fansact business with Unisholders; impediments 1o
trackndg wolanans of applecable prvacy and otfer laws; requlatony fines,
pematiey repulational damage; remburtement of other Compensation costs;
additional compliance and cyber secunity risk management costs and other
adverse consequences. In addton, substantial costs may e incurred in order
1 privent any cyber incidents in the future

B.MASTER RETTIHG ARRAHGEMENTS

Thie Fusndtt iy b Subijiect 10 various retting amangements | " bt
Agreamenbs ™) with select countérpartes. Matter Agreements govern the
terme Of certain transactions, @nd ane interded to reduce the counterparty msk
ass0c sted with rekevant transactons by spedfing cedit protection

rech anssms and I.'fl?f'i'iﬂ(} standardization hat & intended to impeoe legal
certanty. Each rype of Master Agreement Qovems Ceman ivpes of
transactions. DiHerent Iypes of rarsactions friy b traded out of different
legal entifies or affliates of a parficular organization, resulting in the need for
muktiple agresments with a sngle counterparty. As the Master Agreemenis
are spedfic bo unigue operations of different asset types, they dlow a Fund to
close out and net its total exposure 10 .3 ounberpasty in the event of a default
with regpect bo all the transactions governed under a single Master
Agreement with a counterparty. For fnandal repoeting purpases the
Statements of Assets and Liabaities generally present dervative assets and
Ieabibnes on 3 gross bases, whech reflects the Rull feis and exposures pror o
netling

Master Agreements can alop help limet counterparty sk by spedfing
collateral posting amangements a1 pre-armanged egomre levels. Uncler magst
Master Agreements, aollateral is routinely tansfemed if the toral net exposure
1 Certaen fransactions (net of exising collaters slreadyin place} govemed
under the relevant Master Agreement with a counferparty in a given accoun !
exceeds 3 spedfied threshald, which typically ranges friom zerd o $250,000
depending on the coonterparty and the type of Master Agreement Linited
States Tredsury Bills and U5 dallar cash are generally the preferned fomms of

collaterd, dthough other seqenties may be wied depending on the tems
cutfined in the applicabie Master Agreement. Secuifies and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected as assets on the Statements of Assets and Uiabilites as
either 3 component of Immtsments at value (Seogilies) of Depodits with
counterparty. Cath collateras redenved 15 not typscally held in a seqréganed
acoount and a8 such is refhected a5 a lishiling on the Statements of Atsets and
Ligkfities &5 Deposits from countemparty. The market value of any sequrities
receneed a5 collateral is nof reflected a5 a component of NAY, The Fund's
ouerd| exposure 10 CoUNTeparty risk can change subsianBally witkin 3 shom
peeiod, 5 115 affected by each transaction subject o the relevant Master
Agreement

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
(Aidrdually and oolectvely ~Master Repd Agreements™) govem répundhiie,
riefse repunchase, and sabe-buyback ransactions beteesn the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repo Agreements maintain prowsions for,
among other things, initia$on, fncome payments, evends of defaule, and
rnaingenance of colfateral. The market value of ransactions under the Masler
Pty Ayreement, oollaters pledged of received, and the pet exposure by
countepany a5 of penod end are dedosed in the Notes 1o Schedule of
Ivestments,

Masher Seunities Forward Transaction Agresments (" Master Forwand
Agreements™) govern cerfain fonward setiling ransacions, auch as TEA
securiBes, delaye d-delivery oo sale-tuybadk transaction: by and

between the Funds and sebect counterparties. The Master Forward
Agreements mantan provizicns for, among other things, initiation and
confimason, [uareenit and warmsder, evenits of defaull, ierminaton, and
roaintemance of collateral. The market value of forwand Seming ransactions,
collateral pledged of received, and thie nel expisuge by counteparty a5 of
pericd end are disdoted in the Nobes o Sdhidube of IS iments

Customer ACoount Agreements and related addenda Qe Cleaned
desivatives ransactions sipch &5 futures, opticns on futures, and deared OTC
derivagves. Such rarmsactions requine podting of et margin as debermined
by each redevant dearing agency which is segregated in an account at a
futwres commission merchant (FCM™) registered with the Commiodity
Futres Trading Cornmession {"CFTCT). In the United $1ates, counterparty ik
ritapy bt rechaced A% creditors of an FOM cannot hunee a dim 10 Fund assets in
the seqreganed aocount. Portatality of expodure in the event of an FCM
default scenanio further reduces sk 16 the Funds. Vanation margn, of
changas in market value, are generally enchanged dally, but may nof be
retled Detween futures and desred OTC derivatives unkess the partes have
agreed 0 3 SEAraNe amangement in respedt of fund mangrimg The madne
walpe or aoosmidated unrealized sppredation (depredation), initial mangen
posted, and any unsettled vanation margn: a5 of period end are disdosed in
the Kotes bo Schedule of nvestments.

ntermeaticnal Swaps and Derrvatives Assodiation, Inc. Master Agresments and
Crecit Suspapct Annesioes (T 1500 Mailer Agreemenis”™) govern bilaneral OTC
derivatie ransactions entered inbo by the Fundswith seled counterpantes
P00 Baster Agreements maintain provsions for general obligations,
representations, agreements, collstersl posting and events of default ce
terrnination. Events of terminasion indude conditions that rrury erilitle
COUnBETpanies 1o elect o termming e eaily and cause seatement of Al
cutstanding transactions under the applicable B0 Master Agresment. Any
eledion 1o erminate ealy could be matenal to the Snandd statements The
b Master Agresment may contain addtiona prosdsions that add
counferpanty protection beyond ooverage of exising daly exposure if the
counterparty ha 3 deding in redit quality below a predefined level or as
required by requlation. Similady, if required by requlasion, a Fund may be
required to post addifional coflateral beyond coverage of daily exposure
Thete pmmountd, sy, may (of if requined by L, wall) e sgregated wath a
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9. FEES AMD EXPENSES

dlowing fees payable at the Sllowing annual rates (stated as a percentage of the average daily net asete of each Fund, or Clazs, if

Fees

Fund Manag 1t Acksesory Adminisirative Agency Distrabution
PIMCO Bermuda Emengirg Markets Bond Fund 1l

O TR - 0 35%

& |mat P Hedged as 0 35% i
PIMCO Bermuwda Glabal Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund @8 0 25% 00"
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A

1 75% - - [ 06% %

76 - - 6% E%

0 eL% U %

s THFT)
PIMCO Bermuwda Morigage Dppertunities Fund

PIMECD Bermuda L5, High Yield Fund B (V] - 15 % 020%™ - -
PIMCO Care Inceme Corparate Bond Fund 202010

* LSO [ 40% = - 0% D%

ipeyal Fagart | Dowber 1, 2103
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Fees

Fund Manag Achiisory Adminisirative Agency Disir butien
PIMCO Shart-Term Martgage Incame

= EUR 45%"0 - - 06% na0%™

s PY, Hedged) = = = - =

LI 045%™ - - 0E% 040%™

*  UsD 045%™ - - NES 040%™
PIMCD Workd High Income 0% - - 0 w0 1

* Ui oy oy T Y O TR o e ey e e e e e 0 e Pl iy e o o colarlne by i aprdieq £ J0% o g e thy et 0 mlpe o e P ot mmary, 1 13 o nngm o b s 257 mlom o R
Tel's oy arary o O % e e g o F P e ety e ATV i e oy 0 ach SRR 8 g e 1Y b st nE e e el 0 o v i o ot B

# AEE T Sermanly Skl Ay Frapam Bt Fod (888 b 5 am indracat e o . v, P o el S0 P Pl (8 % e s a8 vt 550 el 5 ' ot s § L5 e v il 3w e
A 257 alon e o v e 7 e o e 0t sl Ty 8 e 400 e

® e (o 7 i £ F B e o L v e o T e vl it e i el VK i v 0 i e B0 00 o Dy ety el £ 5% poe e ey 10 o O ooy o i 2 0 O OF

* Ty oy oy s B o b S v B e e e e e g 0% per v il S A0 00 1 ey et 8 V9 o e g el A0 SN o ey v, a0 P e e sy
Rty 8 e BORG TTR

® e i 1 oy e e oy g 8 e (B 0 T W SV I A (T g T TR BTRT ey B e T 1 e Al 1 B i T b TSR S 0 BECRRT 80  ROER FOPETRT I e e F
£

® Ty Clly or b 0 ¢ it et g 1A v e i S8t vl e Ll i ol B poe e s i St B el f Uls it G5 o dtvee g o 550 il ¥ . a9 g it g 0 ot ST
i e e 1 500% po e e e e 25000 o o (i i, a5 35 e v g oy ot ki ey it ey T il P T ot 1 0I5 0o (3001 Wl T P T 0 T e

® Ty Cily it e 1 it v’

® T oy oy s 0 0 o Sy oyl o v gl vty o e iy v e e sy o vty oy Ul e 8 CFR, B e Baseng ol gnd ey e vt e sy Ty, e oep oy o e Fer e sl oy enienT £
B chagad by P it (o vt Maie T R o it Bt S Bt 1 e SRS ) VTR ST

® ARL T By U/ § Mph Kl ot 7 0 a1 b v 20 i e e worry s’ i i s vl pvde Rl o delipan (1 00 pew v e e g e S enlip v Pl v a8 1% e e gl o e vl 250 omiin
i Moy ooy o il 7% o v appiler o o vl il v e vy e ey o 3 0 milim

P Ol T o ey U R iy sl 50 TIPS e S0 By ) ool Byl Lo (e et b Feancng (oo Mo e & i e T s et by o e v et e e ey
st bk 5% v v et ol i O % ol o ey o i e ey e o e ) TR, it o S e 02T o e et ey o b il ey e e [0 N, o R e e F 0 e T
¥ i diad pody vty @ 3 e J 430N o b el e AT e e v o1 e ey 0P 8 3 N e ot b o e PR e v ey e el e b (R o o v ol B el T Bt gt
RPN SRR

N Ly o T 0 o SR o (Y e R A et iy Sl Pl ity e by she Lo apoan (oot sal San W e e (peratsny Kcpwory mey St oVl Bl 7 e B ey ot Sty opmer mpmat b e ek ray
w o 5% e e o aal e 50 'l oo oy o e sl poly vy o Berwmen P | 80, e e e el e 8T o ey ey ety e s iy e et | 5% 0 400N o b e il ' 6% Ui o e
s s pusiy e 0 3 0O, e rie S sl i 2 iy e ey o iy e ey vt & 5% o e vl i ol B T Ve v vy ke pudey vl e (e i x ovalotly e g el e ppilos
I | e

" ol b B e B R i e i et Vs B ey ) et By et Bl it [k cocwind iy Ll 5 Enpoctnd i o i L d i At s oy it e st F S il iy vty b ) 5%
s shy ol b TV of (e oo ity o 8 sl gy st o e T AT st i e ] o F 112P0 o Uil a0 s iy ot 3 it | P90 % it i e il e 2P (i it o8 3 iy
i bamamn 2 Pl 435% chaw v et wl e O 7% o e o v o she e sy s 0 3 0 it vl e o wal e £ 5 iy v amey. e gy o e ot 3 0 v ncaelanly e b e el £ T O il R B
dwerd pgipy

D (e T 19 3 T Vo R i I 0 T WO A (TR iy 10 ) it By i ek e (e vsetiy £l ogerrod 8 T i T L ey sy S et ot F o sl gy o e )
e the Yol by (1 % of (v ot ey 2 s pdey ity 0 detae 5T 600 o sy o il e O 0P il ety oty v sy ot o b 1 S BHY, i i S il b 0% o Ly 2o oty of Shor e pesley
my i b ] ST BN, pe il der wall e 09K, o S et s of vl avaed ey o'y 0.3 5% o gt o i o all b 0 A (D vt ety ¥l ponly it ey e (i i o sty i ik e il iy o gt o' B
# &y p oy

Ml i i e g S b B S T T AR (i el v | it By 0 Fideial Rt it s 58 S sl 0 Lo i o Vol g R b v ey S e 0 9%, et o e onl B T 0% 1
Ll o e b v ol v o e e [ % v vt o el i o 1 f (T el vl iy o i T30 6% che it e il e F 0 e s e F o i sy e Bt ! S
J iy i riw S uel o £ 0% oF Ul ver ey o v g pedey v @ 2% o e v sy Yow el B 0 5% 0w wer sy b pesdeny e o i ST vy vl i Mmape il N 30 manm 1 S o ey Jp e pam

Y Clay o wpheT £  iSabaion Ny S i himwd e Pl et i (i Ty vty dbiid! By 2 Focleeal Faelh e Rty 0 2 e Sihaf 1 i aviarg v oy Vb propwingi it ¥ Sk i iy it e ) G, et il s 8 19 e
ot vy o i v iy R 8 0 T 0T, i o o il e 0 TS o Tk vy 1 i ey G b Bt | 3% 0 2509 v o e el 0 Tl v ey o DR i ey T o Renisee ) P ) 49T e e Ty
ol 0 300 0 e A i gl W @ 15 o e el ol B el 0% 0 Dl 0 e YN ey o B Tl Ul 0 B el ST R e T VB TR I 9 S

w N&:‘?ﬂl\hrﬂrmx i apvry dow S vaiy A o vy et il o ol Ve  elpan ) 1% e i sl pa Sy ot S0 i 1 20 ot ety el R e e o e ol e Pt ot ot i e
1

& R el Mg et o ikt T e o AT i et 0 S8 S e o' S i Sy 0 50K o it sl 6 e P R il o0 she S 0 ity e () 35 o ot e i o 5 S BV o i
A et

The mansgement, advisory and sdminsirative e, if applicable, are paid monthly in arears o PIRCO for providing or aranging for the provision of adwsory,
adminitrative and third-party services induding audit, artodal, rustes, porthilio tcounting, roptne legal, ransier sgent and printing senices. The agency and
distribuson fees, if applicable, are pald monthly in amears 1o remburse finandal intermed aries that provide senvices and dismibution relating oo e units of fe
appdicable Fund {or Class thereof, a5 applicable). In exchange for sudh fees, PIRACO will bear the cost of various sendoe provdders requised by the Trust snd spplicable

Fund, PIMCO, and not Unigholdiers, would benefit from any price dedease in the cost of sudh Shind-party sendces, induding decreases resulting from an ingease in net
assels. In addition, with respect 1o Funds thal are sublect to an adminisirative fee, PINCO generally makes a profit on such a fee
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Asnofed in the table abowe, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are not sub
Led, PRCO' affiliate in Japan, is paid 4 fee from the lapane
such fee is ten dlocated o FIMCO to compensate it for it

o management, advisory, administrative, ag gerecy of st :l.lu:r fees PINCO Japan
Imvestment Tnsts or ather imvestment vehicles that inwest in sudh Funds or Classes and 2 portion of

vices, &5 applicable

o, & appicable) many bear other &penies rdated o the U are ol converied By the manacernent, adviscry, admirisirag

nicluding bt not lirrated ba: [ Liies and gomememental | ) bk age s and comimivs e pof Tl [P anssaction expeiies

apense; () extracedinary expenses :r--‘-;rh‘,r*.ﬂ:s of litigaton and indem expenses: and (V) 2
onal expenses asod #tedwith the geation of the Trust, except for PINCO Sho

Thie Fusnds {of Classes i
Adgency of ditnbution fe

0 has paid the rm;.'u Z3
irational expenses avsndated with the creation of each Fund

FIMCD hars pand the o

Maorg ae Ing

PMCD Barmmuda Income Fund A (the M (FY Advisony) and M (LD Advisony) Classes), PIMICO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10, PIMCO Shoet-Term

Mortgage income (the EUR, IPY, and LD Classes) and FIMCO Wiordd High income pay on-going agpenses related to the public offering of their unitsin fapan

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIORS

The: Irreestment Achiser b5 3 related party to the Funds and is a majonity-owmeed subsidiary of Alanz ssset Management AG Fees paid to the related party if any, are
dischosed in Mote 9, and aooneed related party fee amounts, if any, e dsdosed on the “.*._.—:'r ity of Assets and Liabiliges

Alianz Asset Management A3, 3 related party of the Trst, ewned 0.008% of the net assets of PIMCO Bamuda Dynamec Muli-Asset Strategy Fund, 0 013% of the
net assets of FIMCO Barmuda Morigage Opportunities Fund and O 675% of the net assets of PIMCO Shont-Tenm Morigage income a5 of Oclober 31, 2022

ger ipictied Cond
bey & fured Broem o

procedunes sdopted by o
fund that i of oould be

comsidered an afiliate
21, 2022, the Funds) below engaged in purchases and

sales of sequnities among affikated funds (amounts in thousands)

Fund Purchmm e

FIMDD) Besmady Bark Loan Fund (W0 I- T 3 B as
FIMDD Baemaila Erriperg Mariism Bosd Ford (W 20 130
FIM ) Basmuyds Emaprgeng Maries: Bond Fynd 11 208 4 11
FIMDD ol Apgregam Ex-Japan Bond Fund () 97 b 2
FIMID) Besmasdls Incorme Fund W) 121 e 15506
FIMDD B e pan fecpme Fursd 4410 5517
FIMED E-.'-l."qL'E Hi 10838 12380
i ru‘i‘ 16 g JE72

nd 22010 - 1,48

FIMOD E= r!,- 1 Bored 'r-c ame Fend IMI 1,754 24 800

11. GUARANTEES ARD IRDEMRIFICATIONS

Undier thie Trust's ceganizational documents, certain parties jrdu 'ng the TIJ" b

performance of thelr duties 1o the funds. Additonally, in the ny : ess, e Funds enter inio conraos
Thix Fungs” mnad rmm exposune under these aman QEMENI £ Nkrsam 3 i iy fulure daimes chat may De made &0
accuned However, the Fands have not had poce claime or [osses pursuant 1o these coniracts

and FIMCIO) are indemnified aganst cenain liabilities that may ariss oul of
avanety of indemnification dauses

il the Eunds that have nol yet

12. UHITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

1t of the pet
LA i)

Thie Trust may isaue ug
u;wlx G EE I' cua

2 S04, 000, 000,000 um Ix TI' Fands rmay have o Sgnlficant conoenmation o
¢ Funid .ur'l concentraion of Unitholders' 1s could have 3 ma

:- "_l ||'|?| eyl A o _‘:"!-l’ an ad i‘lN 3' r||'-'-.r" a_.‘_.'. { 'I"-‘r.-

Changes in units of benefidal interest were as follows funits and amounts in thousands®)

s Ended
Oetobar 31, 2022 Getober 11, 3022 Octobar 31, 2022 Detobar 31, 222
[Ter Amsint unns Amount Urits Amount Upits Amoune

Foraipn For i vl amn § BB L = L Hia N L1 £ L

Byl Fgaet | Dowbar TL 2002 xa

321/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended itar Endid Year Ended Taar Brded
Dctobar 7, DO Doctobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, W32
Wt Ameuint Lngs Amount wrety Amount Uit Amowurt
F LU m T} [ m 5 il NA [Ty
F (S0 Wi KA 5 i 1] Wi Me 11 M
| LN 1 ] L] Al LI L2 Na R
A 5L WA L] i 2. Hin L] L} [
¥ ohAL) Wik R [ Wi 13 m [T KA
Y G450 Wik [ WA Wi Mtk WA ] 1
Y Wi RIE n | Hid M Nia [0S
Y L W R [ & ] i1 NA L]
Y B WA Lo N& H& & 38 N& R
Y (TR Wik L&) N& Ha 17 128 N ]
[ W [ 1] 48 T e [T} m
Wi W Na L] NiA Na Nz L
LU (LY e & He 37 LT LS
Wi R IH 5,000 N Na Na [T
L] A N& H& 13 643 N& L
K 1] N & 10 1087 N L1
K [T WA W& N e i) 1108
Y LT W KB £ AL Hi MNE N R
¥ LY Wi R [ & a o3 NA, R
Y B Wik [T [T W& i 1045 NA [
W HL Wi K L] H& | 1845 N&E [
Y RIS We R a7 7.0 Nia L] Mz [
Lot of unin reckeemad A2324) 160, 7848 N Wi N N N [
FL Wt R Na 1 (1133 (3| NA K
Wik L LY 126560 119,857 M N N L
W L0 ({1 1B} Ny M N K
L] L] i B, Hik e [T fin
L R N'& W Lk} (LS NiR L
Wi KA N & {383 [30; ey N ]
WA KB Me W& Hid e [t h} a5
Wi 2] 81 .10 N e NR L
W 2] KA & 61 12583 Na [
W s e W L] [ 5140 M R
Y (TRT) Wix [T N W n 14,01 Na e
Y fUSO Wik il [0 29,5501 W e N A
Nt ecrem | rmeding from
Furd unilt Temaotos M4 & (13588 ek | & el ra) (1,560 £ Bosm [{LFy] H 34
Yaar Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
October 3, 2022 October 1, 2022 October 3, 2022 Dchober 11, 2022
Unis Amaunt Units Amount Urits Amount Units Amount
Pecsips for it oid Wik ] 0] N ' Ha& X ] o Nt ' L
i LEPY Win e NE W& " MR i 1850
el Fagary | Tiowber 1, 06T a
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Yiear Ended

War Ended Wear Erded
Dctober 1 . 222 Dichobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Detobar 11, 222
Ut Amsiant Unis Ameunt Urits Amount Units Amowurs
) [T [ M Wi m ] ]
W i1 15 9,30 Wi e -1 [
1 .0} N Wi N L3 N L
Wt WA N h& M N (T3 e
! 18 MR W& Nk NE NE [
W KK L] W ] (15 54m L& [
We R L] W& HiA L] 1 1] 16126
Wi 1LY Na & Hid M ] i)
WA iR 2im 17,0 M N NR I
Y (e (i} 1Fyi ] N& H& Hin WA Wia [
Nt idwcrmanl reding from
Furd wnil rewaiions 0i & [E18 ] [ {7,181} Wn & aknm &= 3 (CEELL]
‘Waar Erded Yaar Bnded Yoar Ended Waar [rded
Dctobar 1, 20 Detebar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, 2022
e Amsunt unes Amount urits L Linits Amount
Farsipin for unifs i 1.1 ¥ 1THER 552 & Wl 157 & M5S0 137.M5 ¥ LEsgla7
Coxt of unin redesmad 11551 1145, 5880 (<L ] 45,451 {2072 ETATE (25030 (JELEETD
Rt iroremss [daorsasl
msuting freme Frand urit
rarmacsan B & 010 B @ W 538 & s 320 & (1762580
Year Ended aor Ended Yaas Ended Yoar Erced
Qexobar 3, o Oetober 1, 2027 Octobar J1, 2002 Detsbar 31, 222
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Notes to Financial Statements co

Tuar Ended itar Endid Year Ended Taar Erded
Dctobar 7, Dy Ductobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, 32
Wret Amsuint Lngs Amount Lrety Amourg Units Amowurt
U i TR ] N m ik Ty NA [T}
il 52 g™ Na Ha Wi Me 1.1 M
251 1018 L3 W Hi L2 Na R
i = N& & Hin L] LT} [
250 T [ W N he [T N
LEE] 5,06 Na L) LI NA A L]
Y BE 15357 Na W M M 1.1 [0S
Yl y W R 12 51 HiA M NA |}
lerusd s redmomc bt of
darhutions L 2] L3 L] LI Lo Na o]
FLIPY 5 E6D N'& & Wi NA LT} [
[T o wiE [T} TR || [T [T [T
| L) 11 & A W NiA 3] Nz W
) [} 5 56 Na Ha M M 11 LS
13 & 3% L1 W& N [T NR N4
Al 2, Gt N& H& HiA L] N& R
K L1} m 10 W N Nia L
Wik Lo N'& Wi LI [T N [
2,15 (148, 254) A & N L5 N W
01 960 27 548 N& W Hi N& L1 L
W R N'a e M M m (1]
] [T W Ha M W k] T
o)) 3350 N'E Ha LI L L] [S.688)
£l 1] N'& N N N N L]
o 1.285% [T W& M N NA [0
340 [E T N LE N N NR 1]
(5378} 1341, 320 W& A LTS & M= s
R535) (233 BEYy s Wi Wi s N, [
Wi L 2H] L] B.15) N N'R NE L]
4ATH) 2548 N Ha LI N L1 L
) ] M K& Mt /18 [T [0
3 WP B4si (R L) W& Nk NA N& A
T Y] [N 13357 & Hik Wik L N, L
U 50 s [ 35~ N'& & N N NA ]
WSD aan [0, BECR N& LB Hi MR NE L
I k] N8 H& LI N'a N L]
AT 260 [ W ik [T [T [T
65N W20 Nia W& " U N LY
B{H) 1,948 N'A (1] LT M8 N, ]
Wik LAY man 18612 LT N B A
(=1} (k1] N8 lis N Lo Na 1]
Fursaction 52A & 1,080,073 .2 ¢ e n £ (503 {m 4 L]
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Notes to Financial Statements co

‘Waar Ended Yaar Ended “Yaar Ended Yaar Erved
Dctobar 3 , 20 October 31, 2022 Ocbolear 3, 2022 Ociobar 31, W22
Urats Amaunt Linits M mpant Units oyt Units AMGUTR
Pecaigs for it i 280 & 84N v < I | 8455 W & NA 1 f 175
letind i oo Wl of
darhuins ik 1) Na hia N L) 138 70896
(Cexn o unin iduemad [N ES] 12254 [ra ] 15,5401 Nk N [1ke] 22555
150 Wik ) e ] {1,190 70840 NE Nk
Nat Mecren| rmeding from
Furd unit Temactions Wi & ana @ & o LRE ST [ e
aar Ervded Year Ended Tear Ended Yaar Ended
Octobar 3, Doz October 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2052 October 31, 22
(18 Am=ant Linits Amount Units Aomount Units Amowri
T £ ] (¢ SO 1 N 2 1} [T TR R4
Wik [ [ W 0 1] NE& A
Wik R N Hi 18 ] NE [
Wik Kk Na W i ] NA N
Wi KA N& LE & 55 N A
Wik ) N W& MK N B -]
lik i N W ik N B Bl
W L1 Mie W& i yeoxl N LY
Wik Wk NA N | nn N, ]
Wik L ALY N Ha ] 3 NE R
Wik [T} N i i 186 R L]
Wi [T+ [ Wi 14 1044 N Ptk
Wa LY fle lid LY Mla 3 s
n A B N Wi Mk N N L]
Wik Wk NA W 5 280 N ]
Wi A [T Y 15 =8 NA [
Wik 11 N W& ] 11 NA 1]
Wik [0 N s ] Fio ] N Ntk
Wa K Mla lid N M2 ? 1z
Ui U] N lidk N NE 2 1
Wik KAk N Ha 3 164 1.1 [
K R N K& i ol NA hed
Wik K& N& L] i 133 N L
Wik Rk N Hi 1 e NE R
Wik K N& til i Far) N N
J 0 Wik LEL] NA LE HiA NE i 27
(Cont of unit redesmad (7 (12083 65830 (10, ik NE Ni L]
| AL Wik [0 N N 164 L] Na N
| [BAL} Kin 1] [} n& ] .58 N L
[ lik [ Ne lid 14 ns Ni Nk
J [CNH L1 KB MR W Lo ] .33 Nia R
J U] Wik R .} e Mk N na (1]
J GE# Wik [T [T W& (T [T nj 38
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Notes to Financial Statements co

Yeir Ended Yeur Ended Vs Encid Year Ended
Dctobar 7, Dy Ductobar 11, 2022 Octobar 31, 2022 Oetobar 11, 22
Wret Ameunt Lngs Amount Wrety Amoung Units Amowurt
m T} N m iE] (] NA [T}
s NA N H& k] (e [T [T
L] 2] L3 L] (1A [ 2] Na R
WA A N& & P 1.5 LT} [
Kk Kin N W& (148 .75 NR N
L= L] 2] Na L] Nk NA na B
Wt Maenas) rading fos
Furd unih T on [ - 6,758 (5,58 § (6 {34 ¢ [HHA ] H 117 ]
Year Ended Fear Ended Year Ended Year Ered
Octobar M, 2022 Dotober ™, 2022 Dctobar M, 2022 Octobar 1, 2022
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Yaar Ended Tear Ended Year Ended Year Ended
October 7, 2022 October ], 2022 October 1, 2022 October 31, 2022
Lrits Amaunt LUnits Amount Units Amount Units AMouE
Fwcis kor wis sdd ® F B [T & WA ¢ N 1 T
) [F30 ) Kiy 530 152 M N N [
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Notes to Financial Statements oo

Wiar Erded Yiear Ended Yiear Ended Year Drded
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2023 10
41,385 6,106
145 21
41,240 6,085
8,014,635
5.15 760
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1470 80
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2024

1,443,950,333.78 2,130 5,488
850,000
98,837.57
850,000

250,000
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
2022 807,608,901.74
2023 798,537,475.45
2024 1,443,950,333.78
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2024
L

Adam Gubner

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Anna Dragesic

Ashish Tiwari

Ayman Hindy

Ben Ferguson
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Brett Condron

Bryan Tsu

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Christian Stracke

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel J. lvascyn

Daniel H. Hyman

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David Forgash

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

Frank Witt

Geraldine Sundstrom

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner
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Jerome M. Schneider

Jing Yang

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Kristofer Kraus

Libby Cantrill

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Pierre Luc Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau
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Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)

(Richard Clarida)

(Richard Colasuonno

Rick Chan

Richard R. LeBrun

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

(Sachin Gupta)

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sung Hee Suh

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2024 340
763,494,166,040

119 460,121,126,965

21 14,585,770,584

18 23,978,446,273
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69 181,058,258,930
9 6,572,748,406
30 17,891,826,222
34 18,127,468,621
15 23,746,532,427
4 786,510,098
5 2,501,998,698
16 14,123,478,815
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2024 31
147.55
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
2(c) 692,286,956 102,146,940 721,198,092 106,412,778
2(d),3 23,611,226 3,483,836 29,741,057 4,388,293
2(e) 760,075,930 112,149,203 993,957,179 146,658,382
2(e) 298,953,809 44,110,635 317,540,465 46,853,096
42,455,591 6,264,322 47,497,769 7,008,296
2(e) 16,419,794 2,422,741 21,577,432 3,183,750
2().,7(c) 31,213,708 4,605,583 32,250,845 4,758,612
6 20,366,756 3,005,115 33,463,658 4,937,563
93,819,191 13,843,022 54,848,716 8,092,928

1,979,202,961 292,031,397  2,252,075,213 332,293,698

2022 12 31
252,958,658 2021 12 31
230,285,768 2(0),4 94,477,969 13,940,224 111,294,054 16,421,438

2(1),9 231,158,864 34,107,490 173,842,283 25,650,429
2().7(c) 1,122,167,785 165,575,857  1,140,825,289 168,328,771

2(h) 30,865,176 4,554,157 30,865,176 4,554,157
2(9).5 26,699,575 3,939,522 32,984,825 4,866,911
2(b) 28,471,674 4,200,995 36,988,617 5,457,670

8 60,321,209 8,900,394 61,620,430 9,092,094

1,594,162,252 235,218,640  1,588,420,674 234,371,470

3,573,365,213 527,250,037  3,840,495,887 566,665,168
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2022 2021
401,344,504 59,218,382 444,187,520 65,539,869

7(c) 254,261,222 37,516,243 301,432,498 44,476,365
57,704,815 8,514,345 81,689,779 12,053,327

2(i),9 31,647,773 4,669,629 31,437,762 4,638,642
6 84,349,623 12,445,787 95,602,945 14,106,215
2(r),7(c) 31,213,708 4,605,583 32,250,845 4,758,612
5,767,625 851,013 10,676,405 1,575,304

866,289,270 127,820,982 997,277,754 147,148,333

2(r),7(c) 1,122,167,785 165,575,857  1,140,825,289 168,328,771

2(1),9 241,298,327 35,603,568 182,746,288 26,964,215
7(c) 144,363,847 21,300,886 138,931,408 20,499,329
3,517,589 519,020 4,046,469 597,057

1,511,347,548 222,999,331  1,466,549,454 216,389,372

2,377,636,818 350,820,312  2,463,827,208 363,537,705

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,305,031) (6,433,247) (949,226)
150,000 1,289,007,163 190,193,007  1,333,506,696 196,758,913

2022 12 31 90,957
2021 12 31 74,205 74,137,242 10,938,950 69,610,604 10,271,045

2022 12 31 59,004
2021 12 31 102,231 7(a) 24,899,178 3,673,874 32,693,374 4,823,907

2(0) (88,587,431)  (13,071,075)  (52,708,748)  (7,777,176)

1,195,728,395 176,429,725  1,376,668,679 203,127,464

3,573,365,213 527,250,037  3,840,495,887 566,665,168
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2(e) 3,829,526,077 565,046,573 4,520,575,834 667,010,964
2(e) 1,013,190,320 149,496,232 1,166,893,208 172,175,093
2(e) 1,161,877,051 171,434,959 1,272,072,660 187,694,321
2(e) 289,992,929 42,788,457 350,424,117 51,705,078
2(e) 44,812,438 6,612,075 32,477,418 4,792,043
6,339,398,815 935,378,295 7,342,443,237  1,083,377,500
7 2,096,156,066 309,287,828 2,695,488,619 397,719,346
414,744,909 61,195,611 666,590,135 98,355,374
2(s) 610,193,500 90,034,051 633,462,121 93,467,336
242,700,768 35,810,498 233,154,167 34,401,897
2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 29,232,533 186,670,745 27,543,268
2(n) 119,548,680 17,639,408 105,285,247 15,534,838
32,998,070 4,868,865 47,627,284 7,027,406
2(0) 51,076,118 7,536,281 41,501,327 6,123,521
3,765,537,618 555,605,076 4,609,779,645 680,172,987
2,573,861,197 379,773,220 2,732,663,592 403,204,513
7(c) (139,931,743) (20,646,929) 126,921,569 18,727,278
2(i).9 (5.,102,108) (752,816) (5,545,277) (818,206)
2(b) (8,516,943) (1,256,675) (1,327,780) (195,914)
2,420,310,403 357,116,800 2,852,712,104 420,917,671
8 99,310,016 14,653,193 107,478,838 15,858,503
2,321,000, 387 342,463,607 2,745,233,266 405,059,168
2(0) (35,878,683) (5,293, 900) (7,967,178) (1,175,557)
2,285,121,704 337,169,707 2,737,266,088 403,883,611
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2022 2021 12 31

2020
12 31
850,000  (103,214,782) (15,229,341) 150,000 1,308,035,518 193,000,641 58,608 43,399,986 6,403,668
1,942,092,906 286,555,808 614,678,821 90,695,860 188,461,539 27,807,500
(1,861,825,611) (274,712,369) (589,207,643) (86,937,588) (171,157,203) (25,254,245)
8,451,432 1,247,009
PINMCO
8,062,808 1,189,667 8,006,282 1,314,122
2021
12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (949,226) 150,000 1,333,506,696 196,758,913 74,205 69,610,604 10,271,045
1,612,749,721 237,961,221 517,338,542 76,333,302 190,912,124 28,169,084
(1,716,943,889) (253,335,071) (561,838,075) (82,899,208) (196,629,414) (29,012,670)
2,254,594 332,665
PINCO
4,645,064 685,379 10,243,928 1,511,492
2022
12 31

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,305,031) 150,000 1,289,007,163 190,193,007 90,957 74,137,242 10,938,950
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2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
148,726 37,843,422 5,583,797  (44,741,570)  (6,601,619)  1,241,322,574 183,157,146
2,745,233,266 405,059,168
(2,622,190,457)  (386,904,202)
8,451,432 1,247,009
PINCO
11,819,042 1,743,900 11,819,042 1,743,900
(16,969,090)  (2,503,789)
(7,967,178)  (1,175,557) (7.,967,178) (1,175,557)
2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,823,907  (52,708,748)  (7,777,176)  1,376,668,679 203,127,464
2,321,000, 387 342,463,607
(2,475,411,378)  (365,246,949)
2,254,594 332,665
PINCO
7,094,796 1,046,837 7,094,796 1,046,837
(14,888,992)  (2,196,871)
(35,878,683)  (5,293,900) (35,878,683) (5,293,900)
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,673,874  (88,587,431)  (13,071,075)  1,195,728,395 176,429,725
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2,321,000, 387 342,463,607 2,745,233,266 405,059,168
7,007,233 1,033,917 11,600,078 1,711,592
72,011,201 10,625,253 65,880,266 9,720,633
5,102,108 752,816 5,545,277 818,206
8,516,943 1,256,675 1,327,780 195,914
2,110,095 311,345 1,665 246
1,697 250
517,601 76,372 29,028 4,283
4,206,963 620,737
13,733,834 2,026,427 15,036,589 2,218,649
(8,121,604) (1,198,343) (13,788,912) (2,034,554)
(126,296,902) (18,635,108) (108,645,764) (16,030,682)
(5,102,108) (752,816) (5,545,277) (818,206)
257,625,543 38,012,649 (194,961,547) (28,766,576)
(19,444,611) (2,869,052) (18,406, 245) (2,715,841)
17,730,085 2,616,074 180,065, 741 26,568,700
(16,690, 982) (2,462,754) 63,479,303 9,366,371
2,529,700,520 373,257,312 2,751,058, 211 405,918,639
(144,367) (21,301)
(14,102,890) (2,080,881) (17,229,114) (2,542,156)
(991,693) (146,324) (4,902,545) (723,371)
(23,500, 150) (3,467,447)
(15,094,583) (2,227,206) (45,776,176) (6,754,275)
579,000,000 85,431,450 337,000,000 49,724,350
(579,000, 000) (85,431,450) (337,000, 000) (49,724,350)
(2,475,411,378) (365,246,949)  (2,622,190,457)  (386,904,202)
2,254,594 332,665 8,451,432 1,247,009
(34,481,606) (5,087,761) (33,282,796) (4,910,877)
(2,507,638,390) (370,002,044)  (2,647,021,821) _ (390,568,070)
(35,878,683) (5,293,900) (7,967,178) (1,175,557)
(28,911,136) (4,265,838) 50,293,036 7,420,737
721,198,092 106,412,778 670,905,056 98,992,041
692,286,956 102,146,940 721,198,092 106,412,778
2,547,664 375,908
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2022 2021 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO 2022 12
31 90,957
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
P1 LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
P1 LLC 1934

FINRA
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AAM LP

2022 2021 12 31 4447 323.9

FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO

346/437



30

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

18

2022 2021

12

347/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

IFRS

PIMCO

348/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
30

2022 2021 12
31

IFRS

349/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IAS 19

IFRS

350/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

[ J
[}
[ J
2022 2021 12 31 23.6 29.7
2022 2021 12 31
NAV
2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
10,150,192 3,952,698 14,102,890
(1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
(16,079,748) (12,728,012) (28,807,760)
2022 12 31 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969
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2021 28.8 27.0

13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825

991,693 991,693

(1,697) (1,697)
(5,195, 246) (2,080,000) (7,275,246)
9,419,575 17,280,000 26,699,575

2021 7.3 7.2
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 24.3
AAM LP AAM LLC
2022 2021 12
23.5 21.5
SOFR 0.2 2021
90 AAM LP PIMCO
2021 PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
PIMCO 2022 2021
102
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2022 12 31 776.5
2021 10
2022 2021 45.3
55.9
PIMCO
2022 2021
6.3 7.3
PEG
PEG PIMCO
PIMCO
2022
PEG 418.3 2021 400.4
PEG 34.0 2021 41.6
PEG 2022 PEG 66.6 2021
85.8
2022 12 31 15.7 2021 26.2
PEG 60.8 2021 74.1 PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 SOFR 20 2021
LIBOR 20

AAM LP PIMCO
2022 2021 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2022 2021 12 31 59,004 102,231

90,957 2022 12 31

2022 2021
2022
2021

2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
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41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5.478) (5.478) 15,218
102,231 102,231 15,330
38,379 (38,379)
(38,379) (38,379) 13,960
(4,848) (4,848) 16,186
59,004 59,004 16,151
14,516 17,806
24,780 2022
2022 38,379
2022 28
16,752
90,526 431
2021 31 2021
15,597
2022 2021
7.0 11.6
2022 12 31 2025 12 31
401
100
2022 2021 62.2
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AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2022 2021 12 31
12 12
2022 160.0

2021 112.1
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12 31
2022 2021
50,000 81,038
3,037,815 3,988,116
100,156,227 115,094,758
103,244,042 119,163,912
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
99,310,016 107,478,838
2022 2021 12 31 16.9 32.8
2022
2021 12 31 52.5 54.8 2022
2021 12 31 146 285
12 31
2022 2021
30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204

2,341,128 1,319,717
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2022 2021 12 31
43.3 40.9
2022 12 31

12 31

2023 39,348,587

2024 22,579,980

2025 34,908,435

2026 34,012,100

2027 29,593,384
171,102,531
331,545,017
(58,598,917)
272,946,100

2021 12 31

12 31

2022 35,796,969

2023 37,499,114

2024 23,189,168

2025 34,006,401

2026 33,302,410
69,700,751
233,494,813
(19,310,763)
214,184,050
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2022 2021
3.3
12 31
2022 2021
2,629,358,116 2,408,685,532
1,057,636 567,143
2023 20
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM LLC
850,000
AREOA
PIMCO PIMCO

31,548 PIMCO
2023 31
7,862
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Assets
Note 2022 2021
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaents 2(c) $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 23,611,226 29,741,057
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 760,075,930 993,957,179
Private accounts 2(e) 298,953,809 317,540,465
Prepaid expenses 42,455,591 47,497,769
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 16,419,794 21,577,432
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Receivables from affiliates 6 20,366,756 33,463,658
Other current assets 93,819,191 54,848,716
Total current assets 1,979,202,961 2,252,075,213
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $252,958,658
and $230,285,768 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively 2(f), 4 94,477,969 111,294,054
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 231,158,864 173,842,283
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 26,699,575 32,984,825
Investments in associates 2(b) 28,471,674 36,988,617
Other noncurrent assets 8 60,321,209 61,620,430
Total noncurrent assets 1,594,162,252 1,588,420,674
Total assets $ 3,573,365,213 3,840,495,887
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 401,344,504 444,187,520
Accrued compensation 7(c) 254,261,222 301,432,498
Commissions payable 57,704,815 81,689,779
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,647,773 31,437,762
Payables to affiliates 6 84,349,623 95,602,945
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Other current liabilities 5,767,625 10,676,405
Total current liabilities 866,289,270 997,277,754
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 241,298,327 182,746,288
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 144,363,847 138,931,408
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,517,589 4,046,469
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,511,347,548 1,466,549,454
Tota liabilities 2,377,636,818 2,463,827,208
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,727,757) (6,433,247)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,289,007,163 1,333,506,696
Class M members (90,957 unitsissued and outstanding at December 31, 2022
and 74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021) 74,137,242 69,610,604
Class M unit option holders (59,004 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2022 and 102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021) 7(a) 24,899,178 32,693,374
Cumulative trandation adjustment 2(0) (88,587,431) (52,708,748)
Tota capital 1,195,728,395 1,376,668,679
Total ligbilities and capital $ 3573365213  3,840495887

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Revenues: Note 2022 2021
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,829,526,077 4,520,575,834
Private accounts 2(e) 1,013,190,320 1,166,893,208
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,161,877,051 1,272,072,660
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 289,992,929 350,424,117
Other 2(e) 44,812,438 32,477,418
Total revenues 6,339,398,815 7,342,443,237
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,096,156,066 2,695,488,619
Commissions 414,744,909 666,590,135
General and administrative 2(s) 610,193,500 633,462,121
Professional fees 242,700,768 233,154,167
Occupancy and equipment 2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 186,670,745
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 119,548,680 105,285,247
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 32,998,070 47,627,284
Other 2(t) 51,076,118 41,501,327
Total expenses 3,765,537,618 4,609,779,645
Operating income 2,573,861,197 2,732,663,592
Other (loss) income, net 7(c) (139,931,743) 126,921,569
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (8,516,943) (1,327,780)
Net income before income taxes 2,420,310,403 2,852,712,104
Income tax expense 8 99,310,016 107,478,838
Net income 2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266

Other comprehensive loss:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trandation adjustment 2(0) (35,878,683) (7,967,178)

Comprehensive income $ 2,285,121,704 2,737,266,088

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members ClassM members holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options  Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31,
2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 $ 37,843,422 $ (44,741,570)$ 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December 31,
2021 850,000 (6,433,247) 150,000 1,333,506,696 74,205 69,610,604 102,231 32,693,374 (52,708,748) 1,376,668,679
Net income 1,612,749,721 517,338,542 190,912,124 - - 2,321,000,387
Distributions (1,716,943,889) (561,838,075) (196,629,414) - - (2/475,411,378)
Contribution 2,254,594 - - - - 2,254,594
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 7,094,796 - 7,094,796

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 4,645,064 - 10,243,928 (14,888,992) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (35,878,683) (35,878,683)
Balances at December 31,
2022 850,000 $ (103,727,757) 150,000 $ 1,289,007,163 90,957 ¢ 74,137,242 59,004 $ 24,899,178 $ (88,587,431)$ 1,195,728,395

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $  2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 7,007,233 11,600,078
Depreciation and amortization 72,011,201 65,880,266
Finance costs 5,102,108 5,545,277
Equity inloss of associates 8,516,943 1,327,780
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 2,110,095 1,665
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 1,697 -
Unrealized and realized net loss on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 517,601 29,028
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments - 4,206,963
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 13,733,834 15,036,589
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (8,121,604) (13,788,912)
Income taxes paid (126,296,902) (108,645,764)
Interest paid (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable 257,625,543 (194,961,547)
Recelvables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (19,444,611) (18,406,245)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 17,730,085 180,065,741
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates (16,690,982) 63,479,303
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,529,700,520 2,751,058,211
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired - (144,367)
Purchases of property and equipment (14,102,890) (17,229,114)
Purchases of intangible assets (991,693) (4,902,545)
Purchases of investments in associates - (23,500,150)
Net cash used in investing activities (15,094,583) (45,776,176)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 579,000,000 337,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (579,000,000) (337,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,475,411,378) (2,622,190,457)
Contribution received 2,254,594 8,451,432
Principal elements of lease payments (34,481,606) (33,282,796)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,507,638,390) (2,647,021,821)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (35,878,683) (7,967,178)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (28,911,136) 50,293,036
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ - 2,547,664

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
I LLC (AAM Holding I1). The Company has authorized 250,000 Class M units for issuance and options on Class
M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2022, 90,957 Class M units have
been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with respect to income and
distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.
StocksPLUS Management, Inc. isthe general partner of StocksPLUS L P.
PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.
PIMCO Japan Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.
PIMCO Australia Pty Limited is aregistered investment adviser in Australia

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) LLC provides certain global payroll services to PIMCO and its
subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Global Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages investment funds under the laws of
L uxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Fixed income Management LLC (Gurtin) is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Aurora LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) isareal estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting

policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 20, 2023.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $444.7 million and $323.9 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash
equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various
federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign programs), and as a resullt,
thereis a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other (loss) income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(e) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These feesare earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is highly probable that significant reversal will not occur.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships and developed technology. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were determined
using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships and the replacement cost method for
the developed technology. The intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from
18 months to three years, using the straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified
termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2022 or 2021.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. The Company has included
options to extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all
factors that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

The Company recognizes the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

() Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promotional
The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating

marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(o) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financia condition as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r) Défared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

() Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial

condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $23.6 million and
$29.7 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2022 or
2021.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
Additions 10,150,192 3,952,698 - 14,102,890
Disposals (1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
Depreciation and amortization (16,079,748) (12,728,012) - (28,807,760)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $28.8 million and $27.0 million during 2022
and 2021, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:;

Computer Customer Developed
Software Relationships Technology Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 13,624,825 19,360,000 - 32,984,825
Additions 991,693 - - 991,693
Disposals (1,697) - - (1,697)
Amortization (5,195,246) (2,080,000) - (7,275,246)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 9,419,575 17,280,000 - 26,699,575

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.3 million and $7.2 million during 2022 and 2021,
respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.3 million and $23.6 million
during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $23.5 million and $21.5 million as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at a rate of overnight SOFR plus 0.2% (2021: LIBOR plus 0.2%) to cover short-term operating
cash needs. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from
AAM LP to cover its operating cash needs. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, PIMCO had no
outstanding short-term loans. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO incurred $183 thousand and $102 thousand,
respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in finance costs in the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.
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December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had $776.5
million (2021: $1.0 billion) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $45.3 million and $55.9 million during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which are
included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $6.3 million and $7.3 million during
2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with al of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO' s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are allocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2022, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $418.3 million (2021: $400.4 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $34.0 million (2021: $41.6 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2022, costs allocated to PEG
were $66.6 million (2021: $85.8 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2022, the Company had a $15.7 million (2021: $26.2 million) receivable from PEG and a
$60.8 million (2021: $74.1 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of SOFR
plus 20bps (2021: LIBOR plus 20bps). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit
facility on behalf of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement
at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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December 31, 2022 and 2021

(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, 59,004 and 102,231 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 90,957 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2022.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2022 or 2021. A summary of the activity in 2022 and 2021 related to the

number and weighted average exercise price of the M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 38,379 (38,379) - -
Exercised (38,379) - (38,379) 13,960
Forfeited - (4,848) (4,848) 16,186
Outstanding at
December 31, 2022 - 59,004 59,004 $ 16,151
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2022 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2022 have an exercise price between $14,516 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.46 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $24,780 for 2022 and $20,924
for 2021. M unit options totaling 38,379 vested during 2022. On March 31, 2022 and September 28, 2022, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 16,752 M units. As of December 31, 2022, 90,526 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these vested
awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,597 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2022 and 2021 was $7.0 million and $11.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2022, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $4.6 million.
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(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2022 and 2021 was $62.2 million and $59.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Compensation expense or benefit and unrealized gains or losses are recognized to the extent the underlying
investments appreciate or depreciate in value. Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in
trust and the related liability at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $1.2 billion and $1.2 hillion, respectively, and
are included in interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2022, unrealized losses amounted to $160.0
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. During 2021, unrealized gains amounted to $112.1
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
Current:

Federa $ 50,000 81,038
State 3,037,815 3,988,116
Foreign 100,156,227 115,094,758
Tota current 103,244,042 119,163,912

Deferred:
Foreign (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total deferred (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total provision $ 99,310,016 107,478,838

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, income taxes payable amounted to $16.9 million and $32.8 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2022 and 2021, deferred tax assets amounted to
$52.5 million and $54.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted
to $146 thousand and $285 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204
2,341,128 1,319,717

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $43.3 million and

$40.9 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022:

Year ending December 31
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 39,348,587
22,579,980
34,908,435
34,012,100
29,593,384

171,102,531

331,545,017
(58,598,917)

$ 272,946,100

(Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021

Year ending December 31.

2022 $ 35,796,969
2023 37,499,114
2024 23,189,168
2025 34,006,401
2026 33,302,410
Thereafter 69,700,751
Total operating lease payments 233,494,813
Lessimputed interest (19,310,763)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 214,184,050

(10) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

(Continued)

381/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks. The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2022.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2022, there were no

changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2022 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2022 and 2021

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of PI
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $4.4
million and $3.3 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which isincluded in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in
the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

December 31
2022 2021
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,629,358,116 $ 2,408,685,532
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 1,057,636 567,143

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(Continued)
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(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 20, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

On January 1, 2023, AAM LP and AAM LLC merged with AAM LLC being the surviving entity, new managing
member of the Company, and new owner of al 850,000 Class A units of the Company.

On March 1, 2023, AREOA was legally renamed to PIMCO Prime Real Estate LLC.
On March 8, 2023, Gurtin and PIMCO merged, with PIMCO being the surviving entity.
PIMCO M unit options totaling 31,548 vested subsequent to the date of the specia-purpose consolidated

statement of financial condition. On March 31, 2023, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless
exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 7,862 M units.
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30

1,013,661,485 149,565,752
19,326,102 2,851,566
667,548,950 98,496,848
294,910,245 43,514,007
68,702,831 10,137,103
15,476,137 2,283,504
17,875,238 2,637,491
20,851,016 3,076,567
113,247,731 16,709,703
2,231,599,735 329,272,541
90,760,961 13,391,780
222,667,521 32,854,593
1,253,588,749 184,967,020
30,865,176 4,554,157
30,756,522 4,538,125
26,570,990 3,920,550
64,587,773 9,529,926
1,719,797,692 253,756,149
3,951,397,427 583,028,690
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420,903, 866 62,104,365
565,044,623 83,372,334

60,382,239 8,909,399

18,609,056 2,745,766

75,542,357 11,146,275

17,875,238 2,637,491

3,053,533 450,549

1,161,410,912 171,366,180

1,253,588,749 184,967,020

249,841,855 36,864,166

121,224,559 17,886,684

3,662,023 540,331

1,628,317,186 240,258,201

2,789,728,098 411,624,381

850,000 (127,315, 540) (18,785,408)
150,000 1,278,193,858 188,597,504
98,819 78,788,846 11,625,294
25,675 10,689,383 1,577,218
(78,687,218) (11,610,299)

1,161,669,329 171,404,309

3,951,397,427 583,028,690
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2023 30

1,795,001,444 264,852,463
503,285,567 74,259,785
537,256,999 79,272,270
130,015,913 19,183,848

25,359,475 3,741,791

2,990,919, 398 441,310,157

1,191,137,960 175,752,406
182,234,609 26,888,717
298,763,424 44,082,543
103,315, 358 15,244,181

98,229,025 14,493,693
58,380,832 8,614,092
16,272,450 2,401,000
22,988,744 3,391,989

1,971,322,402 290,868,620

1,019,596,996 150,441,537
105,578,918 15,578,169

(5,183, 285) (764,794)
(1,900, 684) (280, 446)
1,118,001,945 164,974,466
42,922,025 6,333,145
1,075,169, 920 158,641,322
9,900,213 1,460,776
1,085,070,133 160,102,098
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2023 30

2022 12

31
850,000 (103,727,757) (15,305,031) 150,000 1,289,007,163 190,193,007 90,957 74,137,242 10,938,950
741,351,472 109,386,410 238,583,350 35,202,973 95,235,098 14,051,939
(776,776,518) (114,613,375) (249,396,655)  (36,798,476) (95,723,759) (14,124,041)

1,673,156 246,874

PIMCO
10,164,107 1,499,714 5,140,265 758,446

2023

30

850,000 (127,315,540) (18,785,408) 150,000 1,278,193,858 188,597,504 98,819 78,788,846 11,625,294
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2023 30
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,673,874  (88,587,431)  (13,071,075)  1,195,728,395 176,429,725
1,075,169,920 158,641,322
(1,121,896,932)  (165,535,892)
1,673,156 246,874
PINMCO
1,094,577 161,505 1,094,577 161,505
(15,304,372)  (2,258,160)
9,900,213 1,460,776 9,900,213 1,460,776
2023 30
25,675 10,689,383 1,577,218  (78,687,218)  (11,610,299)  1,161,669,329 171,404,309
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2023 30

1,075,169,920

158,641,322

1,101,860 162,579
31,273,527 4,614,409
5,183,285 764,794
1,900,684 280,446
(646,394) (95,375)
10,752,956 1,586,599
(5,821,438) (858,953)
(50, 880,780) (7,507,459)
(5,183,285) (764,794)
97,514,201 14,388,220
(50, 433,887) (7,441,520)
360,761,679 53,230,386
(11,376,924) (1,678,665)

1,459,315,404

215,321,988

(8,244,538) (1,216,482)
(8,727,998) (1,287,816)
(16,972,536) (2,504,298)
408,000,000 60,200,400

(408,000,000)

(1,121,896,932)
1,673,156

(10,644,776)

(60,200,400)

(165,535,892)
246,874

(1,570,637)

(1,130, 868,552)

(166,859, 655)

9,900,213

1,460,776

321,374,529

692,286,956

47,418,812

102,146,940

1,013,661,485

149,565,752

391/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

392/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

MNP
PIMCO

393/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

394/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

395/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

396/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1940 15
1
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2024
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2018
PIMCO
2020 PIMCO
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2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO 2024
2020 11 18 PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
2021 18 PIMCO
2021 12
2023
PIMCO 2021 22
CDO
CDO PIMCO
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PIMCO
2022 13 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO

397/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
2022 23 2022 29 PIMCO PIMCO
FGMC
FGMC
FGMC
PIMCO
PIMCO FGMC PIMCO

12 31

398/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO Pacific Investment Management Campany LLC
2024 1,443,950,333.78 2,130 5,487
1971
1940 PIMCO
PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2024 25 3,689

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2024 10 6,000 1,564 3,000

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2024 1,209 17 8,388

1989
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2023, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for each of the
periods indicated in the table below, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for each of the periods
indicated therein (collectively referred to asthe "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to below present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each of the Funds indicated in the table below as of October 31, 2023, and the results of each of
their operations and the changes in each of their net assets for the periods indicated in the table below, and each of the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥ PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
)

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @)
€

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) () PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @
| @

@

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund | PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en- (6]

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111
D
Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

p PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥
1
d

Fun

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond | 100 4 s, High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11

Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @ PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D Y PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥
PIMCO Bermuda L ow Duration Income Fund @ PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund |1 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @ PIMCO World High Income @

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2023
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Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
January 25, 2024
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Translated from English

2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021 12 31
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2023 20
"This version of our report is a translation from the original report, which was prepared in

English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original English

language version of our report takes precedence over this translation."
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 20, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2022, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for each of the
periods indicated in the table below, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for each of the periods
indicated therein (collectively referred to asthe "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to below present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each of the Funds indicated in the table below as of October 31, 2022, and the results of each of
their operations and the changes in each of their net assets for the periods indicated in the table below, and each of the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
(€

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) )

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) )

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 )

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

PIMCO World High Income @
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@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2022

435/437



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
January 31, 2023
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